
Corporate, Customer and Community Services Directorate 
Legal and Democratic Services  Cumbria House  107-117 Botchergate 

Cumbria  CA1 1RD  
Tel 01228 227354  Email democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk 

 
 

  

 

 

23 March 2023 

 
 
To:   The Chair and Members of the Cumbria 

LGPS Local Pension Board 
 
 
 

Agenda 
 
 

CUMBRIA LGPS LOCAL PENSION BOARD 
 
 
A meeting of the Cumbria LGPS Local Pension Board will be held as follows:  
 
 Date: Friday 31 March 2023 

 Time: 1.00 pm 

 Place: Conference Room A, Cumbria House, Carlisle, CA1 1RD 

 
 
Catherine Parkinson 
Interim Chief Legal Officer & Monitoring Officer 
 
 
Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to: Anthony Farrar 
Direct Line: 07909 932418 
Email: anthony.farrar@cumbria.gov.uk 
 
 

This agenda is available on request in alternative formats 
 

 
 
 

Serving the People of Cumbria 

 
 



 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Employer Representatives   Employee (Member) Representatives 
 
Lord Roger Liddle– CCC (Vice Chair)  Deirdre Burnet - Pensioner (Chair) 
Gavin Capstick – Other     Karen Thomson – Deferred 
Giles Archibald - District Representative  Karen Wilson  - Active 

 
 
 
 
 

ACCESS TO INFORMATION 
 
 
Agenda and Reports 
 
Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect 
prior to the meeting.  Copies will also be available at the meeting. 
 
The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website –  
www.cumbria.gov.uk/councilmeetings/  
 
Background Papers 
 
Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that 
contain exempt information, can be made to Legal and Democratic Services at the 
address overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday. 

http://www.cumbria.gov.uk/councilmeetings/


 

A G E N D A 
 
 
PART 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 

AND PUBLIC 
 
 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

To receive any apologies for absence. 
 
2   TERMS OF REFERENCE AND MEMBERSHIP 

 
To note the Terms of Reference and membership of the Board (copy enclosed). 
 
3   DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 

 
Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item 
on the agenda which comprises 
 
1 Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 

profit or gain.  
 
2 Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 

the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses.  (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  

 
3 Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have 

a beneficial interest) and the authority  
 

(a) Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and  

 
 (b) Which has not been fully discharged.  
 
4 Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.   
 
5 Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 

the authority for a month or longer.   
 
6 Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge)  
 
 (a) The landlord is the authority; and 
 
 (b) The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial interest. 
 
7 Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where 
 

(a) That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the  area of 



 

the authority; and 
 
(b) Either –  
 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or 

 
(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 

nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

 
In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of 
Conduct where these have not already been registered. 
 
Note 
 
A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners).  
 
 
 
4   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
To consider whether there are any items on the agenda for which the press and public 
should be excluded. 
 
5   MINUTES 

 
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the Cumbria Local Pension Board meeting 
held on 17 January 2023 (copy enclosed). 
 
6   SCHEDULE OF FUTURE MEETINGS 

 
The future meeting dates of the Cumbria LGPS Pension Board will be confirmed as Local 
Government Reorganisation in Cumbria progresses.  

 
7   WORK PLAN 

 
To consider the Current Work Plan (copy enclosed).  

 
8   OVERSIGHT OF PENSION COMMITTEE DECISIONS AND OTHER MATTERS 

 
To consider a report from the Interim Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) (copy 
enclosed).  

 
9   TERMS OF REFERENCE CUMBRIA LGPS LOCAL PENSION BOARD 

 
To consider a report from the Interim Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) (copy 
enclosed).  

 



 

10   REVIEW OF BOARD POLICIES INCLUDING  TRAINING POLICY AND 2023-24 
PLAN 
 

To consider a report from the Interim Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) (copy 
enclosed).  

 
11   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

 
This is the last meeting of the Cumbria Local Pension Board in the life of Cumbria 
County Council. 
 
PART II: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC 
 
12   REVIEW OF ADMINISTRATION MATTERS 

 
To consider a report from the Interim Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) (copy 
enclosed).  

 
13   LPPA PRESENTATION: PERFORMANCE UPDATE 

 
Abbi Leech, Director of Finance, People & Culture, Local Pensions Partnership has 
been invited to make a presentation to the Board. 
 
14   VERBAL UPDATE ON EMERGING ISSUES 

 
To receive a general verbal update from the Interim Director of Finance (Section 151 
Officer). 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



    

Agreed by Monitoring Officer 8th March 2022 
 

Appendix 1 

Part 2P: Cumbria Local Pension Board  

1 Summary  

1.1 The Cumbria Local Pension Board is responsible for assisting the 

Administering Authority of the Cumbria Local Government Pension Scheme to 

comply with all relevant legislative requirements and to ensure the effective 

governance of the scheme.  

2 Functions of the Cumbria Local Pension Board  

2.1 The Cumbria Local Pension Board is responsible for assisting the 

Administering Authority of the Cumbria Local Government Pension Scheme: 

(a)  to secure compliance with:  

(i) The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as 

amended from time to time); and  

(ii) Other legislation relating to the governance and administration of the 

Local Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’); and  

(iii) The requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator in relation to 

the LGPS; and  

(b) to ensure the effective and efficient governance and administration of the 

LGPS.  

2.2 The Board must have a policy and framework to meet the knowledge and 

understanding requirements of section 248A of the Pensions Act 2004.  

2.3 In its role in assisting the Administering Authority as described above, the Local 

Pension Board shall report at least twice yearly to the Pensions Committee on 

matters reviewed and suggestions for their consideration.  

2.4 Where the Board is concerned that due consideration has not been given to 

matters of non-compliance the Board may submit a report for consideration by 

the Audit and Assurance Committee as the body designated by the 

Administering Authority with the capacity to investigate such matters on its 

behalf.  

7

Agenda Item 2



    

Agreed by Monitoring Officer 8th March 2022 
 

2.5 The Board is constituted under the Public Service Pension Act 2013 and the 

Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) (Governance) Regulations 

2014 and is therefore not subject to the requirements of S.101 of the Local 

Government Act 1972.  

2.6 The Board has no remit as a decision making body but is established to assist 

the Administration Authority to fulfil its functions which shall be deemed to cover 

all aspects of governance and administration of the Pensions Fund.  

3 Operating Structure and Codes of Conduct of the Local Pension Board  

3.1 The operating structure and codes of conduct of the Local Pension Board is as 

follows:  

(a) The Board will be quorate if 25% of designated members (i.e. two) are in 

attendance, with at least one member representing employers and at least 

one member representing scheme members.  

(b) Prior to appointment to the Board all members will be required to sign up 

to the Board’s Code of Conduct and Conflicts of Interest Policy. As a body 

representing the public interest the Code of Conduct and Conflicts of 

Interest Policy of members of the Local Pension Board will be aligned to 

those applicable to members of the Pensions Committee.  

(c) The Board will meet as a minimum twice a year. Meetings will be held 

during normal working hours and will predominantly be held within County 

boundaries.  

(d) Where required, a minimum of two Board members (one from the member 

representatives and one from the employer representatives) or the 

Administering Authority can request a special meeting be convened. 

Notice of ten working days must be given.  

(e) As a non-decision-making body the Board has no authority to establish 

working parties / subgroups.  

(f) Each member shall have an equal vote and should it be required, the Chair 

will have the casting vote.  

4 Commissioning of Service providers and Advisors  

4.1 All members of the Local Pension Board have the right to access the support of 

the experienced Local Government Pension Scheme Independent Advisors, 

however due regard has to be taken of securing value for money and as such 

8



    

Agreed by Monitoring Officer 8th March 2022 
 

whether in the first instance officers of the County Council could provide the 

assistance required.  

4.2 Items of expenditure by the Board must have prior approval from the Section 

151 Officer.  

5 Role of Officers  

5.1 Reasonable secretarial and professional support will be provided by officers of 

the Administering Authority. Costs associated with this will be directly charged 

to the Pension Fund.  

6 Publication and Data Protection  

6.1 As a general principle, meetings will be open to the public.  

6.2 Paper or electronic versions (as requested) of all agendas and papers will be 

provided to all members of the Local Pension Board prior to a meeting. The 

Chair can accept that items be tabled on the day should such a need arise.  

6.3 As a matter of policy the Pensions Fund has adopted the principles of 

paperless working, therefore as a matter of course public access to all 

agendas, public papers and minutes etc. will be available on the Council’s 

website. On request, alternative media versions are available.  

6.4 The County Council as the Administration Authority is the registered data 

controller of the Cumbria LGPS, and as such all policies and practices in this 

regard applicable within the County Council are directly applicable to the Board.  

7 Membership  

7.1 Equal representation between scheme employers and scheme members is 

required. The membership of the Cumbria Local Pension Board will comprise 

three scheme member representatives and three scheme employer 

representatives.  

7.2 Appointment of Board members – To ensure an open and transparent 

selection process and to ensure the administering authority meets its obligation 

to ensure appointed members have the capacity the selection process will be 

through application, matching to a role profile and interview. The appointment 

panel will consist of the Section 151 Officer, Monitoring Officer and Portfolio 

Holder for Finance. Appointments will be for four years (or, in the case of 

elected members for the remainder of their current term of office) and there will 

9



    

Agreed by Monitoring Officer 8th March 2022 
 

be no limit on the number of times a member of the board can seek to be 

reappointed. The three employer representatives will be allocated 1 to the 

County Council; 1 to the District Councils and 1 for all other employers in the 

Fund. The three scheme member representatives will be selected to ensure all 

membership groups within the Fund are considered.  

7.3 Appointment of the Chair/Vice Chair – the administering authority will appoint 

the Chair and the Vice Chair. The roles will be split with one being a scheme 

member representative and one being a scheme employer representative and 

this will be alternated on a two yearly cycle.  

7.4 Reimbursement of reasonable travel expenses for attendance at meetings and 

training sessions will be in line with the County Council’s agreed policies and 

rates for elected members. All such costs will be met directly by the Pension 

Fund.  

7.5 Relevant knowledge and capacity – the administering authority must ensure 

that each person appointed to the Local Pension Board has the relevant 

knowledge and the capacity to represent the employers or members (as 

appropriate) of the Pensions Fund. Initially this will be done through selection 

but, following appointment, it is a member’s individual responsibility to ensure 

they attend sufficient training to enable them to continue to fulfil the knowledge 

and capacity requirements. Full training will be provided and all reasonable 

costs will be met by the Pensions Fund. To ensure compliance with the above a 

general level of attendance at meetings and training events is required.  

8 Substitution 

8.1 Substitutes are permitted and sufficient substitutes will be appointed to ensure 

that the representation described in 7.2 can be maintained whenever a 

substitution is required.  

8.2 In recognition of the requirements relating to relevant knowledge and capacity, 

substitutes must be subject to the same appointment process as Board 

members detailed in 7.2 and the relevant knowledge and capacity requirements 

as set out at 7.5. Each substitute will be appointed for a four year term (or, in 

the case of elected members for the remainder of their current term of office) 

and there is no limit on the number of times the substitute can seek to be 

reappointed. 

8.3 Reimbursement of reasonable travel expenses for attendance at meetings and 

training sessions will be in line with the County Council’s agreed policies and 

10



    

Agreed by Monitoring Officer 8th March 2022 
 

rates for elected members. All such costs will be met directly by the Pension 

Fund.  

 

11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

CUMBRIA LGPS LOCAL PENSION BOARD 
 

Minutes of a Meeting of the Cumbria LGPS Local Pension Board held on Tuesday, 
17 January 2023 at 1.00 pm at Conference Room A, Cumbria House, Carlisle, CA1 
1RD 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Mrs D Burnet (Chair) 
 

Mr G Archibald 
Lord R Liddle 
 

Mrs K Thomson 
Ms K Wilson 
 

Also in Attendance:- 
 
Ms A Clark - Senior Manager - Pensions and Financial Services 

(Deputy S151 Officer – Pensions) 
Ms P Duke - Director of Resources (Section 151), Westmorland & 

Furness 
Mr A Farrar - Democratic Services Officer 
Mr P George - Group Finance Manager - Pensions, Investments and 

Insurance 
Ms A McGuinness - Finance Manager - Pensions Administration 
Ms L Taylor - Finance Manager - Pensions Investments and 

Governance 
Ms G Welbourn - Technical Finance Officer - Pensions 
 
  
  

PART 1 – ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE 
PRESENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

 

 
29 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Mr G Capstick. 
 
30 TERMS OF REFERENCE AND MEMBERSHIP 
 
The Terms of Reference were noted.   
 
31 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 
 
There were no disclosures of interest. 
 
32 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
RESOLVED, that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 

consideration of: 
 

13

Agenda Item 5



 

 
 
 

2 

Agenda Item No 10 – Review of Administration Matters; 
Agenda Item No 11 – LPPA Presentation; and  
Agenda Item No 12 – Verbal Update on Emerging Issues  
 
by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 as the reports contain information relating to 
the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 
the Authority holding that information). 

 
33 MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED,  that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 4 October 2022 be 

agreed as a true and accurate record.  
 
34 SCHEDULE OF FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
The future meetings of the Cumbria LGPS Pension Board would be confirmed as 
Local Government Reorganisation progresses. 
 
35 WORK PLAN 
 
Members noted the work plan of the Cumbria LGPS Local Pension Board. 
 
36 OVERSIGHT OF PENSION COMMITTEE DECISIONS AND OTHER 

MATTERS 
 
Members considered a report from the Senior Manager – Pensions and Financial 
Services (Deputy Section 151 Officer) which updated them on all aspects of the 
governance and administration of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). 
 
Section 4 of this report summarised the work conducted, and decisions made by the 
Committee at its meeting held on 13 December 2022, in order that Board Members 
could review these as part of their legal responsibility to members of the Fund. 
 
This report also advised members of other matters arising, including regulatory 
changes, since last reported to the Board.   
 
The Technical Finance Officer took members through the report, and highlighted the 
following: 
 

• Legal breaches – there had been no legal breaches reported to the 
Pensions Regulator during the period to December 2022.   

• Risk – One new risk had been added to the register associated with 
the impact that climate change may have on investments, it was 
previously an emerging risk on the register. A new emerging risk 
associated with biodiversity loss had also been added. In addition, 
the scoring of the risk associated with the loss of key personnel had 
been increased to reflect the expected high turnover of the Pensions 

14



 

 
 
 

3 

Committee in April 2023.  All risks had been thoroughly reviewed 
this quarter and no other scores had been changed.  There were 19 
risks (1 red, 4 amber and 14 green). 

• Data Quality – The data continues to be of a good quality.   

• Investment Management – The value of the Fund had decreased in 
the quarter from £3.144 billion to £3.118 billion as a result of the 
market volatility following Russia’s invasion of Ukraine.  However, 
performance exceeded the Fund specific benchmark over 3, 5 and 
10 years. 
 

• Website – In November the Fund launched its own website which 
provided specific information to scheme employers, scheme 
members and other interested parties. 

 

• Triennial Valuation 2022 – All employers had received their 

statements detailing employer contributions for the next three years. 

The Fund had continued to increase its overall Funding Level from 

91% in 2016 to 99% in 2019 and then to 110% at this year’s 

valuation. The annual employers Forum was held in November. The 

valuation is progressing in accordance with the agreed timetable. 

 

• Regulatory Changes – There was no further update on the McCloud 
resolution and the Exit Payment Cap.  Officers submitted a 
comprehensive response to the consultation on the Task Force on 
Climate Related Financial Disclosures in November.   

 
A member asked how much of the fund’s investments were in currencies other than 
sterling and requested whether the information could be included as a benchmark 
figure in future. 
 
The Director of Resources (s151 Officer), Westmorland & Furness Council noted 
that this would be reviewed and considered for inclusion future reports.  
 
A member commented on the 23 September mini-budget and referenced a news 
article outlining that the turbulence caused by the mini-budget had now settled. 
 
The Director of Resources (s151 Officer), Westmorland & Furness remarked that 
formal accounting was on an annual basis and it was monitored on a quarterly 
basis.  It was important that the Fund has a long term investment strategy and that it 
had not been necessary to react to market movements related to this issue, 
however it was perhaps overly optimistic to suggest that the impact was over.  
 
RESOLVED, that the Board 
 

15



 

 
 
 

4 

(1) noted the decisions approved and other matters considered by the 
Pensions Committee at the meeting held on 13 December 2022 and request 
further information and/or feedback to the Pensions Committee as appropriate. 

 
37 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting would be confirmed as Local Government Reorganisation in 
Cumbria progresses. 
 
38 REVIEW OF ADMINISTRATION MATTERS 
 
Members considered a report from the Senior Manager – Pensions and Financial 
Services (Deputy Section 151 Officer), which provided an update on the following 
key areas of Pensions’ Administration. 

• The service provided and monitoring of LPPA with a further update to be 
provided by LPPA in their presentation at the next agenda item.  

• Employer Issues and measures taken to mitigate them. 

• Members recorded their best wishes to Rachel Blundell (Operations 
Manager, LPPA), who had recently left the organisation. 

• Members acknowledged Pensions Committee’s request that they provide 
an additional measure of scrutiny over LPPA’s performance over the next 
six months following the recent transition to the new administration 
system. 
 

RESOLVED,  that the Board noted the Pension Administration matters detailed in 
the report and requested further information and/or feedback to the 
Pensions Committee as appropriate. 

 
39 LPPA PRESENTATION: PERFORMANCE UPDATE 
 
Members received a verbal update from Ms J Darbyshire, Managing Director- Local 
Pension Partnership Administration (LPPA).  The update included: 

 

• Quarterly Reporting 

• Performance against SLA’s 

• Project PACE 

• Helpdesk 

• Executive Leadership Team 
 
The Chair thanked the Managing Director – LPPA for her update. 
 
40 VERBAL UPDATE ON EMERGING ISSUES 
 
The Senior Manager - Pensions and Financial Services and Director of Finance 
(s151 officer), Westmorland & Furness updated the Board on current emerging 
issues, including:- 
 

16



 

 
 
 

5 

• Consultations  

• Stewardship Report 

• Local Government Reorganisation 
 
 

The meeting ended at 2.25 pm 
  

 
 

17



This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT CLPB ANNUAL WORK PLAN 
 

TO NOTE:     FOR CLPB REVIEW & DISCUSSION: 

Provis
-ional 
PC 

PC AGENDA ITEMS 
 STANDING ITEMS: 

Quarterly 

Provis
-ional 
LPB  

STANDING ITEMS: 
Annual 

ADDITIONAL BOARD 
SPECIFIC WORK ITEMS 

20 
JUN 
23 

Unaudited accounts 
Annual global tax update 
Training topics (tbc)  

 
Regulatory/Legislative 

• Regulatory 

changes/Consultations 

• Employer issues (incl. 

performance)  

• Update on Training 

(attended or available) 

 

TPR 

• Legal breaches 

• Data Quality & improvement* 

 

Effective & Efficient Gov & Admin 

• Oversight of PC decisions 

• Risk register 

• Fund discretions 

• Responsible Investment 

updates 

• LPPA – Quarterly overview 

of service provision & 

performance 

• Cyber security plan 

13 
JUL 
23 

Regulatory/Legislative 

• CLPB Annual Report 

• Annual LPPA Report 

 
 
 
Additional focus on LPPA 
Performance over the next 6 
months.* 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Pension Dashboard1 
  
 
Compliance with TPR’s new 
single Code of Practice1 
 
 
Good Governance Review - 
Actions* 1 
 
 
Implementation and Impact of 
McCloud Remedy 1 
 
 
TCFD Reporting 1 

13 & 
14 
SEPT 
23 

 
Annual Report & Accounts/Audit 
Findings Report (AFR) 
Funding Strategy Statement 
Training topics (tbc)  

10 
OCT 
23 

Regulatory/Legislative 

• Annual Report & 

Accounts/AFR 

TPR 

• TPR Gov & Admin survey 

7 DEC 
23 

Training update 
Half-year update of budget and 
business plan  
Training topics (tbc)  
  

16 
JAN 
24 

Effective & Efficient Gov & 

Admin 

• Board Member feedback 

on Pensions Forum  

14 
MAR 
24 

Budget & business plan  
BCPP budget & business plan  
Annual review of scheme policy 
document 
Training topics (tbc) 
 
 

16 
APR 
24 

Regulatory/Legislative 

• Annual Review of Board 

Policies (incl. Training 

Policy & Plan) 

• Annual Review of 

Scheme Policy Document 

 

Effective & Efficient Gov & 

Admin 

• Review of Annual LPB 

Work Plan 

NOTE : Triennial Valuation to be included but will depend upon where current year falls within 3 year cycle 

*Work specifically allocated to CLPB by the Pensions Committee 

 
1 Date to be confirmed – dependent on issuance of guidance and/or regulations by Government 

19

A
genda Item

 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

CUMBRIA LOCAL PENSION BOARD 

Meeting date: 31 March 2023 

From: Jo Moore, Interim Director of Finance (S151 
Officer) 

 
 

OVERSIGHT OF PENSIONS COMMITTEE DECISIONS AND 

OTHER MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The role of the Board is to assist the Administering Authority in all 
aspects of the governance and administration of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (LGPS). 

1.2 Cumbria County Council, as Administering Authority for the Cumbria 
LGPS (‘the Fund’), has delegated its functions, under Section 101 of 
the Local Government Act 1972 to the Cumbria Pensions Committee 
(‘the Committee’).  

1.3 Section 4 of this report summarises the work conducted, and decisions 
made by the Committee at its meeting held on 14 March 2023, in order 
that Board Members can oversee the governance of these decisions as 
part of their legal responsibility to members of the Fund.   

1.4 This report also advises Members of other matters arising, including 
regulatory changes, since last reported to the Board. Pension 
administration issues have been highlighted in a separate report in 
Part 2 of this meeting to allow for a more detailed focus on these items. 

2.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 The purpose of the Fund is to pay Cumbria LGPS members’ pension 
benefits in accordance with regulations and in a secure, affordable and 
sustainable manner over the short, medium and long term. To do this, 
the Fund seeks to:  
• ensure that sufficient resources are available to meet all liabilities 

as they fall due;  
• manage employers’ liabilities effectively and enable employer 

contribution rates to be kept at a reasonable and affordable cost to 
the taxpayers and the scheduled, resolution and admitted bodies;  

21

Agenda Item 8



 

• achieve and maintain Fund solvency and long term cost efficiency, 
which should be assessed in light of the profile of the Fund now 
and in the future; and  

• maximise the returns from investments within reasonable risk 
parameters taking into account the above aims.  

 
2.2 Good governance and risk management will aid the Fund in ensuring 

its regulatory responsibilities are met, a good service is provided to 
scheme members, costs are controlled, and its required investment 
return is achieved. Cost control and the investment performance of the 
Fund will have a direct impact on the funding level and therefore all 
employers’ contribution rates. This will have a direct impact on the 
Fund Employers’ revenue budgets.  

3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Board is recommended to: - 

3.1 Note the decisions approved and other matters considered by the 
Pensions Committee at the meeting held on 14 March 2023 and request 
further information and/or feedback to the Pensions Committee as 
appropriate. 

4.0 PENSIONS COMMITTEE DECISIONS 

4.1 The Cumbria Pensions Committee is the delegated decision-making body 
for the Fund, and as such its decisions are of particular relevance to the 
Cumbria Local Pension Board (‘CLPB’ or ‘the Board’.).  It is the role of the 
Board to assist the Administering Authority of the Cumbria Local 
Government Pension Scheme to secure compliance with: - 

a) The regulations covering administration of a local government pension 
scheme; 

b) Other legislation relating to the governance and administration of the 
LGPS; and 

c) The requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator in relation to the 
LGPS. 

 
4.2 The Board is also required to assist the Administering Authority to ensure 

the effective and efficient governance and administration of the LGPS. 

4.3 Pensions Committee papers are currently available through SharePoint for 
all Board members to access at the same time as they are sent out to 
Pensions Committee Members. This enables any questions/queries to be 
raised by the Board either at or before the relevant Pensions Committee 
meeting. 

4.4 In addition to the quarterly monitoring reports Parts 1 & 2, the March meeting 
considered the following reports: 

• Update from Cumbria LGPS Local Pensions Board; 

22



 

• Fund Policy Document Annual Review; 

• Draft Pensions Fund Business Plan & Administration Budget 2023/24;  

• BCPP Budget & Strategic Plan and related Shareholder Resolution(s) 
and 

• Investment Sub-Group Activity report to March 2023.  

4.5 All recommendations within the papers presented to the March meeting 
were agreed by the Committee. See Appendix 1 for additional commentary. 

 
4.6 Committee Members also received a presentation delivered by Border to 

Coast Pensions Partnership Ltd on Private Market investments.   
 

4.7 Part 1 of the meeting was attended by Members from both Cumberland 
Council and Westmorland and Furness Council as ‘observers’.  These were 
Members who may be interested in joining the Pensions Committee after 31 
March 2023. 
 

5.0 OTHER MATTERS 

 
Legal Breaches: 
 

5.1 The Fund had no breaches during the quarter that were considered 
sufficiently material that they would require reporting to the Pensions 
Regulator.  

 
5.2 Non-compliance events arising from late payments of pension contributions 

and failure to provide the Fund with monthly member payroll data are 
presented in Paper 8 on this agenda. 
 
Risk: 
 

5.3 Risk management is a key element of good governance for any 
organisation. Officers of the Fund continually review and monitor risks 
bringing any significant emerging issues to Members’ attention throughout 
the year, with Pensions Committee formally reviewing these at each 
meeting. This quarterly review process ensures consistent and timely 
Member oversight of risk monitoring and thereby provides enhanced due 
diligence in this regard.  
 

5.4 The current risk register at March 2023 is presented at Appendix 2. No new 
risks have been added nor have any risks been removed from the register in 
the past quarter.  

 
5.5 The scoring of the risk associated with pensions administration processes 

has been increased to reflect the current performance levels of LPPA.  
 

23



 

• Change in Risk Score in Q4: Ref 1.2 – Pensions Administration 
Processes 
 

Impact of occurrence score   3  
Likelihood of occurrence score   3 (increased from 2)  
Total Risk Score 9 (Amber) - increased from 6        

(Green) 
 
Pensions Administration Processes – The risk score associated with 
Pensions Administration Processes has been increased to reflect the 
performance of LPPA in Q2 and Q3 as previously reported to both the 
Pensions Committee and Board.  
 
The low levels of adherence to LPPA performance standards increases the 
risk of delays in scheme members entering into pension or receiving other 
services from the Fund in an untimely manner. This increased risk has been 
mitigated by enhanced monitoring of LPPA performance including monthly 
reports being received by the Fund. In recognition of the poor performance 
over the past two quarters, and concerns as to performance in the future, 
senior officers will take a more active role in managing the relationship 
between the Fund and LPPA. 
 
It is recognised that performance of LPPA in Q3 was a significant 
improvement from that experienced in Q2 however there remain concerns 
associated with the performance of LPPA and this risk score will not be 
reduced until such time that the Fund is comfortable with the sustained 
adherence to agreed targets by LPPA. 
 
LPPA performance is also addressed in paper 12 on today’s agenda. 

 
5.6 All other risks have been reviewed with a number of minor amendments 

being made during the quarter for current mitigations and planned 
improvements in controls. 
 

5.7 There remains one risk currently assessed as “red” associated with 
information security arrangements. Additionally, there are now 4 “amber” 
and 13 “green” rated risks.  

Cyber Security Action Plan: 

5.8 Following AON’s review of the Fund’s cyber security arrangements, an 
action plan was formulated to address the recommendations made.  The 
Board are asked to note that whilst there is work ongoing in the background 
in this area, due to the increased workload and pressures associated with 
LGR, this will be considered in more detail at a future meeting of the Board. 

Data Quality:  

5.9 The Board has been tasked by the Pensions Committee with monitoring 
data quality improvement and actions taken to improve data quality.  

5.10 Data held within Cumbria LGPS continues to be of a good quality. This is 
evidenced by the scoring mechanism as set out by the Pensions Regulator. 

24



 

The Local Pensions Partnership Administration (LPPA) quarterly 
performance report provides the Pensions Regulator (tPR) data scoring 
information. This notes that the Scheme reported 97.9% of its common data 
(e.g., NI number, address etc.) was present and accurate and the scheme 
specific conditional data (e.g., employment details, contribution history etc.) 
was scored as being 88% present and accurate. This reduction in the 
conditional data (95.2% at 30 September 2022) is due to the data cut being 
taken before all data had been fully transferred to the new pensions 
administration system within LPPA. It is expected that this figure will be 
correctly reflected in the position stated as at 31 March 2023. LPPA have 
confirmed that this data score is not scheduled to be reported elsewhere, 
e.g. in returns to the Pensions Regulator until all the data is transferred. 

5.11 The National Fraud Initiative (NFI) exercise continues to be carried out by 
the Fund at six monthly intervals. In January 2023, Officers were advised 
through the NFI of 20 cases of the death of scheme members that were not 
previously known to the Fund. These cases are currently being reviewed by 
LPPA.  
 

5.12 The percentage of Scheme members signed up to My Pension On-Line was 
41% before the transfer to UPM. This was higher than the average rate of 
other LPPA Funds using the Heywoods pensions administration system and 
recognised the positive promotion that the Fund and employers gave to this 
product. However, scheme members are required to re-register to the new 
on-line portal following transition to UPM on 5 December 2022.  
 

5.13 Communications were sent to all scheme members where LPPA hold 
registered e-mail addresses in early January advising of the new portal. 
Officers from the Fund assisted LPPA with these communications to ensure 
that the risk of confusion between the new Pension Portal and LGR is 
minimised.  

 
Investment management and Fund Performance: 
 

5.14 The Pensions Committee focus is the long term strategic asset allocation 
and overall long term performance of the Fund. Individual manager 
monitoring is undertaken by the ISG, with any matters of concern reported to 
the Committee in the quarterly ISG Report.  
 

5.15 The Investment Sub Group (ISG) report from the February meeting was 
included in the reports to the March meeting of the Pensions Committee, 
with a summary in Appendix 1.   

 
5.16 The Fund’s assets fell in value from £3,118m at 30 September 2022 to 

£3,090m at 31 December 2022 during a quarter which was predominantly a 
positive one for global equity markets as inflation showed signs of peaking.  
Despite this much needed boost to equity markets, volatility remained in the 
market and falls in the value of gilts and a weakness in Sterling during the 
quarter contributed to the Fund underperforming with a negative return of -
0.6%, lagging the fund-specific benchmark which returned a positive 0.8%.   

 

25



 

5.17 The performance against the Fund’s specific benchmark for 1, 3, 5 and 10 
years is presented in the table below noting that long term performance 
continues to exceed the benchmark.  
 

 
31 Dec 2022 

Cumbria 
Performance 

Bespoke 
Benchmark 

Variance to 
Benchmark 

1yr performance -7.9% -6.6% -1.3% 

3yr performance 3.4% 3.0% 0.4% 

5yr performance 4.3% 4.2% 0.1% 

10yr performance 7.8% 7.0% 0.8% 

 
 
5.18 2022 Triennial Valuation - Update 

 
5.19 In accordance with LGPS Regulations, the Administering Authority is 

required to obtain an actuarial valuation of the assets and liabilities of the 
Fund on a triennial basis by a recognised qualified professional. The 
purpose of the triennial actuarial valuation is to calculate the value of the 
assets and the liabilities of the Fund and to set employer contribution rates 
for the next three-year period to ensure the future solvency of the Fund and 
to achieve long term cost efficiency.  
 

5.20 Throughout the year, training and regular updates on the valuation have 
been provided to Pensions Committee and Pension Board members.  
 

5.21 All employers have been advised of the outcome of the valuation including 
details of their employer contribution rates for 2023/24 through to 2025/26. 
Additionally, S151 Officers of the new Councils have agreed an interim 
measure for allocating assets and liabilities to permit the actuary to assess 
the employer contribution rate for each of the new Councils from 1 April 
2023 to March 2026. A full review of assets and liabilities of each Council will 
be conducted as part of the 2025 valuation. 
 

5.22 As part of the valuation feedback, Mercer Ltd will provide a climate change 
scenario analysis through the use of a broad range of scenarios and long-
range projections on how the climate crisis could impact funding and 
investments, from a rapid transition that limits warming to 1.5°C to a failed 
transition with warming above 4°C. Details of this scenario testing will be 
reported to Pensions Committee and Pension Board members as the 
information becomes available.  

 
5.23 The valuation is continuing to progress in line with the timetable originally 

presented to the Committee and is on schedule for formal sign off by the 
actuary on or before 31 March 2023. 

 
Training:  
 

5.24 Board Members continue to be notified of relevant training events (internal 
and external) as and when they arise, and they are encouraged to attend. In 
recognition of the anticipated change in the elected members sitting on the 
Pensions Committee and Board as a result of Local Government 

26



 

Reorganisation (LGR), three bespoke training sessions have already been 
provided to members of the two new Cumbria unitary councils during Q1 
2023.  These were open to and attended by some members of the Board. 
 

5.25 Guidance and training material can be accessed by Board Members via the 
link below to the dedicated Cumbria Local Pension Board Sharepoint site:- 
https://cumbria.sharepoint.com/sites/CLGPS/Shared%20Documents/Forms/
AllItems.aspx 
 

5.26 Training is covered further at agenda item 10 at today’s meeting. 
 

Membership: 

5.27 The Chair of the Board has indicated they will be stepping down from the 
role of Employee (member) Representative, representing Pensioners within 
the Scheme.  A selection process will be undertaken in accordance with the 
Board’s Terms of Reference to seek a replacement.  
 

5.28 Due to LGR in Cumbria, the current Administering Authority, Cumbria 
County Council, will cease to exist after 31 March 2023. Westmorland & 
Furness Council will become the Administering Authority of Cumbria 
Pension Fund, this has been set out in legislation via a Statutory 
Instruments. 
 

5.29 The Terms of Reference for the Board has therefore been updated to reflect 
the name and governance arrangements detailed within Westmorland and 
Furness Council’s newly approved Constitution The changes to the terms of 
reference are detailed at item 9 of today’s agenda. 
 

  
Fund Policies: 

5.30 It is a regulatory requirement that Fund Policy documents are kept up to 
date. In addition to updates when required throughout the year, it is good 
practice for the Pensions Committee to formally review all aspects of 
management and governance of the Cumbria Local Government Pension 
Scheme (LGPS) at least annually. A report was taken to the March 
Committee for approval incorporating all changes to existing policies (last 
published in November 2022) to reflect current circumstances and regulation 
changes in 2022/23.  
  

5.31 This report can be reviewed in its entirety at Appendix 3, with the main 
changes summarised below. The Fund Policy Document is not appended to 
this report in the interest of printing size and costs but is available to view in 
the Pensions Committee public pack at  
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s129244/Appendix%201%20
-%20Fund%20Policy%20Document%20ABRIDGED.pdf 
 

5.32 In light of the aforementioned changes arising as a result of LGR, the Fund 
Policy Document has been updated throughout to reflect the name and 
governance arrangements detailed within Westmorland and Furness 
Council’s newly approved Constitution and as such this document will 

27

https://cumbria.sharepoint.com/sites/CLGPS/Shared%20Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx
https://cumbria.sharepoint.com/sites/CLGPS/Shared%20Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s129244/Appendix%201%20-%20Fund%20Policy%20Document%20ABRIDGED.pdf
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s129244/Appendix%201%20-%20Fund%20Policy%20Document%20ABRIDGED.pdf


 

become effective from 1 April 2023. The existing Fund Policy document will 
remain in place until 31 March 2023. 

 
5.33 During the year there were a number of substantive changes to policies in 

the Fund Policy Document prior to this general review:  

• The Investment Strategy Statement was amended to update the 
narrative regarding the consideration of risks; 
 

• The Funding Strategy Statement was amended to include the 
revised parameters approved within the 2022 Actuarial Triennial 
Valuation; and 

 

• Internal Control and Risk Management Policy, wording was added 
to highlight a new Cyber Governance Strategy.  

 
5.34 Pensions Committee approved these changes in September 2022 and, 

following the conclusion of the required consultation with employers on the 
Funding Strategy Statement, the revised policies were adopted and 
published on the Fund’s website in November 2022.  
 

5.35 Subsequent to this a number of further changes were identified as 
appropriate and were approved by the Pensions Committee in March 2023.  
In addition to changes to reflect the aforementioned change in Administering 
Authority as a result of LGR, key changes include: 
 

• The Introduction (Section 1); Governance Policy Statement (Section 
2) and Investment Strategy Statement (Section 4) have been updated 
to incorporate the newly approved constitution of Westmorland and 
Furness Council in respect of the management arrangements of 
Cumbria Pension Fund; 

 

• The Administration Strategy & Communications Policy (Section) 3) 
has been updated to reflect the changes in terminology used by Local 
Pensions Partnership Administration (LPPA) following a transition to a 
new pensions administration system; and 

 

• The Training Policy & Plan (Section 9) has been fully updated to 
ensure continued compliance with tPR’s expectations for Member and 
officer training and its requirements in relation to acquiring and 
maintaining an appropriate degree of knowledge and understanding. In 
particular, it has been updated to reflect enhancements being made to 
the Fund’s induction programme in response to the significant number of 
new members that will undertake governance roles in relation to the 
Cumbria Pension Fund during 2023/24 as a result of LGR.  The Board’s 
training policy and plan is addressed along with all the Board’s policies 
at item 10 on today’s agenda. 

 
5.36 Border to Coast Pensions Partnership Ltd’s (BCPP) Responsible 

Investment Policy, Corporate Voting Guidelines and Climate Change 
Policy 
 

28



 

5.36.1 In line with good practice BCPP has undertaken an annual review of its 
Responsible Investment Policy, Corporate Voting Guidelines and Climate 
Change Policy.  The Policy and Guideline documents were considered by 
the BCPP Joint Committee at its meeting on 30 November. The Joint 
Committee supported taking the revised policies to partner funds for them to 
consider adoption of the principles for their own RI policies.    
 

5.36.2 In light of timings and resourcing and as the underlying principles set out in 
BCPP’s RI and Corporate Voting documents remain consistent with the 
Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement, these were reviewed by officers and 
the Chair of the Pensions Committee.  The review concluded that the 
changes (which are summarised in Appendix 4) do not materially alter the 
content of the documents. As such, as in previous years, the underlying 
principles set out in BCPP’s RI and Corporate Voting documents remain 
consistent with the Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement.  
 

5.36.3 The Board is asked to note the BCPP RI Policy, Corporate Voting Guidelines 
and Climate Change Policy which continue to be aligned with the underlying 
principles of the Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) i.e. the 
maximisation of the long-term return on the Fund’s investments within 
acceptable risk parameters (including, but not limited to, environment, social 
and governance (ESG) factors).  To minimise the size of the pack and 
printing costs the final published policies have not been included with these 
papers.  Instead they can be accessed via the following links: 
 

Responsible 
Investment Policy 

https://www.bordertocoast.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2023/01/Responsible-Investment-
Policy-2023-1.pdf 

Corporate 
Governance & Voting 
Guidelines   

https://www.bordertocoast.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2023/01/Corporate-Governance-
Voting-Guidelines-2023.pdf   

Climate Change 
Policy 

https://www.bordertocoast.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2023/01/Border-to-Coast-Climate-
Change-Policy-2023-1.pdf 

 

6.0 REGULATORY CHANGES  

6.1 This section of the report provides a summary for Members on recent and 
proposed future changes to legislation and regulations that will impact on the 
LGPS. 

29

https://www.bordertocoast.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/Responsible-Investment-Policy-2023-1.pdf
https://www.bordertocoast.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/Responsible-Investment-Policy-2023-1.pdf
https://www.bordertocoast.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/Responsible-Investment-Policy-2023-1.pdf
https://www.bordertocoast.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/Corporate-Governance-Voting-Guidelines-2023.pdf
https://www.bordertocoast.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/Corporate-Governance-Voting-Guidelines-2023.pdf
https://www.bordertocoast.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/Corporate-Governance-Voting-Guidelines-2023.pdf
https://www.bordertocoast.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/Border-to-Coast-Climate-Change-Policy-2023-1.pdf
https://www.bordertocoast.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/Border-to-Coast-Climate-Change-Policy-2023-1.pdf
https://www.bordertocoast.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/Border-to-Coast-Climate-Change-Policy-2023-1.pdf


 

McCloud Resolution 
 
6.2 As previously reported to the Board, work continues within the Department 

for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC), on the steps to rectify 
the McCloud discrimination as it affects the LGPS in England and Wales. It 
is expected that the Government will publish its response to this consultation 
and updated version of the draft regulations implementing the McCloud. The 
regulations are expected to be made later in 2023 and are scheduled to 
come into force on 1 October 2023.  
 

6.3 Pensions Committee and the Local Pension Board will continue to be 
advised when further information is available. 

Exit Payment Cap 
 

6.4 As previously reported to the Board, the Government intend to re-legislate to 
limit the amount public sector employers can pay to exit an employee from 
their employment. Officers are currently awaiting an update from 
Government on developments with the Exit Payment Cap and will brief the 
Pensions Committee and the Local Pension Board on the implications to the 
LGPS and the Fund when available. 
 
Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) 

6.5 In September the long anticipated consultation on the governance and 
reporting of climate change risks was published by DLUHC. As expected, 
the proposals set out in the consultation are broadly consistent with the 
requirements recently introduced in the private sector. Officers drafted and 
submitted a comprehensive response to this technical consultation by the 
required deadline of 24 November 2022. 

6.6 The Board will be advised further when the resulting regulations and 
guidance are issued and the implications of this for the Fund. 

Other Regulatory Changes 

6.7 There have been no further regulatory changes of note that affect the LGPS 
since the last meeting of the Board in October. However, there are a number 
of matters that the Fund is maintaining a watching eye on including: 

Pensions Regulator - Code of Practice 
 

6.8 As previously reported to the Board, the Pensions Regulator has consulted 
on a proposed new Code of Practice which consolidated 10 of the 15 
existing Codes of Practice (including CoP14 - Governance and 
Administration of Public Service Pension Schemes) into one new Code.  

6.9 Following this consultation, the Pensions Regulator is currently drafting 
revisions to the Code of Practice based on the responses received from the 
consultation. Pensions Committee and the Local Pension Board will be kept 
advised on developments in implementing this new Code. 
 
 

30



 

Pensions Dashboards 
 

6.10 The Pensions Dashboard Programme is aimed at providing individuals with 
a clear view of all their pension savings in one place. Legislation will ensure 
that Pension Funds connect to a Pension Dashboard so that people can 
view all of their pensions from various providers, including workplace 
pensions and state pensions in one place through a website or app. The 
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) has recently issued a written 
ministerial statement providing an update on the timeline for connecting to 
pensions dashboards. The statement explains that the Pensions 
Dashboards Programme (PDP) will be unable to meet the connection 
deadlines set out in legislation, and the timeline will need to be revised. The 
PDP is working with DWP to establish a new and achievable plan for 
delivery. The framework for dashboards will remain unchanged, but DWP 
will legislate to provide new connection deadlines. Previously the Fund was 
anticipating connecting to a dashboard by 30 September 2024. Further 
information on the revised timeline is not yet available but will be made 
available following agreement on PDP’s delivery plan and when this is 
known a further update will be provided to the Board. 

6.11 LPPA are preparing for the implementation of the Dashboards and ensuring 
they are appropriately resourced to manage this additional workload and the 
required enhancements to systems. The 2023/24 budget for LPPA, which 
was approved by Pensions Committee on 14 March 2023 as part of the 
Fund’s budget, includes specific allowance for the regulatory changes 
associated with the developments of the dashboard. 

Future meeting dates 

6.12 A schedule of all future meeting dates of both the Local Pension Board and 
Pensions Committee will be provided to Members as soon as it is available. 
 

7.0 OPTIONS 

7.1 To either note the work undertaken by the Cumbria Pensions Committee 
and the decisions made at their meeting on 14 March 2023 or request 
further information on the governance arrangements under which decisions 
were made by the Pensions Committee. 

8.0 RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 Improved governance aids the Fund in running efficiently and effectively, 
controlling costs and helps to achieve its actuarially defined investment 
returns.  Cost control and the investment performance of the Fund will have 
a direct impact on the funding level and therefore all employers’ contribution 
rates.  This will have an impact on the Fund Employers’ revenue budgets. 

 

31



 

9.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from the report. The information 
contained within the report is for the Board’s information. The Board’s 
function is to assist the Administering Authority in all aspects of the 
governance and administration of the LGPS. 
 

10.0 CONCLUSION 

10.1 The Board’s remit is to provide oversight of the governance of the Fund. To 
do this effectively the Board needs to be aware of the work undertaken and 
decisions made by the Pensions Committee, and of current issues and 
matters arising.  Access and ability to review all papers which demonstrate 
the governance structure surrounding decision-making processes help 
Board members provide assurance that the Fund’s governance is robust and 
fit for purpose. 

 
Jo Moore 
Interim Director of Finance (S151 Officer) 
 
31 March 2023 
  
 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1: Decisions made by the Cumbria Pensions Committee on 14 March 
2023. 
Appendix 2: Risk Register for Cumbria LGPS at March 2023. 
Appendix 3: Fund Policy Document Annual Review 
 
 
Electoral Division(s): All 
 

 
 

Executive Decision  No 

 

Key Decision  No 

 

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?   N/A 

 

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?  No 

 

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained? 

  N/A 

   

 

Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny? 
If so, give details below. 

 No 

  

 

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been 
undertaken? 

  N/A 

   

 

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?   N/A 

32



 

 
 
PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 
 
Decisions made by the Cumbria Pensions Committee on 14 March 2023 are 
included at Appendix 1. 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR 
 
Contact:  
Gill Welbourn, Technical Finance Officer – Pensions 07765 221527 
Finance Directorate 
Gill.welbourn@cumbria.gov.uk 

 
 

33

mailto:Gill.welbourn@cumbria.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



  Appendix 1 
 

 
 

CUMBRIA PENSIONS COMMITTEE DECISIONS: 14 March 2023 

 
PART I PAPERS 
 

Item 9 (pages 27-38): Update from the Cumbria LGPS Local 
Pension Board 

 
Pensions Committee resolved to:- 
 

1. Note the update from the Cumbria Local Pension Board 
 

 

Item 10 (pages 39-130): Fund Policy Document Annual Review 
 
Pensions Committee resolved to:- 
 

1. Approve the changes to the Introduction and Governance Policy Statements 
related to the new constitution of Westmorland and Furness; 
 

2. Approve the changes to the Administration Strategy and Communications Policy, 
related to the changes in terminology used by Local Pensions Partnership 
Administration (LPPA); 

 
3. Note that the Fund’s Stewardship Report 2021/22 has been assessed by the 

Financial Reporting Council (FRC) as meeting the requirements of the FRC’s UK 
Stewardship Code 2020;  

 
4. Approve the changes to the Investment Strategy Statement;  

 
5. Approve the updated Training Policy and 2023/24 Training Plan; and 

 
6. Note and approve the other minor amendments made throughout the Fund Policy 

Document. 

 

 

Item 11 (pages 131-216): Monitoring Report for the Quarter Ended 
31 December 2022 – Part 1 
 
Pensions Committee resolved to:- 
 

1. Delegate to the Senior Manager – Pensions & Financial Services (Deputy Section 
151 Officer - LGPS) full range of powers including taking all decisions, 
implementing decisions and acting as the authorised signatory for the Council 
where it is necessary to ensure the safe transfer of the Cumbria Pension Fund 
assets and pension administration activities from Cumbria County Council to 
Westmorland and Furness Council on the 1 April 2023;  
 

2. Receive and note the performance and monitoring of the Fund for the period from 
1 October 2022 to 31 December 2022;  

 

35



  Appendix 1 
 

 
 

3. Note issues arising relating to the governance of the Fund; and  
 

4. Note changes to the Border to Coast Pensions Partnership Ltd (BCPP) 
Responsible Investment Policy, Corporate Governance & Voting Guidelines and 
Climate Change Policy which continue to be aligned with the underlying principles 
of the Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement. 
 
 
 

Item 12 (pages 217-236): Draft Pensions Fund Business Plan & 
Administration Budget 2023/24 (Part 1) 
 
Pensions Committee resolved to:- 
 

1. Approve the draft Business Plan for 2023/24; and  
 

2. Approve the draft budget required to administer the Cumbria LGPS of £20.158m 
for 2023/24 (which has been constructed in support of the activities outlined in the 
Draft Business Plan).  

 
  

 

 

 CUMBRIA PENSIONS COMMITTEE: 14 March 2023 

 
PART 2 PAPERS 
 

Item 13 (pages 237-244): Draft Pensions Fund Business Plan & 
Administration Budget 2023/24 (Part 2) 
 
Pensions Committee resolved to:- 
 

1. Note the detailed 2023/24 budget for investment management fees as summarised 
in the 2023/24 Draft Business Plan and Administration Budget report presented in 
Part 1.  

 
 

Item 14 (pages 245-294): BCPP Budget & Strategic Plan and 
Related Shareholder Resolution(s) 
 
Pensions Committee resolved to:- 

 
1. Note the proposed BCPP Operating and Project Implementation budgets for 

2023/24 and Business Plan 2023-26; and 
 

2. Support the Chair of the Pensions Committee, in his capacity as the Council’s 
Shareholder representative for the Company, to authorise the vote to approve the 

36



  Appendix 1 
 

 
 

BCPP Strategic Business Plan for 2023-26 and the Operating and Project 
Implementation budgets for 2023/24. 
 
 

Item 15 (pages 295-300): Monitoring Report for the Quarter Ended 
31 December 2022 – Part 2 

 
Pensions Committee resolved to:- 

 
1. Receive and note the quarterly monitoring Part 2 items of the Fund for the period 

to 31 December 2022.  

 
 

 

Item 17 (pages 327-402): Cumbria LGPS Investment Sub Group 
Activity Report to March 

 
Pensions Committee resolved to:- 

 
1. Agree that, in recognition of the impact of exceptional market volatility on its 

weighting within the portfolio, the minimum of the allocation range for index linked 
gilts be temporarily decreased to 13% (in place of 14%) and that the Fund’s 
Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) be updated to reflect this temporary 
decrease. In addition, to note that should the lower end of the range be breached 
in coming months (ahead of the next Investment Strategy review), that Officers will 
progress incremental purchases of ILG’s in a planned and prudent manner to bring 
the allocation back within the target range;  
 

2. Approve that the Deputy Section 151 Officer (Pensions) be authorised to action the 
following Investment commitments:  

a) £70m to the BCPP Infrastructure fund Series 2b – this would form 
part of the Fund’s 12% long-term target strategic allocation to 
infrastructure equity (c.£371m at 31 December 2022);  

b) £30m to the BCPP Private Equity fund Series 2b – this would form 
part of the Fund’s 7% long-term target strategic allocation to private 
equity (c.£216m at 31 December 2022); and  

c) £200m to the BCPP Private Credit fund Series 2b – this would form 
part of the Fund’s 14% long-term target strategic allocation to 
private debt (c.£433m at 31 December 2022).  

 
3. Notes the activities of the Investment Sub Group from September to December 

2022;  
 

4. Notes the performance of the Fund over the quarter to 31 December 2022; and 
 

5. Agrees the proposed work programme of the Investment Sub Group for the next 
reporting period, including supporting the s151 Officer to continue planning and 
implementation of the changes required to enable the Fund to achieve the Target 
Investment Strategy, and also work associated with the development of Border to 
Coast Pensions Partnership’s UK Commercial Property (Real Estate) proposition.  

 

37



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 PENSION FUND RISKS   Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Target DOT  
 

CORPORATE RISK PROFILE 
(Risk Score = Likelihood x Impact) 

1 1.1. Information security arrangements 15 15 15 15 15  Impact 

Likelihood 

 
1 

Insignificant 

 
2 

Minor 

 
3 

Moderate 

 
4 

Major 

 
5 

Most severe 

5 
Very 

Likely 

     

4 
Likely 

 2.4 1.6   

3 
Possible 

 2.3 1.2; 3.3; 

3.4 

3.5 1.1 

2 
Unlikely 

 1.3; 1.7; 2.5 1.4; 3.2; 

2.7 

1.5; 2.2; 

3.1;  

 

1 
Very 

unlikely 

   2.6 2.1 

Summary of risk changes since 
last report to Pensions 
Committee 

Emerging Risks  

New risks added in Q4: 

▪ No new risks have been added to the 
risk register in Q4. 

Risks removed in Q4: 

▪ No risks have been removed from the 
register in Q4. 

Risk Score Changes in Q4: 

▪ The risk score associated with 
Pensions Administration Processes 
(Risk 1.2) has been increased to reflect 
the performance of LPPA. Whilst the 
service improved in Q3 (see section 
5.1 of the report) Officers will continue 
with enhanced monitoring and 
challenge of LPPA until improvements 
are sustained. Consequently the 
likelihood score has been increased 
from 2 “unlikely” to 3 “possible”. 

▪ Biodiversity loss: refers to the 
decline or disappearance of 
biological diversity, understood as 
the variety of living things that inhabit 
the planet and it can have direct 
human health impacts, affecting 
livelihoods, income and local 
migration. Biodiversity loss is 
considered to be caused by five 
primary drivers: habitat loss, invasive 
species, overexploitation 
(hunting/fishing), pollution and 
climate change associated with 
global warming. Although the scale 
and extent is not yet clear and could 
be influenced by many factors 
including future regulatory changes, 
the Cumbria Pension Fund 
recognise that biodiversity loss 
should be acknowledged as a key 
emerging risk. 

 

▪  
 

2 1.2. Pensions administration processes 6 6 6 9 6 
  

3 1.3. Scheme member communication 4 4 4 4 4  

4 1.4. Data quality 6 6 6 6 3  

5 1.5. Payment of contributions 8 8 8 8 8  

6 1.6. McCloud Judgement 12 12 12 12 9  

7 1.7 Scam Detection & Prevention 4 4 4 4 4  

8 2.1. Risk of significant regulatory breach 5 5 5 5 5  

9 2.2. Regulatory changes 8 8 8 8 8  

10 2.3. Financial irregularity 6 6 6 6 6  

11 2.4 Loss of key personnel 4 4 8 8 4  

12 2.5. Conflicts of Interest 4 4 4 4 4  

13 2.6 Operational interruption 4 4 4 4 4  

14 2.7 Local Government Reorganisation 6 6 6 6 6  

15 3.1 Investment performance 8 8 8 8 8  

16 3.2 Availability of investment opportunities 6 6 6 6 6  

17 3.3 Russian invasion of Ukraine 9 9 9 9 9  

18 3.4 Inflation 9 9 9 9 9  

19 3.5 Climate Change n/a n/a 12 12 12  

Appendix 2

39



 

CUMBRIA LGPS & PENSION BOARD RISK REGISTER (March 2023) 
 
1. Scheme Administration 
 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

1.1 Fund & 
LPPA  

 
Senior 
Manager  

 

Information Security 
Arrangements 
 
There is a risk that the Council 
will experience a significant 
information security incident. 
 
Caused by a concerted cyber 
attack on Council or LPPA 
systems, inadequate information 
security arrangements, lack of 
training, awareness or human 
error. 
  
Resulting in partial or total 
interruption to service delivery to 
scheme members, scheme 
employers, Fund Officers or 
LPPA.  
 
Disclosure of personal data or a 
data breach leading to financial 
penalties, liability claims and 
reputational damage.   
 

 

15 
(5x3) 

 
DOT 

 

 

 

 

15 
(5x3) 

 

  

Cumbria Pension Fund : 
 

• The County Council maintains a detailed 
Corporate Risk Register including the risk 
associated with Information Security 
Arrangements. The Fund adheres to the 
controls and measures in place detailed within 
the Corporate Risk Register. 

• All staff within the team have completed the 
Information Security and Data Protection e-
learning training which is renewed on an annual 
basis. All Members have received training on 
information security. 

• The Fund is compliant with the requirements of 
the Data Protection Act 2018 (DPA18). 

• Any data breaches by officers within the Fund 
are reported through the Council’s data breach 
processes and also recorded on the Fund’s 
breach register. 

 
Cumbria County Council (CCC) – Corporate Risk 

• In the event of systems being interrupted, the 
Council will implement the relevant Business 
Continuity Plan to ensure service continuity in a 
timely manner. 

• Information security controls within the Council 
have strengthened and have been 
independently assessed in the following  areas: 

• GDPR: ‘Substantial Assurance’ Internal 
Audit opinion Jun 2019 

• Cyber Security: ‘Reasonable Assurance’ 
Internal Audit opinion Jun 2019 

Cumbria Pension Fund:  

 
• All staff, elected Members and Pension 

Board members are required to complete 
on-line data security training with a new 
module launched for 2022/23. 

• AON have undertaken a review of the 
Fund’s cyber security and its readiness for 
a cyber incident and an action plan 
developed to address the findings from the 
review to further enhance cyber security 
arrangements.  

 
Cumbria County Council: 

• After 1 April 2023, ICT Services for the 
Fund will be hosted by Cumberland Council 
with a seamless continuation of information 
security / cyber security controls. 

• Annual Public Sector Network submission 
has been completed and the Council awaits 
the assessment and outcomes of this 
submission. 

• The annual ICT Health check commenced 
in November 2022. 

 
 
 

Appendix 2

40



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

• PSN: Annual independent PSN 
Accreditation confirmed on 5 May 2022 

• Air gapped (i.e. disconnected network) 
backup solution fully implemented. 

• All National Cyber Security Centre (NCSC) 
configuration guidance is adhered to where 
appropriate and assured as part of the PSN 
process. 

• All NCSC cyber monitoring tools are 
implemented. 

• In the event of a Cyber Attack the Administering 
Authority will notify the appropriate government 
agencies (including Action Fraud, National 
Cyber Security Centre (NCSC) and the 
Department for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities (DLUHC)) and their guidance will 
be adhered to. The Fund would never make 
any payment to a third party claiming 
responsibility for breaching the Fund’s security 
arrangements. 

 
Local Pension Partnership Administration 
(LPPA):  

• Cyber security risks and controls in place  

• Services backed up to tape every night and 
held off site. Disaster recovery plan is tested 
twice yearly.  

• Networks protected by fire walls to prevent 
unauthorised access. Intrusion Prevention 
Systems are in place and penetration tests are 
completed annually. 

• LPPA’s Cyber Essentials certification has been 
refreshed. 

• LPPA’s ‘Secure-Score’ has been implemented 
primarily delivered through:  

• Increased monitoring alerts and 
notifications of cyber security events, 

Appendix 2

41



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

through use of Microsoft Identity monitoring 
& Cloud Application Security tooling.  

• Introduction of control policies which 
manage detection of unsanctioned 
applications.  

• Reviews of administrative privileges & 
compliance to Multi Factor Authentication 
(MFA) Policies. 

1.2 Fund & 
LPPA 

Senior 
Manager 

Pensions’ Administration 
Processes 
 
There is a risk of delays in 
scheme members entering into 
pension or receiving other 
services from the Fund in an 
untimely manner.   
 
Caused by organisational 
restructure within LPPA, 
personnel changes and the need 
for retraining or reduced staffing 
levels. 
   
Resulting in customer 
dissatisfaction with the service, 
reputational damage and 
breaches of law or regulations.  

 

9 
(3x3) 

 
 

DOT 

 

Was: 
6 

(3x2) 

 

6 
(3x2) 

 
Formal agreement in place with Lancashire County 
Council for the discharge of pension administration 
functions through Local Pensions Partnership 
Administration (LPPA). This confirms Lancashire 
will exercise the same skill, care and diligence they 
would apply to the discharge of their own functions 
in relation to the administration of pensions. A 
similar arrangement is currently being developed for 
agreement between Westmorland & Furness 
Council and Lancashire County Council such that 
the existing arrangements continue after LGR 
vesting date. 
 
Formal quarterly meetings of LPPA and Cumbria 
LGPS officers to review and consider standards of 
service provision against LPPA internal 
performance targets. The Fund is currently 
undertaking enhanced monitoring due to the current 
poor performance against the agreed performance 
targets and in the period during and following the 
transition between pension administration software 
within LPPA. This poor performance has resulted in 
the “likelihood” risk score being increased in Q4 
from 2 (“unlikely”) to 3 (“possible”). 
 
Regular (at least quarterly meeting) of operational 
group and ongoing dialogue with officers at LPPA 
throughout the year. LPPA host an annual Client 

 
Officers continue to closely review LPPA 
performance specifically with regard to the 
experience received by scheme members.  
Officers are giving specific consideration to LPPA’s 
transition to a new software provider for pension 
administration services (“Project PACE”) 
implemented for Cumbria Pension Fund on 5 
December 2022. The Local Pension Board received 
a specific presentation on Project PACE from the 
Managing Director of LPPA in January 2022 with 
further updates being provided at each Board 
meeting. 
 
Regular meetings are currently being held between 
the Fund and LPPA to understand the risks that 
Project PACE may bring and how these are 
mitigated. In recognition of the risk 1.1 - Information 
Security Arrangements, Officers have requested 
further information on the security of data through 
the data transition from the current to the new 
pensions administration system. 
 
In recognition of the increased risk associated with 
pension administration processes, senior officers 
will take a more active role in managing the 
relationship between the Fund and LPPA. 
 
 

Appendix 2

42



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

Forum providing officers the opportunity to engage 
with representatives from other Funds. Next 
meeting scheduled for 28 February 2023. 
 
A Senior Manager from LPPA attends all Cumbria 
Local Pension Board meetings and provides an 
update on performance and areas for development.  
 
Internal audit assurance is provided annually by 
Lancashire County Council that internal controls 
with LPPA over the operation and administration of 
the pension fund’s data are adequate and effective. 
 
LPPA also maintains its own internal audit 
programme and advise Officers of the findings of 
these reports. 
 

 
 
 

1.3 Fund & 
LPPA 

Senior 
Manager 

Scheme Member  
Communication  
 
There is a risk that scheme 
members will not receive 
adequate and timely 
communication from the Fund. 
 
Caused by not having an 
effective Communication 
Strategy in place or engagement 
strategy or inaccurate / 
incomplete data 
 
Resulting in customer 
dissatisfaction with the service, 
reputational damage and 
breaches of law or regulations 
(e.g. the Pension Regulator’s 
Code of Practice 14). 

 
4 

(2x2)  
 

DOT 

 

 
4 

(2x2)  
 
 

 

 

 
The Fund’s Communication Policy details the 
process by which it will communicate with members 
of the Scheme. This policy is reviewed at least 
annually. 
 
The PensionPoint portal (previously ‘My Pension 
Online’ - MPO) is a key mechanism through which 
LPPA communicates with members and work is 
ongoing to increase the percentage of members 
signing up to this. 
 
LPPA have confirmed that 100% of 2022 Annual 
Benefit Statements were issued in advance of the 
statutory deadline of 31 August 2022. 
 

 
LPPA produce annual newsletters for active, 
deferred and pensioner members including details 
of the pension scheme and specific information of 
relevance to members.  
 
PensionPoint is being promoted by LPPA, the Fund 
and some Scheme employers to encourage take up 
of this online self-serve pensions tool. 
 
The Fund, with assistance from LPPA, will be 
writing to members during Q1 of 2023 to inform 
them how Local Government Reorganisation in 
Cumbria will affect them. The communications will 
be to active, deferred and pensioner members. 
 
Cumbria Pension Fund now has its own dedicated 
website which went live in November 2022. It 
contains information on the LGPS, as well as how 
the Fund is managed in Cumbria. Up to date 

Appendix 2

43



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

member news is also provided, as well as 
documents for members to download and links to 
useful websites such as LPPA. 

1.4 Employer
s and 
Fund 

Senior 
Manager 

Data Quality 
 
There is a risk that member data 
is incomplete or inaccurate. 
 
This could be caused by poor 
internal controls within the Fund 
and scheme employers with 
information not being passed to 
LPPA in a timely manner.  
 
This could result in having an 
adverse impact for scheme 
members such as through the 
late / inaccurate production of 
Annual Benefit Statements and 
may lead to increased 
complaints and appeals. 
Additionally this risk could 
impact upon estimates used 
within the Triennial Valuation of 
the Fund which then impacts 
onto employer contributions.  

 

6 

(3 x 2) 

DOT 

 

 

 

3 

(3 x 1) 

 
Internal audit work undertaken on LPPA controls to 
provide assurance that internal controls over the 
operation and administration Cumbria’s data are 
adequate and effective (annually). 
 
Monthly reconciliation by Officers of employer 
contributions to data submitted by employers. 
 
Quarterly LPPA key performance indicators include 
measures of timeliness of update of records. 
 
Employer responsibilities are set out in the 
Administration Policy and this is regularly reinforced 
by officers through a range of communication 
channels. 
 
Regular (quarterly) review of the Pensions 
Regulator’s Common Data and Conditional Data 
scores as included within LPPA’s quarterly report 
presented to each Pensions Committee and Local 
Pension Board. 
  
 

 
Planned improvements to data quality are reviewed 
and scrutinised on a quarterly basis by the Local 
Pension Board as requested by the Pensions 
Committee.  
 
The data cut for the 2022 valuation of the Fund 
(which determines the employer contribution rates 
for April 2023 to March 2026) was taken as at the 
end of June 2022 as planned and employers 
received their schedules detailing future employer 
contributions rates in November 2022. 
 

1.5 Employer
s & Fund 

Senior 
Manager 

 

Payment of contributions 

There is a risk that employers 
fail to pay contributions (or the 
correct level of contributions) 
into the scheme. 

This could be caused by 
employer error, business failure 

 

8 

(4 x 2) 

DOT 

 

8 

(4 x 2) 

 

 
Monthly monitoring of contribution payments by 
employer to ensure contributions received are 
timely and accurate. This reconciliation is 
considered as part of the annual audit process. 
 
Late payments are reported to Pensions Committee 
and the Local Pension Board at each quarterly 
meeting. 

 
Monitoring and reconciliation of contributions 
continue to be undertaken monthly and a full 
reconciliation is completed and checked as part of 
the year end process. 
 
Where appropriate, guarantees will be called in to 
ensure all contributions are appropriately collected 
by the Fund. 

Appendix 2

44



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

or the general impact of 
increases in employer 
contribution rates 

This could result in a financial 
loss the Fund which may impact 
on all other employers, and may 
constitute a breach reportable to 
the Pensions Regulator. 

  
New admission bodies to the Fund are required to 
be backed by a guarantee or a bond to secure both 
pension contributions and any net liabilities should 
an admitted body enter into bankruptcy or be 
otherwise unable to fulfil their obligations to the 
Fund. 
 
 

 
 

1.6 Employer
s & Fund 

Senior 
Manager 

 

McCloud Judgement 

There is a risk that the Fund is 
unable to adequately comply 
with required administration 
processes arising from the 
resolution of the McCloud 
judgement.  

This could be caused by 
employers not having historic 
employment data for affected 
members; LPPA not having 
appropriate resource to 
undertake the work; the Fund 
having insufficiently capacity to 
adequately review the results; or 
insufficient budget to fund the 
required project work. 

This could result in legal 
breaches reportable to the 
Pensions Regulator; incorrect 
pension entitlements being 
calculated for pensioners; and 
loss of credibility with scheme 
members and employers. 

 

12 

(3 x 4) 

DOT 

 

 

9 

(3 x 3) 

 

 
A consultation on the proposed resolution to the 
McCloud judgment was issued by MHCLG in July 
2020. A consultation on further draft amendments to 
the LGPS Regulations is expected early in 2023 
with the revised regulations scheduled to come into 
effect from 1 October 2023.  
 
The Fund is reviewing this risk with LPPA through 
its usual monitoring meetings and is making 
preparations for managing the additional workloads. 
 
The draft 2023/24 budget recommended to 
Pensions Committee includes an allowance for the 
additional cost associated with implementing 
McCloud. Associated software enhancements for 
McCloud have been paid for during 2022/23. 
 
 

 
The Fund will continue to ensure employers are 
appropriately briefed as to any additional 
information required from them and will be working 
closely with LPPA to identify what additional 
workload is required.  
 
Planned improvements will be reported to Pensions 
Committee and the Local Pension Board when 
there is greater clarity as to what is required from 
the Fund. 

Appendix 2

45



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

1.7 Employer
s & Fund 

Senior 
Manager 

 

Scam Detection & Prevention 

There is a risk that a Scheme 
Member could be the victim of 
fraud.  

This could be caused by the 
Scheme Member being 
exploited into transferring their 
pension from the LGPS to a 
bogus or unsuitable pension 
scheme.  

This could result in the Scheme 
Member losing their pension or 
being at financial loss. This 
could also result in the 
Regulator finding against the 
Fund and requiring it to make 
good the losses experienced by 
the Scheme Member.  

 

4 

(2 x 2) 

DOT 

 

4 

(2 x 2) 

 

 
The Fund complies with the Code of Good Practice 
and the Pensions Regulator’s guidance.  
 
Pension transfers requests are reviewed against a 
“Safe list” of pension providers, known to be 
legitimate, whilst ensuring the transfer is not to a 
cloned company. 
 
Due diligence checks and forms provided by the 
Local Government Association are used to request 
detailed due diligence for pension providers not on 
the Safe List. 
 
Where necessary LPPA will undertake further 
checks at Companies House, HMRC, checking the 
receiving pension provider’s Scheme rules. 
 
LPPA was the first organisation to join the Pension 
Scams Industry Group’s (PSIG’s) Pension Scams 
Industry Forum (PSIF). The forum is held on a 
monthly basis to share knowledge of schemes, 
companies and individuals of concern, and forms a 
“crucial part” of the work undertaken by PSIG. The 
forum is used to help identify and track the 
techniques and approaches of scammers and how 
they are evolving. Findings from the forum are 
shared with regulators and the police through 
representation on Project Bloom. 
 
The Fund’s annual newsletter to scheme members 
included specific sections on scam awareness and 
cyber security. 
 

 
The existing procedures are considered appropriate 
to mitigate the risk of a scheme member being the 
victim of fraud through the transfer out of their 
pension.  
 
 

 

Appendix 2

46



 

2. Governance & Regulation 
 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

2.1 Fund 

 
Senior 
Manager  

 

Risk of Significant Regulatory 
Breach 
 
There is a risk that the Fund 
commits a serious regulatory 
breach.  
 
This could be caused by the Fund 
failing to advise the Regulator of 
regulatory matter (e.g. reporting a 
breach, submitting the Scheme 
Return) or failing to implement 
new regulations. 
 
This could result in intervention by 
the Pensions Regulator and a 
detrimental effect to the service 
being provided to scheme 
members and employers. It could 
also result in serious reputational 
implications for the Fund and 
potentially a financial penalty. 
 

 

5 
(5x1) 

 
DOT 

 

 

 

5 
(5x1) 

 

 
The Fund is appropriately resourced with well 
trained and knowledgeable staff who understand 
their regulatory obligations to the Pensions 
Regulator and other statutory bodies. 
 
Key processes are documented mitigating the risk 
of loss of knowledge from key staff leaving or being 
unavailable. 
 
The Senior Manager ensures that staff take the time 
to consider upcoming deadlines and prioritise 
workloads accordingly. 
 
The Fund has good contacts with other LGPS 
Funds, the LGA, CIPFA and other bodies to ensure 
that it is aware of changing regulations and their 
impact to the Fund. 
 
The Pensions Committee and Local Pension Board 
are advised on new regulations and emerging 
issues at each meeting.  
 
 

 
Officers will continue to “horizon scan” to 
understand emerging issues that may have an 
impact on the future of the Fund. Where 
appropriate, the Pensions Committee and Local 
Pension Board will continue to be appraised of any 
emerging issues.  
 
Earlier in 2022, the Fund undertook its annual 
assessment of training needs for each Member. 
The results of this assessment informed the 
2022/23 Training Plan for the Fund approved by 
Pensions Committee in March 2022 and the Local 
Pension Board in April 2022.  
 
Officers will arrange for training to be available to all 
members (including substitutes) of the Pensions 
Committee and Local Pension Board throughout the 
year to ensure that Members have the appropriate 
skills and knowledge to take informed decisions at 
each meeting. 
 
This will also be included in a training package 
offered to all elected Members of Cumberland 
Council and Westmorland & Furness Council in 
February/March 2023. The training plan for 2023/24 
will be further developed once the new Committee 
is agreed and training needs are identified.  

2.2 Fund 
 
Senior 
Manager 

Regulatory Changes 
 
There is a risk that the LGPS is 
mandated to invest in particular 
markets or risks that may 
otherwise impact onto the 
sovereignty of the Fund. 

 

8 

(4 x 2) 

 

8 

(4 x 2) 

 
Officers of the Fund respond to government 
consultations where relevant to help influence 
policy. 
  
Where relevant, the Fund will support lobbying or 
lobby directly to ensure that its voice is heard in the 

 
Officers of the Fund will continue to monitor the 
LGPS environment to be aware of any potential 
changes to the scheme.  
 
Where appropriate, officers will draft responses to 
consultations affecting the Fund and, where 

Appendix 2

47



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

 
This may be caused by 
government policy or 
amendments to regulations. 
 
This may result in the funding 
level of the Fund being affected 
which could materially impact 
employer contributions. 
 

DOT 

 

development of national policy. 
 
Officers within the Fund ensure that they are aware 
of impending amendments to regulations and 
advise Pensions Committee and the Local Pension 
Board (and, where relevant, employers and scheme 
members) in a timely way as to any amendments 
and their impact to the Fund. 

possible, consult with the Chair of the Pensions 
Committee before submission. 
 
 

2.3 Fund 
 
Senior 
Manager 

Financial Irregularity 

There is a risk of fraud, fraudulent 
behaviour, or unintentional 
overpayments. Additionally, there 
is the risk of financial loss due to 
corporate activities in companies 
that the Fund has equity holdings 
in. 
 
This may be caused by fraudulent 
activity unintentional 
overpayments, or 
misunderstanding. 
 
Failure to address financial 
irregularity may result in a 
financial loss to the Fund and 
scheme employers, as well as 
reputational damage to the 
Council. 

 

6 

(2 x 3) 

DOT 

 

 

6 

(2 x 3) 

 
Fraudulent Activity – Active participation in the 
National Fraud Initiative (NFI) reduces likelihood of 
unidentified deaths and fraudulent pension claims. 
 
Segregation of duties and a delegated scheme of 
authority minimises the risk of fraud within the Fund. 
 
Unintentional overpayments – The NFI activity 
may identify overpayments where no fraudulent 
activity has arisen, but a benefactor has 
unintentionally benefited from the Fund, e.g. 
payments continuing to be made to a widow(er) 
following the death of their partner. In such 
instances, officers act compassionately whilst still 
protecting the assets of the Fund. 
 
Tax and class action recoveries – Fund has 
specialist providers for key recovery areas such as 
tax and class actions. 
 

 
In January 2023, Officers were advised through the 
NFI of 20 cases of the death of scheme members 
that were not previously known to the Fund. These 
cases are currently being reviewed by LPPA. 
 
Note: cases identified through the NFI do not 
necessarily constitute a fraud, but do represent 
areas where there is a discrepancy between the 
Fund’s information and data from the government 
agencies. 
 

2.4 Fund 
 
Senior 
Manager 

Loss of key personnel 
 
There is a risk that the Fund may 
lose key personnel. 
 

 

8 

(2 x 4) 

 

4 

(2 x 2) 

 
The Fund is appropriately resourced and has 
effective arrangements in place to cover for short 
term absence. Managers consider succession 
planning for key staff within the team. 

 
Council staff have been allocated to their new 
employer with effect from 1 April 2023. All staff 
working on the Pensions Fund will TUPE transfer to 
Westmorland & Furness (the new Administering 

Appendix 2

48



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

This risk could be caused by staff 
retiring, moving on or otherwise 
being on long-term absence. 
Similarly the risk could be 
impacted by turnover with 
Committee and Board 
membership. 
 
This could result in an erosion of 
skills and knowledge within the 
Fund 

DOT 

 

Formerly 

(2 x 2) 

 
A comprehensive skills needs assessment is 
undertaken each year for all Officers and members 
of the Pensions Committee and Local Pension 
Board and a training plan is developed to address 
any areas for improvement. 
 
Key processes are documented mitigating the risk 
of loss of knowledge from key staff leaving or being 
unavailable. 
 
The Fund has recourse to the independent 
expertise of two advisors and has the resource to 
procure additional external support as required. 
 

Authority for the Fund) and continue with their 
existing role from vesting date. Westmorland & 
Furness Council has agreed that existing working 
arrangements will continue and has agreed office 
sharing with Cumberland Council. This greater level 
of certainty about future employer and working 
arrangements help mitigate the risk of loss of staff of 
the Fund.   
 
There will be significant turnover in the Pensions 
Committee and some turnover in the Board 
membership on vesting day. It is possible that the 
new membership will have limited knowledge of the 
LGPS or wider pensions experience. The scoring of 
this risk was increased in Q3 to reflects this.  To help 
mitigate this risk a detailed training plan has been 
developed to ensure new members have the skills to 
make informed decisions for the Pensions Fund.  
This training plan will be reviewed once the 
membership of the Committee is identified. It is 
therefore anticipated that the scoring for this risk will 
be adjusted downwards once the training is 
materially complete. 
 

2.5 Fund  
 
Senior 
Manager 

Conflicts of interest 
 
There is a risk that conflicts of 
interest in the governance of the 
Fund may detrimentally affect 
decision making. 
 
This could be caused by those 
involved with the governance of 
the Fund being influenced by 
interests outside of the Fund. 
 
This could result in decisions 

 

4 

(2 x 2) 

DOT 

 

 

4 

(2 x 2) 

 
Pensions Committee:  All Committee members 
with voting rights have signed up to the Council’s 
Code of Conduct which covers registration of 
interests. Disclosure of interests is a standing item 
on the Pensions Committee agenda.  
 
Local Pension Board: all members have signed up 
to the Board’s Code of Conduct and Conflicts of 
interest policy (which are aligned to those of the 
Council). At each meeting, members are asked to 
disclose any changes to their situation. 
 

 
The existing procedures are considered appropriate 
to mitigate the risk of conflicts of interest but this 
position will be kept under review. 
 
Any potential conflicts of interest are declared at the 
commencement of each meeting and these are 
declarations are included in the minutes of each 
meeting.  
 
All members of the Local Pension Board and 
Pensions Committee are aware of how to manage 
potential conflicts. If there is doubt members of the 

Appendix 2

49



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

being taken that are detrimental 
to the Fund and/or financial loss, 
legal challenge or reputational 
damage. 
 

All interests are recorded and published on the 
Council’s website. 
 
If appropriate, legal advice can be sought as to any 
potential conflicts of interest within the Fund. 
 
 

Board and Committee may seek advice from the 
respective Chair or the Council’s Monitoring Officer. 
 
The Fund will review statutory guidance or 
amended Regulations arising from the Good 
Governance Review to ensure it continues to fully 
comply with its obligations to report on potential 
conflicts within the Fund. 
 

2.6 Fund & 
LPPA 
 
Senior 
Manager 

Operational Interruption 
 
There is a risk that an operational 
interruption may impact onto the 
Fund.  
 
This could be caused by IT failure 
/ fire / flood / extreme weather 
events significant staff absence 
etc. 
  
This could result in the Fund not 
being able to operate effectively. 
 

 

4 

(4 x 1) 

DOT 

 

 

4 

(4 x 1) 

 
CCC: Business continuity procedures are in place 
for the scheme manager (CCC). These are tested 
corporately in accordance with CCC policies and 
procedures. 
 
Administration (LPPA): 
LPPA have business continuity procedures in place 
for Pensions administration. These are reviewed by 
Lancashire County Council’s emergency planning 
services which provide a QA function by in respect 
of individual service plans. 
 
 

 
The existing procedures are considered appropriate 
to mitigate the risk of conflicts of interest but this 
position will be kept under review. Where 
weaknesses are identified, these will be addressed 
to improve the Fund’s preparedness for operational 
interruption. 
 

2.7 Senior 
Manager 

Local Government 
Reorganisation (LGR) 
 
There is a risk that LGR could 
have a significant impact on the 
sustained quality provision of the 
Cumbria Pension Fund until 31 
March 2023. 
 
This could be caused by 
increased workload pressures on 
key staff with key areas of work 
including identifying and 

6 

(3 x 2) 

 

6 

(3 x 2) 

 
Throughout the LGR process, the Fund is focussed 
on ensuring high quality provision is maintained 
through its most important services of: 

• Paying pensions; 

• Collecting contributions; 

• Appropriate investment of Fund assets; and 

• Adhering to regulatory requirements. 
 
Some non-essential activities e.g. responding to 
some consultations, have been scaled back whilst 
key staff are engaged in LGR activities. 
 

 
The existing procedures are considered appropriate 
to mitigate the risk of LGR having a significant 
impact on the quality of of the Cumbria Pension 
Fund. 
 
This position will be kept under review as vesting 
date approaches being particularly mindful as to the 
impact on workloads for key staff. 

Appendix 2

50



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

assessing options for the 
governance arrangements for the 
Fund post vesting date; and 
ensuring arrangements are in 
place for the continuation of key 
externally provided services e.g. 
banking and pensions 
administration. 
 
This could result in reduced or 
non-delivery of services impacting 
on service users 
 

Work is ongoing to ensure that Pensions Committee 
members in the new Administering Authority have 
the appropriate skills to understand the Fund and 
make informed decisions. 
 
Furthermore, the Constitution for Westmorland & 
Furness Council  - which sets out the role of the 
Pensions Committee and other governance 
arrangements affecting the Fund – was agreed by 
the Shadow Council on 23rd January 2023.  
 
Westmorland & Furness Shadow Council have 
approved the delegation of functions arrangement 
with Lancashire County Council (LCC) for pensions 
administration services. LCC then arrange for these 
services to be provided to the Fund by LPPA. This 
arrangement is broadly similar to that currently 
between Cumbria County Council (as the current 
Adminstering Authority) and LCC. 
 

 

 

Appendix 2

51



 

3. Investments 
 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

3.1 Fund 

Senior 
Manager 

Investment performance 
 
There is a risk that investment 
performance is lower than that 
assumed in the actuarial 
valuation. 
 
This could be caused by financial 
market performance being less 
than assumed and / or 
underperformance from 
Cumbria’s investment managers 
and / or environmental / social / 
governance issues impacting 
adversely on investments.  
 
This could result in a material 
increase in employer 
contributions at the next triennial 
valuation. 

 

8 

(4 x 2) 

DOT 

 

 

8 

(4 x 2) 

Investment Strategy: 

• The Fund has an Investment Strategy 
Statement (ISS), including its policy on 
responsible investing. 

• This outlines the Fund’s investment strategy, 
and how the investment risk and return issues 
have been managed relative to the Fund’s 
investment objectives 

• Adherence to the Fund’s Investment Strategy 
ensures that the assets of the Fund are 
invested in a diverse portfolio of investments. 
This helps to reduce the risk of market 
movement having a direct impact on the value 
of the Fund. 

• The Investment Strategy is regularly reviewed 
and advice taken from investment consultants, 
and the Fund’s independent advisors, working 
with the Actuary. 
 

Due Diligence on and monitoring of investments: 

• Potential new investments are closely 
scrutinised by officers and Fund Advisors to 
assess if the product meets the investment 
criteria of the Fund (including risk and forecast 
return).  

• Potential new investments are then proposed to 
Pensions Committee if above 5% of the Fund’s 
portfolio (or the Director of Finance in 
consulation with the Investment Sub Group if 
less than 5%) for further consideration and a 
funding decision. 

• The Fund’s investments are subject to regular 
monitoring, with Fund performance reported in 
detail to the Investment Sub Group and at a 
higher level to the Pensions Committee and 

 
A certain level of investment risk is needed to 
achieve the return needed to ensure employer 
contribution rates are affordable. 
 
The existing procedures are considered appropriate 
to mitigate the risk that market movement or 
investment failure may impact materially onto 
employer contribution rates. 
 

Appendix 2

52



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

Local Pension Board on a quarterly basis. 
 
Currency: 

• During 2021 the Fund – in conjunction with it’s 
Independent Advisors and an Investment 
Consultant (ISIO) - undertook a review of its 
approach to currency hedging.  This concluded 
that: 
o Public equity investments denominated in 

overseas currencies should be unhedged as 
it is considered preferable in terms of 
providing diversification during extreme 
market environments, and also in avoiding 
the inherent cost and governance burden 
involved in maintaining the hedge. 

o Active management of listed equity involves 
consideration of currency risk on overall 
return, and the rationale for hedging this 
element of the portfolio is less strong now 
that a substantial amount of the Fund’s 
listed equity is actively managed rather than 
passive. 

o The Fund hedges currency exposure on 
other lower risk assets where practical and 
possible. 

 
Responsible Investing (RI):  

• The Fund is committed to being a responsible 
owner and believes that RI, incorporating 
environmental, social and governance (ESG) 
factors into investment decisions, can help to 
improve the long term value for investors. 

• It considers it appropriate to have a diverse 
portfolio of assets that can maximise return 
whilst seeking to mitigate investment risks.  

• The Fund believes that the best way to be a 
responsible investor and to influence policy 

Appendix 2

53



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

change is not through divestment but through 
active engagement.  

• The Fund considers that, by exerting pressure 
as an investor, it can bring more influence on 
companies than it could by boycotting specific 
sectors from its investment strategy.  

• Actuarial tools:LGPS regulations provide Funds 
such as Cumbria with mechanisms to smooth 
changes to employer contribution rates for 
certain employers if required.  Further detail of 
this is set out in the Fund’s Funding Strategy 
Statement (FSS). 

 
Details of the Fund’s investments (including its 
approach to currency hedging, its FSS and its ISS) 
are provided in the Fund’s Annual Report available 
on-line.  

3.2 Fund 

Senior 
Manager 

Availability of Investments 
Opportunities 
 
There is a risk that there are 
insufficient opportunities available 
to the Fund to fully implement its 
investment strategy. 
  
This could be caused by Border 
to Coast Pensions Partnership 
Ltd (BCPP) not offering suitable 
sub-funds to enable the 
Investment Strategy to be 
implemented in a timely manner. 
 
This could result in the Fund not 
being able to fully implement the 
investment strategy in a timely 
manner. 

 

6 

(3 x 2) 

DOT 

 

 

 

6 

(3 x 2) 

 
The Investment Strategy Statement sets out the 
asset classes that the Fund is prepared to invest in. 
A revised strategy was approved by the Pensions 
Committee in December 2019 and this was 
subsequently updated in March 2021. 
 
The Fund is working with BCPP to ensure that 
appropriate sub-funds are available to be able to 
fully implement the current Investment Strategy.  
 
It has been recognised that some elements of the 
revised Strategy will take time to implement. It has 
therefore been agreed that, where target asset 
classes take time to invest, the amounts destined 
for these assets are temporarily invested in an 
interim strategy which more closely reflects the 
agreed target Strategy.  This will result in achieving 
a lower risk position more quickly.   
 

 
The existing relationship with BCPP is considered 
appropriate to mitigate the risk that insufficient 
investment opportunities will be available for the 
Fund to fully implement its Investment Strategy.  
 
 

Appendix 2

54

https://www.cumbria.gov.uk/elibrary/Content/Internet/536/654/1129/17170/17664/44530131117.pdf


 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

3.3 Fund 

Senior 
Manager 

Russian Invasion of Ukraine 
 
There is a risk that the Russian 
invasion of Ukraine creates 
turbulence in the investment 
markets and negatively impacts 
on assumptions used by the 
actuary as part of the 2022 
valuation which, in turn, could 
impact onto employer contribution 
rates payable to the Fund. 
 
This could be caused by global 
market turbulence having a 
significant negative effect on the 
Funding Value of the Fund and 
individual employers or by a 
review of assumptions used by 
the Actuary in calculating the 
2022 valuation. 
 
This could result in employer 
contribution rates increasing at 
the 2022 valuation or the Actuary 
proposing a mid-term adjustment 
to contribution rates before the 
2025 valuation. 
 

 

9 

(3 x 3) 

DOT 

 

 

 

9 

(3 x 3) 

 

 
In order to protect Fund solvency and the 
affordability of employer contribution rates, the Fund 
seeks to dampen investment risk and deliver stable 
investment returns over the longer-term by investing 
in a diverse portfolio of assets.  
  
The Fund’s direct holdings in Russia, Belarus and 
Ukraine are less than 0.1% of the Fund however the 
impact of Russia’s invasion of Ukraine may impact 
more widely on global investment markets, e.g. due 
to the impact on fuel and food prices.  
 
With the current controls and measures in place, it 
is not expected that there will be a material impact 
on the 2022 valuation, although the actuary does 
have the ability to amend the valuation based on 
any material impacts to markets up until the 
valuation is signed off on 31 March 2023. 
 
Officers are liaising on a regular basis with the 
Fund’s actuary to assess the potential impact of 
Russian invasion on the valuation of the Fund. 
Where appropriate, Officers would give an early 
warning to employers if it were considered that this 
would have a material impact on the 2022 valuation 
of the Fund. 
 

 
Following the results of the 2022 valuation, a review 
of the investment strategy will be undertaken to 
consider any amendments required to ensure it 
remains fit for purpose. This review will consider the 
impact of all global events at that time, including the 
impact of the Russian invasion of Ukraine.  
 
 

3.4 Fund 

Senior 
Manager 

Inflation 
 
There is a risk that increased 
inflation may impact on liabilities 
which could impact onto employer 
contribution rates payable to the 
Fund. 
 
This could be caused by a 

 

9 

(3 x 3) 

DOT 

 

9 

(3 x 3) 

 

 

• Investment strategy reviews held at least every 
three years consider inflation risks and 
protection from different asset classes. Index 
linked gilts provide protection. Some other 
assets have some inflation linkage e.g. 
property, infrastructure and debt.  

• Investment strategy is very diversified.  

• Actuarial valuation uses discount rate linked to 

 
Mitigations of the risk of high short-term inflation 
have been considered in the 2022 actuarial valuation 
including: 

- Allowance in liabilities for 2023 pension 
increase; 

- Review of assumption(s); and 
- Use of funding buffers to give greater 

stability in employer contribution rates.  

Appendix 2

55



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

forecast of sustained high levels 
of inflation both in the UK and 
globally having a significant 
negative effect on the Funding 
Value of the Fund and individual 
employers or by a review of 
assumptions used by the Actuary 
in calculating the 2022 valuation. 
 
This could result in employer 
contribution rates increasing at 
the 2022 valuation or the Actuary 
proposing a mid-term adjustment 
to contribution rates before the 
2025 valuation. 
 
In addition, there is a risk of 
divergence between assumed 
inflation in the actuary’s 
assumptions and actual inflation 
in the years following the 2022 
valuation. 
 
This would have the effect of 
increasing the Fund’s liabilities, 
thereby potentially impacting the 
funding position as well as the 
knock-on potential impact on 
employer contributions at or prior 
to the 2025 valuation. 
 

 

 

 

inflation to reduce short-term volatility of funding 
level and employer contributions.  

• Quarterly funding updates and regular liaison 
with Actuary.  

• Officers are liaising on a regular basis with the 
Fund’s actuary to assess the potential impact of 
inflation on the valuation of the Fund. They will 
also continue to monitor inflation and its 
potential impact going forward.  

• Officers would give an early warning to 
employers if it were considered that inflation 
would have a material impact on the 2022 
valuation of the Fund. 
 

 
 

 
Liability cashflow projections to be obtained from the 
Actuary during the 2022 actuarial valuation (including 
different inflation scenarios).  
 

3.5 Fund 

Senior 
Manager 

Climate Change  
 
There is a potential for Climate 
change to impact global financial 
markets and investment assets, 
impacting the value and 

 

12 

 

12 

(4 x 3) 

Investment Strategy: 

• Many of the current controls and measures in 
place detailed within Risk 3.1 (Investment 
Performance) are relevant to the Fund’s 
approach to managing the risk from Climate 
Change. 

 
The Fund responded to the DLUHC consultation on 
Governance and Climate Risk Reporting in 
November 2022. Regulations in response to this 
consultation are still expected to be published early 
in 2023. It is anticipated that these will require LGPS 

Appendix 2

56



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

investment performance of the 
Fund. 
 
Climate change risk can be 
grouped into two categories: 

• Physical risks arising from 
changes in weather that 
impact on the economy; and 

• Transition risks arising from 
the transition to a low carbon 
economy. 

 
Both of these could result in:  

• Financial market performance 
being less than expected and 
/ or underperformance from 
Cumbria’s investment 
managers; and 

• Societal and economic shifts 
towards a low-carbon future, 
which can be linked to policy 
and regulatory changes, 
technological risks and 
stranded assets – and 
ultimately lead to reputational 
and legal risks for the Fund.  
 

This could result in a material 
increase in employer 
contributions at the next triennial 
valuation. 

(4 x 3) 

DOT 

New Risk 

• The Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement and 
its Stewardship Report set out how the Fund 
incorporates Environmental, Social and 
Governance (ESG) factors including climate 
change into the investment process. 

• ESG factors, such as climate change can have 
a material impact on the value of financial 
assets in the long term. Being a responsible 
investor and incorporating ESG factors into 
investment decisions can help to improve the 
long-term value for investors. 

• The Fund considers it appropriate to have a 
diverse portfolio of assets that can maximise 
return whilst seeking to mitigate investment 
risks and it believes that the best way to be a 
responsible investor and to influence policy 
change is not through divestment or boycotting 
specific sectors but through active engagement.    

  

Funds to report in line with the Taskforce on Climate-
related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) 
recommendations.  The aim is to improve 
assessment, management and disclosures of both 
climate-related financial risks and opportunities.  
 
Pensions Committee will be advised when the 
regulations and related guidance are released and 
Committee will also be informed as to how the Fund 
plans to meet the new requirements. This is likely to 
include: 

• Reviewing the Fund’s governance 
arrangements to ensure they are fit for purpose 
in relation to assisting with the oversight of 
climate related risks and opportunities;  

• Carrying out climate-related scenario analysis; 
and 

• Reporting on appropriate climate-related 
metrics. 

 
The resulting increased level of disclosure of how 
the Fund’s assets will affect and be affected by 
climate change, will seek to ensure that the Fund 
understands and manages the financial risks and 
opportunities arising from climate change in order 
to protect and grow the Fund’s assets and 
cashflows.  

 

 
 
 

Appendix 2

57



 

Note: An upward arrow on the Direction of Travel represents an increase in the risk score since the previous quarter – hence either the potential impact or 
the likelihood of the risk occurring has increased. 
 
Similarly, a downward arrow on the Direction of Travel represents a decrease in the risk score since the previous quarter – hence either the potential impact or 
the likelihood of the risk occurring has decreased. 
 

 
 

Appendix 2

58



APPENDIX 3 

 

CUMBRIA PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

Meeting date: 14 March 2023 

From: Jo Moore, Interim Director of Finance (S151 
Officer) 

 
 

CUMBRIA LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME – FUND 

POLICY DOCUMENT - ANNUAL REVIEW 

 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY        

1.1 It is a regulatory requirement that Fund Policy documents are kept up 
to date. In addition to updates when required throughout the year, it is 
good practice for the Pensions Committee to formally review all 
aspects of management and governance of the Cumbria Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) at least annually. This report 
incorporates all changes to existing policies (last published in 
November 2022) to reflect current circumstances and regulation 
changes in 2022/23.  

1.2 Due to Local Government Reorganisation (LGR) in Cumbria, the seven 
current Councils covering Cumbria will be replaced by two new unitary 
councils from 1 April 2023 – Westmorland & Furness Council and 
Cumberland Council. The current Administering Authority, Cumbria 
County Council, will cease to exist after 31 March 2023. Westmorland & 
Furness Council will become Administering Authority of Cumbria 
Pension Fund from 1 April 2023. 
 

1.3 The Fund Policy Document has been updated throughout to reflect the 
name and governance arrangements detailed within Westmorland and 
Furness Council’s newly approved constitution and as such this 
document will become effective from 1 April 2023. The existing Fund 
Policy document will remain in place until 31 March 2023. 
 

1.4 During the year there were a number of substantive changes to policies 
in the Fund Policy Document prior to this general review:  

1.4.1 The Investment Strategy Statement was amended to update the 
narrative regarding the consideration of risks;  

1.4.2 The Funding Strategy Statement was amended to include the revised 
parameters approved within the 2022 Actuarial Triennial Valuation; 
and 

59



 

1.4.3 Internal Control and Risk Management Policy, wording was added to 
highlight a new Cyber Governance Strategy.  

1.5 Pensions Committee approved these changes in September 2022 and, 
following the conclusion of the required consultation with employers 
on the Funding Strategy Statement, the revised policies were adopted 
and published on the Fund’s website in November 2022.  

1.6 Subsequent to this a number of further changes have been identified 
as appropriate and are proposed for approval.  In addition to changes 
to reflect the aforementioned change in Administering Authority as a 
result of LGR, key changes include: 

1.6.1 The Introduction (Section 1); Governance Policy Statement (Section 
2) and Investment Strategy Statement (Section 4) have been updated 
to incorporate the newly approved constitution of Westmorland and 
Furness Council in respect of the management arrangements of 
Cumbria Pension Fund. 

1.6.2 The Administration Strategy & Communications Policy (Section) 3 
has been updated to reflect the changes in terminology used by 
Local Pensions Partnership Administration (LPPA) following a 
transition to a new pensions administration system. 

1.6.3 The Training Policy & Plan (Section 9) has been fully updated to 
ensure continued compliance with tPR’s expectations for Member 
and officer training and its requirements in relation to acquiring and 
maintaining an appropriate degree of knowledge and understanding. 
In particular, it has been updated to reflect enhancements being 
made to the Fund’s induction programme in response to the 
significant number of new members that will undertake governance 
roles in relation to the Cumbria Pension Fund during 2023/24 as a 
result of LGR. 

2.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 The Fund must maintain and publish Fund Policies. Robust 
governance arrangements help to ensure good management of the 
Fund and help contribute to investment performance.  Investment 
performance will have a direct impact on the funding level of the Fund 
and therefore the employers’ contribution rates.  This will in turn 
impact on the Fund employers’ revenue budgets. 

2.2 Each policy will be subject to an individual equality impact assessment 
as it is considered. There are no additional equality implications arising 
out of the recommendations of this report. 

3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

It is recommended that Members: 

60



 

3.1 Approve the changes to the Introduction and Governance Policy 
Statements related to the new constitution of Westmorland and 
Furness; 

3.2 Approve the changes to the Administration Strategy and 
Communications Policy, related to the changes in terminology used by 
Local Pensions Partnership Administration (LPPA); 
 

3.3 Note that the Fund’s Stewardship Report 2020/21 has been assessed 
by the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) as meeting the requirements 
of the FRC’s UK Stewardship Code 2020;  
 

3.4 Approve the changes to the Investment Strategy Statement;  

3.5 Approve the updated Training Policy and 2023/24 Training Plan; and 

3.6 Note and approve the other minor amendments made throughout the 
Fund Policy Document. 

4.0 BACKGROUND 

4.1 Management and governance of the Cumbria LGPS consists of two main 
elements –  

• managing the investments of the Fund, and 

• administration i.e. dealing with Fund members and participating 
employers. 
 

4.2 The Pensions Regulator code of practice no. 14 – Governance and 
Administration of Public Service Pension Schemes (the public service code) 
was first issued in April 2015.  The code provides scheme managers (the 
local Administering Authority) and pension board members with a summary 
of their key governance and administration duties, standards of conduct and 
practice expected in relation to those duties. 
 

4.3 The code contains practical guidance in four core areas of fund governance 
and administration: governing your fund, managing risks, administration and 
resolving issues. This guidance has been considered when undertaking the 
annual review of the Fund Policies to ensure they comply with the code and 
meet the standards expected by the Regulator.  
 

4.4 Due to the forthcoming implementation of the Pensions Regulator’s new 
single Code of Practice, anticipated in the coming months.  Whilst the new 
Code, is still in draft format, where appropriate it has been during this review; 
for example, it is expected to increase expectations and standards in a 
number of areas including knowledge and skills and this is reflected in the 
new Training Policy 

Changes to Policy Documents: 

4.5 Due to Local Government Reorganisation (LGR) in Cumbria, the seven 
current Councils covering Cumbria will be replaced by two new unitary 
councils from 1 April 2023 – Westmorland & Furness Council covering the 

61



 

existing areas of Barrow, Eden and South Lakeland, and Cumberland 
Council covering the existing areas of Allerdale, Carlisle and Copeland. The 
current Administering Authority, Cumbria County Council, will cease to exist 
after 31 March 2023. Westmorland & Furness Council will become the 
Administering Authority of Cumbria Pension Fund, and this has been set out 
in legislation via a Statutory Instrument. 
 

4.6 The Fund Policy Document has been updated throughout to reflect the name 
and governance arrangements detailed within Westmorland and Furness 
Council’s newly approved constitution and as such this document will 
become effective from 1 April 2023. The existing Fund Policy document will 
remain in place until 31 March 2023. 
 

4.7 The Fund Policy document provides an up to date repository of the Fund’s 
policies and as such it is updated when required throughout the year.  
During the year there were a number of substantive changes to policies in 
the Fund Policy Document prior to this general review:  
 

• The Investment Strategy Statement was amended to update the 
narrative regarding the consideration of risks;  

• The Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) was amended to include the 
revised parameters approved within the 2022 Actuarial Triennial 
Valuation; and 

• Wording was added to the Internal Control and Risk Management Policy 
to highlight a new Cyber Governance Strategy. The strategy captures 
the mitigations the Fund has in place for the management of its most 
significant risk (Information security arrangements), however due to the 
confidential content, the strategy is not published. 

 
4.8 Pensions Committee approved these changes in September 2022 and, 

following the conclusion of the required consultation with employers on the 
FSS, the revised policies were adopted and published on the Fund’s website 
in November 2022.  
 

4.9 In addition to ongoing review throughout the year, in accordance with best 
practice the Fund Policy document is also subject to a formal annual review.   
This report summarises the outcome of this formal annual review process.  
The proposed amended Fund Policy document is set out at Appendix 1 and 
a summary of proposed amendments is set out below.   
 

4.9.1 In the main, the proposed changes to the document are set out as 
highlighted text.  However, due to the scale of changes to the following 
policies, the amendments have not been highlighted to allow for a full 
review:  

• Introduction; 

• Governance Policy Statement; and 

• Training Policy and Plan.         
 

4.9.2 Where the changes are of a routine, minor or correctional nature, the 
changes have not been highlighted, for example: 

• to reflect the change from Cumbria County Council to Westmorland 
and Furness Council as the administering authority of the Fund, 

62



 

• to reflect the change to the financial year, and 

• to correct spelling, grammar or punctuation etc. 
 

4.10 This report seeks agreement for these changes. Where a section of the 
document has not been amended (other than for routine or minor changes 
as described at 4.9.2 above), this has been stated in the list below.  
 

4.11 Introduction: This has been updated to incorporate a summary of the newly 
approved constitution of Westmorland and Furness Council in respect of the 
management arrangements of Cumbria Pension Fund. 
 

4.12 Governance Policy Statement: This has been updated to incorporate a 
summary of the newly approved constitution of Westmorland and Furness 
Council in respect of the management arrangements of Cumbria Pension 
Fund.  
 

4.13 Administration Strategy & Communications Policy: This has been 
updated to reflect the changes in terminology used by Local Pensions 
Partnership Administration (LPPA) who provide administration services for 
the Cumbria Pension Fund, following a transition to a new pensions 
administration system.  

 
4.14 Investment Strategy Statement (ISS): This has been updated to 

incorporate aspects of the newly approved constitution of Westmorland and 
Furness Council in respect of the management arrangements of Cumbria 
Pension Fund, specifically the Investment Sub Group.  

 
4.15 It has also been updated to note that the Fund’s Stewardship report 2021/22 

has once again been assessed by the FRC as meeting the requirements of 
‘the Code’. As such Cumbria Local Government Pension Scheme is listed as 
a signatory to ‘the Code’ and can now utilise the following logo: 
 

 
 

4.16 In addition, changes have been made to include details two temporary 
changes to the Investment Strategy Advisory Ranges for asset classes that 
are detailed to Members in the Investment Sub Group Activity report at item 
17 of today’s agenda.  
 

4.17 Cash Investment Policy: The amendments made are minor to update the 
values of the cash holding limit figures as at December 2021. 
 

4.18 Funding Strategy Statement (FSS): There have been no material 
amendments made to this policy, therefore this policy has not been included 
in the appendix to minimise pack size and reduce printing costs. 
 

63



 

4.19 Admissions & Termination Policy: This has been updated to reflect details 
of the 2022 actuarial valuation, the amendments are not material and 
therefore this policy has not been included in the appendix to minimise pack 
size and reduce printing costs. 
 

4.20 Discretions Policy: There have been no material amendments made to this 
policy, therefore this policy has not been included in the appendix to 
minimise pack size and reduce printing costs. 
 

4.21 Training Policy including the 2023/24 Learning Programme: The training 
policy has been subject to a more detailed review this year primarily due to 
the forthcoming implementation of the Pensions Regulator’s new single 
Code of Practice, anticipated in the coming months.  The new Code, whilst 
still in draft format, is expected to increase expectations and standards in a 
number of areas including knowledge and skills.  The new Policy includes a 
commitment to develop a ‘Member Handbook’ which will contain key 
information for the Fund which should be a useful reference document for all 
Committee and Board members, but specifically for those new to the 
Cumbria Pension Fund.    

4.22 The Policy also introduces the concept of a ‘Pensions Knowledge Library’, 
an on-line portal for sharing useful information for Committee and Board, 
including confidential material.  The Fund currently uses such a portal for 
Pension Board members and the intention is to expand this further.  In the 
meantime, various Fund documents including policies, are available on the 
Fund’s website https://www.cumbriapensionfund.org/.    

4.23 The Policy also includes the annual learning programme for 2023/24. Given 
Local Government Reorganisation, significant training has already been 
provided to members of the two new Cumbria councils during Q1 2023.  The 
details of learning programme for the coming financial year will be developed 
further once the members of the new Committee and Board are appointed.  

4.24 The main areas of focus identified as priorities for the initial Learning 
Programme for both the Committee and the Board in the coming year are 
shown below. 

Training Topics 

Regulatory framework relating to the Pensions environment and the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (‘the Scheme’). 

Administration and rules of the Scheme, it’s Funding and governing bodies.    

Governance arrangements of the Scheme, and how this works within a Local 
Authority environment. 

Regulations relating to Investments of the Scheme, Investment Strategy and 
LGPS Pooling. 

Cumbria Pensions governance structure, including conflicts of interest, 
Policies such as the training policy, the role of the Board, reporting of 
breaches and other compliance reporting requirements. 

Cumbria’s Pension Administration provider Local Pensions Partnership 
Administration (LPPA), arrangements for the service provision and oversight, 

64

https://www.cumbriapensionfund.org/


 

Training Topics 

internal roles vs LPPA including current and forthcoming issues. 

Review of the Fund’s current Asset Allocation, basic funding information, roles 
of the Fund’s Advisors, Consultants, Officers and Members including the 
Investment Sub Group (ISG). 

LGPS Pooling, our pool Border to Coast Pensions Partnership (BCPP), the 
Fund’s role as both Shareholder and Customer, including the oversight and 
governance of BCPP. 

Stewardship Reporting including ESG (Environmental, Social and Governance 
factors) including the role of BCPP and our membership of LAPFF (Local 
Authority Pension Fund Forum) 

Current Investment related issues including Inflation, a review of the 
Investment Strategy, possible transition of BCPP UK Direct property to BCPP 
and increased climate reporting requirements.  

The implications of the resolution to the McCloud age discrimination case and 
the expected Cap on Exit payments for the public sector schemes and 
specifically the Cumbria Pension Fund (once both sets of regulations have 
been finalised). 

The implications for the Fund of the Pension Regulator’s Consolidated Code 
of Practice (once it has been finalised). 

The implications of the LGPS Governance and Climate Risk Reporting 
regulations and statutory guidance (once it has been finalised). 

 
4.25 The summary above is not an exhaustive list; in addition to the topics noted 

above learning opportunities will be arranged as required on any emerging 
issues which arise throughout the year. These may include updates to the 
governance of the LGPS arising from the implications any legislative or 
regulatory amendments that may arise. 
 

4.26 The complete updated Training Policy and Plan has been included in the 
Fund Policy Document without any highlighting to allow for a full review. 
 

4.27 Policy and Procedure for Reporting Breaches of the Law: There have 
been no material amendments made to this policy, therefore this policy has 
not been included in the appendix to minimise pack size and reduce printing 
costs. 

4.28 Internal Control & Risk Management Policy: There have been no 
amendments made to this policy other than to include the most up to date 
example of the risk register, presented to Members at item 11 of today’s 
agenda. This policy has not been included in the appendix to minimise pack 
size and reduce printing costs 

5.0 OPTIONS 

5.1 Members of the Pension Committee may decide to:  

65



 

5.1.1 Accept the proposed amendments to the Fund Policies,  

5.1.2 Ask Officers for further information, or  

5.1.3 Consider and propose further amendments to the document. 

6.0 RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 Achieving value for money should be and is an objective considered for the 
Cumbria LGPS as part of all policy reviews. Clearer, less bureaucratic 
policies and procedures aid in reducing administration costs. Additionally, 
adherence to regulatory and legislative requirements avoids potential 
expensive investigatory procedures and fines. 

7.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

7.1 The Administering Authority (i.e. the County Council) has various regulatory 
responsibilities to maintain and review policies in relation to its investment 
strategy and administration of the pension fund.  It is the responsibility of the 
Pensions Committee to consider and determine proposed changes to 
pensions policies.   

7.2 Under Part 2H of the Constitution 2.2 (f) provides that the Committee 
annually review (as a minimum) and approve any amendments to the 
statutory policy statements as required by Local Government Pension 
Scheme Regulations. 

7.3 Under Part 2H of the Constitution 2.2 (g) provides that the Committee should 
annually review the Investment Strategy Statement and oversee the 
performance of all investment managers in the delivery of the Investment 
Strategy. 

7.4 Under Part 2H of the Constitution 2.2 (i) provides that the Committee should 
produce and maintain an Administration and Communications Policy for the 
Pension Scheme for the admission of employing bodies as contributors to 
the Scheme; that fulfils all communication and consultation requirements 
with employers of the Scheme. 

7.5 Under Part 2H of the Constitution 2.2 (k) provides that it is a function of 
Pensions Committee to approve and annually review the Pension Fund's 
training policy to ensure those charged with the management of the Fund 
(members and officers of the County Council) are appropriately experienced 
and qualified. 

8.0 CONCLUSION 

8.1 Effective and up to date Fund Policies demonstrate the good governance of 
the Fund and helps members, employers, the administration providers 
(LPPA) and the Administering Authority work together to fulfil their 
responsibilities in administering the Fund. 

66



 

 
Jo Moore 
Interim Director of Finance (S151 Officer) 
 

14 March 2023 
  
 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1: Fund Policy Document March 2023 – effective from 1 April 2023 
 
Electoral Division(s): All 

 

Executive Decision  No 
 

Key Decision  No 
 

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?   N/A 
 

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?  No 
 

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained? 

  N/A 

   
 

Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny? 
If so, give details below. 

 No 

  
 

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been 
undertaken? 

 No  

   
 

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?  No  

   
 

N.B. If an executive decision is made, then a decision cannot be implemented until the 
expiry of the eighth working day after the date of the meeting – unless the decision is 
urgent and exempt from call-in and necessary approvals have been obtained. 

 
PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 
 

No previous relevant decisions 
 
REPORT AUTHOR 
 

Contact: Lucy Taylor, Finance Manager - Pensions, Investments & Governance, 
Pensions & Financial Services, Finance Directorate 
(01228) 226279   
lucy.taylor@cumbria.gov.uk 
 

67

mailto:lucy.taylor@cumbria.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

CUMBRIA LOCAL PENSION BOARD 

Meeting date: 31 March 2023 

From:  Jo Moore, Interim Director of Finance (S151 
Officer) 

 
 
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR CUMBRIA LGPS LOCAL 

PENSION BOARD 

 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The role of the Board is to assist the Administering Authority in all 
aspects of the governance and administration of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (LGPS). 

1.2 Due to Local Government Reorganisation (LGR) in Cumbria, the seven 
current Councils covering Cumbria will be replaced by two new unitary 
councils from 1 April 2023 – Westmorland & Furness Council and 
Cumberland Council. The current Administering Authority, Cumbria 
County Council, will cease to exist after 31 March 2023. Westmorland & 
Furness Council will become Administering Authority of Cumbria 
Pension Fund from 1 April 2023. 
 

1.3 Westmorland and Furness Council approved their Constitution in 
January 2023 and as detailed in item 8 on today’s agenda the Fund’s 
Policy document has been updated to incorporate that newly approved 
Constitution in respect of the management arrangements of Cumbria 
Pension Fund. 
 

1.4 The approved Constitution contains the main aspects of governance 
relating to the Board such as ‘Composition’ and ‘Functions’ etc.  It is 
proposed that the Board’s Terms of Reference includes this along with 
further detail in relation to its governance.  Like the Constitution, the 
Terms of Reference would be effective from 1st April 2023. 
 

1.5 Many of the aspects of governance are similar to those in the current 
terms of reference for the Board as detailed at agenda item 2, however 
there are two key changes: the inclusion of an ‘independent member 
(non-voting) who shall be appointed as Chair of the Pension Board’; 

69

Agenda Item 9



 

and the Vice Chair being elected annually by the voting scheme 
member and scheme employer representatives. 

2.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 The purpose of the Fund is to pay Cumbria LGPS members’ pension 
benefits in accordance with regulations and in a secure, affordable and 
sustainable manner over the short, medium and long term. To do this, 
the Fund seeks to:  
• ensure that sufficient resources are available to meet all liabilities 

as they fall due;  
• manage employers’ liabilities effectively and enable employer 

contribution rates to be kept at a reasonable and affordable cost to 
the taxpayers and the scheduled, resolution and admitted bodies;  

• achieve and maintain Fund solvency and long term cost efficiency, 
which should be assessed in light of the profile of the Fund now 
and in the future; and  

• maximise the returns from investments within reasonable risk 
parameters taking into account the above aims.  

 
2.2 Good governance and risk management will aid the Fund in ensuring 

its regulatory responsibilities are met, a good service is provided to 
scheme members, costs are controlled, and its required investment 
return is achieved. Cost control and the investment performance of the 
Fund will have a direct impact on the funding level and therefore all 
employers’ contribution rates. This will have a direct impact on the 
Fund Employers’ revenue budgets. 

3.0 RECOMMENDATION 

The Board is recommended to:  

3.1 Note and agree the updated Terms of Reference for the Cumbria Local 
Pension Board, to be effective from 1 April 2023. 

3.2 Note the proposed process for the appointment of an ‘independent 
member (non-voting) who shall be appointed as Chair of the Pension 
Board’. 

4.0 BACKGROUND 

4.1 In 2015, to assist in the establishment of LGPS Local Pension Boards the 
LGPS Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) developed guidance on the creation 
and operation of Local Pension Boards for Administering Authorities. This 
guidance indicated that Administering Authorities should create terms of 
reference for their Boards on the basis that the Board is a stand alone body, 
and to set out the rules or how it will operate on a day to day basis. The 
guidance detailed a list of elements that a Board’s terms of reference should 
include. 

70



 

4.2 Due to Local Government Reorganisation (LGR) in Cumbria, the seven 
current Councils covering Cumbria will be replaced by two new unitary 
councils from 1 April 2023 – Westmorland & Furness Council covering the 
existing areas of Barrow, Eden and South Lakeland, and Cumberland 
Council covering the existing areas of Allerdale, Carlisle and Copeland. The 
current Administering Authority, Cumbria County Council, will cease to exist 
after 31 March 2023. Westmorland & Furness Council will become the 
Administering Authority of Cumbria Pension Fund, and this has been set out 
in legislation via a Statutory Instrument. 

4.3 Westmorland and Furness Council approved their Constitution in January 
2023 which included a section detailing the basic governance arrangements 
for Cumbria Local Pension Board. As detailed in item 8 on today’s agenda 
the Fund’s Policy document has been updated to incorporate that newly 
approved Constitution in respect of the management arrangements of 
Cumbria Pension Fund 

4.4 The approved Constitution contains the main aspects of governance relating 
to the Board such as ‘Composition’ and ‘Functions’ etc.  For further clarity 
and in consideration of the SAB’s guidance, it is proposed that the Board’s 
Terms of Reference is a more detailed document which mirrors the 
Constitution and also provides further detail of the Board’s governance 
arrangements.  Like the Constitution, the Terms of Reference would be 
effective from 1st April 2023. 

4.5 Section 16 of the Westmorland and Furness Constitution covering the 
Cumbria Local Pension Board is provided at Appendix 1. The Terms of 
Reference being proposed for noting and agreement by the Board is 
provided at Appendix 2. The elements that replicate the contents of the 
Constitution are numbered 1.1 to 1.7.4 – therefore the additional sections for 
consideration are in section 1.8 Other relevant terms. 

4.6 ‘Other relevant terms’ section sets out a number of aspects of how the Board 
will operate on a day to day basis including but not limited to how Board 
Members will be appointed including to the new role of an Independent (non-
voting) Chair; the duties of the Board Chair; knowledge and capacity 
requirements; and the requirements of the Code of Conduct and Conflicts of 
Interest Policy. 

4.7 The majority of the Local Pension Board governance arrangements will 
remain the same such as: 

• 3 Scheme Member Representatives, drawn from the membership of 
the Fund, selected to ensure all membership groups within the 
Cumbria Pension Fund are considered; 

• 3 Scheme Employer Representatives, drawn from the circa 130 
Employers in the Fund (1 to the Council; 1 to Cumberland Council; 
and 1 for all other employers); and  

• Meeting as a minimum on a quarterly basis. 

71



 

4.8 The main noticeable change is the introduction of a (non-voting) 
independent member who shall be appointed as Chair of the Pension Board. 
The selection process for this role will be through application, matching 
candidates to a role profile with the decision to appoint being made by an 
interview panel, consisting of the Section 151 Officer (or deputy), the 
Monitoring Officer (or deputy) and a member of the Board. 

4.9 Appointments will be for a 4 year term with a maximum of two terms (i.e. 
eight years). 

4.10 The use of Independent Chairs for Local Pension Boards is not new - it has 
been used on some Boards since 2015 when they were first created.  
CIPFA’s “Guide for Local Pension Boards” recognises that Independent 
Chairs may bring a wider awareness of current and future developments 
within Pensions generally and their use is starting to be considered as ‘best 
practice’ by other such as the Pensions Regulator (TPR) and the SAB. 

4.11 Coincidentally, the current Chair of the Board, had indicated she plans to 
step down from that role in June 2023, so this change comes at an optimum 
time. 

4.12 The Vice Chair of the Board will be elected annually by the three scheme 
member voting representatives and the three scheme employer voting 
representatives 

4.13 Linked to the introduction of an Independent Chair the Pensions Board shall 
have a quorum of 3 which will require the Independent Chair (or the Vice 
Chair in the absence of the Independent Chair), 1 employer representative 
and 1 scheme member representative to be present.  

4.14 Officers have drafted an advert for the role of the Independent Chair which 
will be circulated for information and comment after this meeting. The advert 
will be shared with the LGPS network by the LGA and other contacts such 
as our independent advisors and partner funds with Border to Coast. In 
addition, the opportunity will be publicised on the Fund’s website and shared 
as a link by the Council’s HR Team, via LinkedIn. 

4.15 The qualities skills and knowledge required for the role are considered to be: 

• Proven leadership and excellent communication skills with the ability to 
chair meetings effectively; 

• the ability to balance the views and needs of the participating employers 
and the scheme members; 

• significant knowledge and experience of governance or management of 
occupational pension schemes (preferably with the LGPS) and the 
regulatory bodies involved; 

• integrity, strategic vision and good independent judgement; and 

• an understanding of the legal responsibilities Pension Boards and the 
members of Pension Boards 

72



 

4.16 The proposed remuneration for the role is expected to be £10,000 per 
annum, to be paid as a ‘members allowance’, this will be incremented 
annually in line with inflation, on the anniversary of appointment. This sum is 
in line with a number of similar roles that have recently been advertised. 

4.17 This is not the only change that will be progressed in the coming months, as 
previously mentioned the current Chair who is a scheme member 
representative will step down at the end of her term in June. In addition, 
another of the substantive scheme member representatives will come to the 
end of their term as will a couple of the substitute members. The Fund 
therefore will progress an advert to be circulated to the scheme members to 
seek applications for the substantive and substitute roles. Members who 
have come to the end of their term may re-apply for their role should they 
wish to be considered for continuing as members of the Board. 

4.18 The Board will also lose the existing County Council and District Council 
representatives from the Board as at 31 March 2023 when those 
organisations cease to exist. Representatives of the two unitary authorities 
for both the Pensions Committee and Local Pension Board will be 
considered at the Annual General Meeting of each Council in April (20 April 
for Westmorland and Furness Council and 13 April for Cumberland Council). 

4.19 In readiness for what is expected to be a significant change in membership 
on both the Pensions Committee and Board, Officers have already 
developed and provided three afternoons of induction training (two in Kendal 
and one in Carlisle). Details of these sessions were shared with all 
councillors from both unitary authorities, with the view of providing 
information on what being a member of an LGPS Pensions governance 
body may entail; together with any existing Members of the Committee and 
Board who may be able to continue in a role post 1 April 2023. 

4.20 More information on the training already provided and the plan for 2023/24 is 
included in item 10 on today’s agenda.  

5.0 OPTIONS 

5.1 To either note and agree the updated Terms of Reference for the Cumbria 
Local Pension Board, to be effective from 1 April 2023; or 

5.2 Request further information from officers on the governance arrangements 
of the Cumbria Pensions Fund; or 

5.3 Make suggestions for revisions for consideration, noting that some revisions 
may need to be considered by the Constitution Review Group of 
Westmorland and Furness Council.  

6.0 RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 Improved governance aids the Fund in running efficiently and effectively, 
controlling costs and helps to achieve its actuarially defined investment 
returns.  Cost control and the investment performance of the Fund will have 

73



 

a direct impact on the funding level and therefore all employers’ contribution 
rates.  This will have an impact on the Fund Employers’ revenue budgets.  

7.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

7.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from the report. The information 
contained within the report is for the Board’s information. The Board’s 
function is to assist the Administering Authority in all aspects of the 
governance and administration of the LGPS.  

8.0 CONCLUSION 

8.1 It is good practice and good governance to have effective and up to date 
Scheme Policies and documents such as Terms of Reference to support 
and demonstrate the good governance of the Fund.  Up to date policies 
including effective, clear and complete Terms of Reference help the 
Administering Authority, employers, the administration provider (LPPA), the 
Administering Authority and the Local Pension Board to work together to 
fulfil their joint responsibilities in administering the Scheme.  

 
Jo Moore 
Interim Director of Finance (S151 Officer) 
 
31 March 2023 
  
 
 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 – Extract from Westmorland & Furness Constitution – Section 16 
for Cumbria Local Pension Board (approved 23 Jan 2023) 
 
Appendix 2 – Proposed Terms of Reference for Cumbria Local Pension Board 
 
Electoral Division(s): All 
 

 
 

Executive Decision  No* 

 

Key Decision  No* 

 

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?   N/A* 

 

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?  No* 

 

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained? 

  N/A* 

   

 

Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny? 
If so, give details below. 

 No* 

  

74



 

 

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been 
undertaken? 

  N/A* 

   

 

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?   N/A* 

   

 

 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR 
 
Contact: Lucy Taylor, Finance Manager - Pensions, Investments & Governance, 
Pensions & Financial Services, Finance Directorate 
(01228) 226279   
lucy.taylor@cumbria.gov.uk 
 

75

mailto:lucy.taylor@cumbria.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



   Appendix 1 
 

  Westmorland and Furness Constitution approved 23 January 2023  
 

16 CUMBRIA LOCAL PENSION BOARD  

16.1 The  Local  Government  Pension  Scheme  (Amendment)  (Governance)   
Regulations 2015 requires that the Council, as administering authority of 
Cumbria Pension Fund, establishes a local pension board. The role of the 
Board is to assist the Administering Authority in ensuring the effective and 
efficient governance and administration of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme including, securing compliance with LGPS Regulations, other 
legislation and the requirements of the Pensions Regulator.  

Composition  

16.2 The membership of the Cumbria Local Pension Board will comprise three   
scheme member representatives; three scheme employer representatives; and 
one independent member (non-voting) who shall be appointed as Chair of the 
Pension Board.  

16.2.1 The three employer representatives will be allocated 1 to the Council; 1 
to Cumberland Council; and 1 for all other employers in the Cumbria 
Pension Fund.  The three scheme member representatives will be 
selected to ensure all membership groups within the Cumbria Pension 
Fund are considered.  

16.3 All Employer and Scheme Member Representatives of the Local Pension Board   
will be entitled to vote.
 

16.4 The Vice Chair of the Board will be elected annually by the three scheme  
 member representatives and the three scheme employer representatives.

Reserves  

16.5 Named substitutes are permitted and will be sought for each of the scheme 
member and scheme employer representatives.  The relevant knowledge and 
capacity requirements also apply to reserves.  

Quorum  

16.6 The Pensions Board shall have a quorum of 3 which will require the   
Independent Chair (or the Vice Chair in the absence of the Independent Chair),   
1 employer representative and 1 scheme member representative to be present.   

Frequency of meetings  

16.7 The Board will meet as a minimum quarterly. Meetings will be held during   
normal working hours and as a general principle, meetings will be open to the 
public.  

Competency  

16.8 The Administering Authority must ensure that each person appointed to the   
Local Pension Board has the relevant knowledge and the capacity to represent 
the employers or members (as appropriate) of the Pensions Fund.  To ensure   

 

77



   Appendix 1 
 

 

 

 

compliance, a general level of attendance at meetings and training events is 
required.  

Functions of the Cumbria Local Pension Board  

16.9 The Cumbria Local Pension Board is responsible for assisting the Administering   

Authority of the Cumbria Local Government Pension Scheme:  

(a) to secure compliance with:  

(i) The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as   
amended from time to time);  

(ii) Other legislation relating to the governance and administration of the   
Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'); and  

(iii) The requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator in relation to the   
LGPS.  

And to  

(b) Ensure the effective and efficient governance and administration of the   
LGPS.  

16.10 The Board must have a policy and framework to meet the knowledge and   
understanding requirements of section 248A of the Pensions Act 2004.  

16.11 In its role in assisting the Administering Authority as described above, the Local   
Pension Board shall report at least twice yearly to the Pensions Committee on 
matters reviewed and suggestions for their consideration.  

16.12 Where the Board is concerned that due consideration has not been given to 
matters of non-compliance the Board may submit a report for consideration by 
the Audit Committee as the body designated by the Administering Authority with 
the capacity to investigate such matters on its behalf.  

78



  Appendix 2 

Terms of Reference of the Cumbria Local Pension Board 
 

1.1. The Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) (Governance) 
Regulations 2015 requires that the Council, as administering authority of 
Cumbria Pension Fund, establishes a local pension board. The role of the 
Board is to assist the Administering Authority in ensuring the effective and 
efficient governance and administration of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme including, securing compliance with LGPS Regulations, other 
legislation and the requirements of the Pensions Regulator.  

1.2. Composition 

1.2.1. The membership of the Cumbria Local Pension Board will comprise three 
scheme member representatives; three scheme employer representatives; 
and one independent member (non-voting) who shall be appointed as Chair 
of the Pension Board. 

• The three employer representatives will be allocated 1 to the Council; 1 to 
Cumberland Council; and 1 for all other employers in the Cumbria Pension 
Fund.  The three scheme member representatives will be selected to 
ensure all membership groups within the Cumbria Pension Fund are 
considered. 

1.2.2. All Employer and Scheme Member Representatives of the Local Pension 
Board will be entitled to vote. 

1.2.3. The Vice Chair of the Board will be elected annually by the three scheme 
member representatives and the three scheme employer representatives. 

1.3. Reserves 

1.3.1. Named substitutes are permitted and will be sought for each of the scheme 
member and scheme employer representatives.  The relevant knowledge and 
capacity requirements also apply to reserves.  

1.4. Quorum 

1.4.1. The Pensions Board shall have a quorum of 3 which will require the 
Independent Chair (or the Vice Chair in the absence of the Independent 
Chair), 1 employer representative and 1 scheme member representative to be 
present.   

1.5. Frequency of meetings 

1.5.1. The Board will meet as a minimum quarterly. Meetings will be held during 
normal working hours and as a general principle, meetings will be open to the 
public. 

1.6. Competency 

1.6.1. The Administering Authority must ensure that each person appointed to the 
Local Pension Board has the relevant knowledge and the capacity to 

79



  Appendix 2 

represent the employers or members (as appropriate) of the Pensions Fund.  
To ensure compliance, a general level of attendance at meetings and training 
events is required. 

 
1.7. Functions of the Cumbria Local Pension Board 

1.7.1. The Cumbria Local Pension Board is responsible for assisting the 
Administering Authority of the Cumbria Local Government Pension Scheme: 

a) to secure compliance with: 
(i) The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as 

amended from time to time);  
(ii) Other legislation relating to the governance and administration of the 

Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'); and 
(iii) The requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator in relation to the 

LGPS. 
And to 
b) Ensure the effective and efficient governance and administration of the 

LGPS. 

1.7.2. The Board must have a policy and framework to meet the knowledge and 
understanding requirements of section 248A of the Pensions Act 2004. 

1.7.3. In its role in assisting the Administering Authority as described above, the 
Local Pension Board shall report at least twice yearly to the Pensions 
Committee on matters reviewed and suggestions for their consideration. 

1.7.4. Where the Board is concerned that due consideration has not been given to 
matters of non-compliance the Board may submit a report for consideration by 
the Audit Committee as the body designated by the Administering Authority 
with the capacity to investigate such matters on its behalf. 

1.8. Other relevant terms: 

1.8.1. The Board is constituted under the Public Service Pension Act 2013 and the 
Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) (Governance) Regulations 
2014 and is therefore not subject to the requirements of s.101 of the Local 
Government Act 1972. The Board has no remit as a decision making body; 
but is established to assist the Administering Authority fulfil its functions, which 
shall be deemed to cover all aspects of governance and administration of the 
Pension Fund. 

1.8.2. Appointment of Board members:  

a. To ensure an open and transparent selection process and to ensure the 
Administering Authority meets its obligation to ensure appointed members 
have the capacity, the selection process will be through application, 
matching to a role profile and interview. The Appointment Panel will consist 
of the Section 151 Officer (or deputy), Monitoring Officer (or deputy) and a 
member of the Board. 

80



  Appendix 2 

b. Appointments will be for four years and there will be no limit on the number 
of times a member of the board can seek to be reappointed. 

1.8.3. Appointment of the independent member who shall be appointed as Chair of 
the Pension Board: 

a. The selection process will be through application, matching to a role profile 
and interview.  The interview panel will consist of the Section 151 Officer (or 
deputy), the Monitoring Officer (or deputy) and a member of the Board and 
the appointment will be agreed by that panel. 

b. Appointments will be for four years and will be subject to a maximum of two 
terms (i.e. eight years). 

1.8.4. Duties of the Chair:  The Chair of the Board shall ensure that: 

• the Board delivers its purpose as set out the Board’s Terms of 
Reference; 

• meetings are productive and effective, and  

• opportunity is provided for the views of all members to be expressed and 
considered and will determine when consensus is met. 

1.8.5. Board expenses: Reimbursement of reasonable expenses for attendance by 
Board members and reserves (i.e. named substitute Board members) at 
meetings and training sessions will be per the Council’s agreed policies and 
rates for Elected Members. All such costs will be met directly by the Pension 
Fund.  

1.8.6. Relevant knowledge capacity – the Administering Authority must ensure that 
each person appointed to the Board has the relevant knowledge and the 
capacity to represent the employers or members (as appropriate) of the Fund. 
Initially this will be done through selection by the Administering Authority but, 
following appointment, it is a member’s individual responsibility to ensure they 
attend sufficient training etc. to enable them to continue to fulfil the knowledge 
and capacity requirements. Full training will be provided to voting members 
(including reserves), and all reasonable costs will be met by the Fund. To 
ensure compliance with the above a general level of attendance at meetings 
and training events is required. 

1.8.7. Code of Conduct and Conflicts of Interest Policy:  Prior to appointment to the 
Board all members will be required to sign up to the Board’s Code of Conduct 
and Conflicts of Interest Policy. As a body representing the public interest the 
Code of Conduct and Conflicts of Interest Policy of members of the Local 
Pension Board will be aligned to those applicable to Members of the Pensions 
Committee and is available on the Council’s Website.  

1.8.8. Special meetings: Where required, a minimum of 2 Board members (one from 
the Fund member representatives and one from the Fund employer 
representatives) or the Administering Authority can request a special meeting 
be convened. Notice of ten working days must be given. 

81



  Appendix 2 

1.8.9. Creation of Working Parties / Sub Group: As a non-decision-making body the 
Board have no authority to establish Working Parties / Sub Groups.  

1.8.10. Commissioning of Service Providers and Advisors All Board members have 
the right to access the support of the experienced Local Government Pension 
Scheme Independent Advisors, however due regard has to be taken of 
securing value for money and as such whether in the first instance Officers 
could provide the assistance required.  All such items of expenditure by the 
Board must have prior approval from the Director of Finance (S151 Officer). 

1.8.11. Role of Officers: Reasonable secretarial and professional support will be 
provided by Officers of the Administering Authority. Costs associated with this 
will be directly charged to the Fund. 

1.8.12. Publication and Data Protection: 

• As a general principle, meetings will be open to the public.  

• Paper or electronic versions (as requested) of all agendas and papers will 
be provided to all members of the Board prior to a meeting. The Chair can 
accept that items be tabled on the day should such a need arise. 

• As a matter of policy, the Pension Fund has adopted the principles of 
paperless working, therefore as a matter of course public access to all 
agendas, public papers and minutes etc. will be available on the Council’s 
website. On request alternative media versions are available. 

• Westmorland & Furness Council (“the Council”) as the Administering 
Authority is the registered data controller of the Cumbria LGPS, and as 
such all policies and practices in this regard applicable within the Council 
are directly applicable to the Board. 

 
1.8.13. Substitution / Reserves: 

• Each substitute will be appointed for a four year term (or, in the case of 
elected members for the remainder of their current term of office) and 
there is no limit on the number of times the substitute can seek to be 
reappointed. 

 
 
 

82



 

 

CUMBRIA LOCAL PENSION BOARD 

Meeting date: 31 March 2023 

From:     Jo Moore, Interim Director of Finance (S151 
Officer) 

 
 

REVIEW OF BOARD POLICIES INCLUDING TRAINING POLICY 

AND 2023-24 PLAN  

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 It is a regulatory requirement that Fund Policy documents are kept up 
to date. In addition to updates when required throughout the year, it is 
good practice for the Pensions Committee to formally review all 
aspects of management and governance of the Cumbria Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) at least annually. A report 
incorporating all changes to existing policies (last published in 
November 2022) was presented to the Pensions Committee on 14 
March 2022, with details and a copy of the covering report included at 
Item 7 on today’s agenda. 

1.2 The Board has its own individual policies which specifically relate to its 
role in assisting the Administering Authority of the Cumbria LGPS to 
comply with all relevant legislative requirements and to ensure the 
effective governance of the scheme. These policies are:- 

• The Cumbria Local Pension Board Members’ Code of Conduct 
(Conflict of Interest) Policy; and 

• The Cumbria LGPS Training Policy and Plan. 

1.3 In line with accepted best practice across the LGPS these policies are 
reviewed on a regular basis to ensure they are current, relevant and fit 
for purpose.  
 

1.4 As it is a legal requirement (The Pensions Act 2004) that every 
individual who is a member of a Local Pension Board (Board) must 
meet specific knowledge and understanding obligations, the training 
policy has been subject to an annual review and updated. As in 
previous years, the policy is designed to be dynamic and aligned to the 
work programme and changes to national policy.  
 

83

Agenda Item 10



 

1.5 As detailed in the earlier papers on this agenda the process of Local 
Government Reorganisation (LGR) in Cumbria will see the current 
Administering Authority, Cumbria County Council, cease to exist after 
31 March 2023. Westmorland & Furness Council will become 
Administering Authority of Cumbria Pension Fund from 1 April 2023. 
 

1.6 Due to this process and due to some of the existing Members of the 
Board either stepping down at the end of their term or needing to re-
apply to continue on the Board, there is expected to be a significant 
change in membership on both the Pensions Committee and Board. 
 

1.7 The Cumbria Pension Fund Training Policy has been fully updated to 
ensure continued compliance with tPR’s expectations for Member and 
officer training and its requirements in relation to acquiring and 
maintaining an appropriate degree of knowledge and understanding. In 
particular, it has been updated to reflect enhancements being made to 
the Fund’s induction programme in response to the significant number 
of new members that will undertake governance roles in relation to the 
Cumbria Pension Fund during 2023/24. 
 

1.8 This paper recommends that the Board agrees to note the revised 
training policy (shown at Appendix 2) and approve the detailed training 
plan (shown in section 4.22 to 4.27 below). 

 
1.9 There are no changes required at this time to the Cumbria Local 

Pension Board Members’ Code of Conduct (Conflict of Interest) Policy.  
 

2.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 The purpose of the Fund is to pay Cumbria LGPS members’ pension 
benefits in accordance with regulations and in a secure, affordable and 
sustainable manner over the short, medium and long term. To do this, 
the Fund seeks to:  
• ensure that sufficient resources are available to meet all liabilities 

as they fall due;  
• manage employers’ liabilities effectively and enable employer 

contribution rates to be kept at a reasonable and affordable cost to 
the taxpayers and the scheduled, resolution and admitted bodies;  

• achieve and maintain Fund solvency and long term cost efficiency, 
which should be assessed in light of the profile of the Fund now 
and in the future; and  

• maximise the returns from investments within reasonable risk 
parameters taking into account the above aims.  
 

2.2 Good governance, including regularly reviewing scheme policies, will 
aid the Fund in ensuring its regulatory responsibilities are met, a good 
service is provided to scheme members and employers, costs are 
controlled, and its required investment return is achieved.  

2.3 There are no direct equality implications arising out of the 
recommendations in this report. 

84



 

3.0 RECOMMENDATION 

The Board is recommended to: 

3.1 Note that there are no revisions required to the Cumbria Local Pension 
Board Members’ Code of Conduct (Conflict of Interest) Policy. 

  
3.2 Note the current Training Policy of the Cumbria Pension Fund, 

incorporating the Cumbria Local Pension Board, the Cumbria Pensions 
Committee and Fund Officers. 

3.3 Approve the detailed training plan. 

4.0 BACKGROUND 

Cumbria Local Pension Board Members’ Code of Conduct (Conflict of 
Interest) Policy 

 
4.1 When the Cumbria Local Pension Board was established in 2015, in order to 

meet the requirements of the Public Service Pension Act 2013 and per the 
Terms of Reference for the Board, the Councils’ Code of Conduct for 
Members was adapted to include Board Members and all officers and 
advisors supporting the operation of the Board.  This policy was then 
adopted by the Board.  
 

4.2 Whilst the administering authority change from Cumbria County Council to 
Westmorland and Furness Council on 1 April 2023, the new administering 
authority continues to operate under a Members’ Code of Conduct and as 
such the Board Members’ Code of Conduct is considered to remain relevant 
and fit for purpose with only the 2 two names highlighted on the first page 
being updated to acknowledge the LGR amendment.  
 

4.3 Prior to appointment to the Board all members are required to sign up to the 
Board’s Code of Conduct and Conflicts of Interest Policy. The policy and 
guidance (Appendix 1) sets out the procedures to be followed and the 
checks and measures in operation to ensure the business of the Board and 
any decisions or actions taken by it are open, transparent and compliant.  
 

4.4 Under this policy, the effective management of all potential conflicts of 
interest will be achieved through consistent compliance with 6 clear steps: 

 
1) identifying interests; 
2) disclosing interests;  
3) maintaining an up-to-date register of interests; 
4) declaring potential conflicts; 
5) managing potential conflicts; and 
6) recording and reviewing the management actions taken. 

 
4.5 As previously notified to the Board, in February 2021 the Scheme Advisory 

Board (SAB) published the final Phase III report on Good Governance in the 
LGPS. The Good Governance Review makes recommendations to improve 

85



 

governance within Funds and across the LGPS, including in regard to 
conflicts of interest.  It is anticipated that these recommendations will form 
the basis for statutory guidance and/or amended Regulations for the LGPS 
in England and Wales.  Once these have been finalised the Fund will 
undertake a review to ensure it continues to fully comply with its obligations 
to report on potential conflicts within the Fund and the Board will be kept 
updated once more information becomes available. 

 
Training Policy including the 2023/24 Learning Programme 
 

4.6 Knowledge and understanding must be considered in light of the role of a 
Local Pension Board (Board) to assist the Administering Authority. Board 
Members are required to understand the duties and obligations of the 
Administering Authority in order to be able to assist it. 
 

4.7 The knowledge and understanding requirement for the Pensions Committee 
is that Members are able to demonstrate that collectively they have the 
required knowledge and skills to make appropriate decisions and offer 
challenge.  However, the requirement for Board Members is on an individual 
level.  In accordance with Section 248A of the 2004 Pension Act every 
individual who is a member of a Board must:  
 

be conversant with: 

• the rules of the LGPS, in other words the Local Government Pension 

Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended), including Transitional 
Regulations, earlier regulations and the Local Government Pension 

Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009; 

and 

• any document recording policy about the administration of the Fund, 

and 

have knowledge and understanding of: 

• the law relating to pensions; and 

• such other matters as may be prescribed. 

 

4.8 The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 introduced the framework for the 
governance and administration of the LGPS and provided a new regulatory 
oversight by the Pensions Regulator (“TPR” or “The Regulator”). The 
Regulator issued a Code of Practice no. 14 – Governance and 
Administration of Public Service Pension Schemes (the “Code”) in April 
2015.  The Code provides scheme managers (the local Administering 
Authority) and Board Members with a summary of their key governance and 
administration duties, standards of conduct and practice expected in relation 
to those duties. 
 

4.9 The Code contains practical guidance in four core areas of scheme 
governance and administration: governing your scheme; managing risks; 
administration; and resolving issues. Whilst the Code currently remains in 

86



 

force, the Regulator is in the process creating a clearer, more accessible 
general Code of Practice.  
 

4.10 The training policy has therefore been subject to a more detailed review this 
year primarily due to the forthcoming implementation of the new general 
Code of Practice, anticipated in the coming months.  The new Code, whilst 
still in draft format, is expected to increase expectations and standards in a 
number of areas including knowledge and skills. 
 

4.11 The new Policy includes a commitment to develop a ‘Member Handbook’ 
which will contain key information for the Fund which should be a useful 
reference document for all Committee and Board members, but specifically 
for those new to the Cumbria Pension Fund.  
 

4.12 The Policy also introduces the concept of a ‘Pensions Knowledge Library’, 
an on-line portal for sharing useful information for Committee and Board, 
including confidential material. This is something that has already been in 
place for the Board, via a secure SharePoint site. Officers are in the process 
of assessing whether the new library should be an extension of this provision 
or an alternate solution. 

 
4.13 The training obligations and requirements of Board members (along with 

those of the Committee and Officers) are reflected in the Cumbria LGPS 
training policy. As in previous years, the policy is designed to be dynamic 
and aligned to the work programme and changes to national policy. To 
ensure good governance this is formally reviewed by the Committee and 
Board at least annually to ensure it remains accurate and relevant.   
 

4.14 As detailed in item 9 on today’s agenda, in part due to the imminent 
implementation of Cumbria’s LGR changes, the Board’s membership will 
shortly undergo a significant change with a minimum of four changes to the 
current group of substantive and substitute Board Members. 
 

4.15 In readiness for what is expected to be a significant change in membership 
on both the Pensions Committee and Board, Officers have already 
developed and provided three afternoons of induction training (two in Kendal 
and one in Carlisle). Details of these sessions were shared with all 
councillors from both unitary authorities, with the view of providing 
information on what being a member of a LGPS Pensions governance body 
may entail; together with any existing Members of the Committee and Board 
who may be able to continue in a role post 1 April 2023. 

 
Activity during 2022/23 

4.16 Provision of training opportunities continues to be via a mixture of online and 
in-person events. Members have attended the following events during the 
year:- 
 

• CIPFA Annual LPB Seminar – June 2022 

• New Board Member Training – July 2022 

• BCPP Annual Conference – September 2022 

• LGA Fundamentals Training – October to December 2022 

87



 

 
4.17 A dedicated training session was provided for Board Members at their 

meeting in July 2022 by AON on Cyber Risks which provided information on 
potential cyber security risks, current trends in threats and the LGPS 
response to threats.   
 

4.18 In addition, five Members attended a joint training session with Pensions 
Committee members in September 2022 where a number of external 
presenters provided sessions on the following topics: 

 

• TCFD and Climate Metrics from BCPP 

• Share Voting by BCPP 

• Progress of LGR by Senior officers 

• An Update on the LGPS Agenda by the Scheme Advisory Board 

• McCloud and Scheme Legal update from Eversheds Sutherland 
 

Training needs assessment 

4.19 In November 2022 the training needs assessment questionnaire was sent to 
all Member and substitute Members of the Pensions Committee and the 
Member and substitute Members of the Local Pension Board. The 
completed responses have been collated and assessed and the Learning 
Programme has been drafted to reflect areas identified by the evaluation 
questionnaires and with reference to the aims and objectives of the 2023/24 
Business Plan.  
 

4.20 The Learning Programme has been drafted to build in the initial induction 
training (noted at 4.15 above) and it focusses primarily on providing 
induction training to the new Members. The details of learning programme 
for the coming financial year will be developed further once the members of 
the new Committee and Board are appointed.  
 

4.21 Ongoing training is required to enable each Board Member to continue to 
meet the legislative individual knowledge and understanding requirement 
placed upon them. Board Members are encouraged to attend training 
sessions scheduled where appropriate to take place after quarterly Pensions 
Committee or Board meetings; and are notified of other relevant training 
events (internal and external) as and when they arise.  
 

4.22 The main areas of focus identified as priorities for the initial Learning 
Programme for both the Committee and the Board in the coming year are 
shown below: 
 

Training Topics 

Regulatory framework relating to the Pensions environment and the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (‘the Scheme’). 

Administration and rules of the Scheme, its Funding and governing bodies.    

Governance arrangements of the Scheme, and how this works within a Local 
Authority environment. 

Regulations relating to Investments of the Scheme, Investment Strategy and 

88



 

Training Topics 

LGPS Pooling. 

Cumbria Pensions governance structure, including conflicts of interest, 
Policies such as the training policy, the role of the Board, reporting of 
breaches and other compliance reporting requirements. 

Cumbria’s Pension Administration provider Local Pensions Partnership 
Administration’s (LPPA), arrangements for the service provision and oversight, 
internal roles vs LPPA including current and forthcoming issues. 

Review of the Fund’s current Asset Allocation, basic funding information, roles 
of the Fund’s Advisors, Consultants, Officers and Members including the 
Investment Sub Group (ISG). 

LGPS Pooling, our pool Border to Coast Pensions Partnership (BCPP), the 
Fund’s role as both Shareholder and Customer, including the oversight and 
governance of BCPP. 

Stewardship Reporting including ESG (Environmental, Social and Governance 
factors) including the role of BCPP and our membership of LAPFF (Local 
Authority Pension Fund Forum) 

Current Investment related issues including Inflation, a review of the 
Investment Strategy, possible transition of BCPP UK Direct property to BCPP 
and increased climate reporting requirements.  

The implications of the resolution to the McCloud age discrimination case and 
the expected Cap on Exit payments for the public sector schemes and 
specifically the Cumbria Pension Fund (once both sets of regulations have 
been finalised). 

The implications for the Fund of the Pension Regulator’s Consolidated Code 
of Practice (once it has been finalised). 

The implications of the LGPS Governance and Climate Risk Reporting 
regulations and statutory guidance (once it has been finalised). 

 
 
4.23 The summary above is not an exhaustive list; in addition to the topics noted 

above learning opportunities will be arranged as required on any emerging 
issues which arise throughout the year. These may include updates to the 
governance of the LGPS arising from the implications any legislative or 
regulatory amendments that may arise 
 

4.24 As a number of the topics will be relevant to both the Committee and the 
Board, joint training sessions will be offered to all Members as appropriate.  
 

4.25 Officers will schedule training sessions or provide briefing notes to ensure 
that Board Members have the required skills and knowledge in advance of 
the relevant work streams being considered by the Board. 

 
4.26 Where possible the Fund will endeavour to timetable internal training by 

Officers or external presenters to coincide with scheduled meetings of the 
Committee or Board.   
 

89



 

4.27 It has not been possible to plan out the dates associated with training for 
Board Members in 2023/24 as neither the future dates for meetings nor the 
proposed new Members of the Board have been identified at this stage. The 
list below are events that are expected to be available and the approximate 
timing but further details will be provided as soon as they are available. 
 

Date Event  Topic 

Various Various Barnett 
Waddingham and 
CIPFA events 

Barnett Waddingham and CIPFA training 
events focussing on Boards are often 
held in both Spring and Autumn in 
addition to the Annual conference in 
June. Details of these will be circulated 
as and when they are received 

Mid - 
September 
2023 

Annual joint training 
for Pensions 
Committee and 
Board Members in 
Leeds 

Full training agenda to be determined 

October 
2023 

Annual Pension 
Forum  
 

Employer issues including employer and 
Fund responsibilities. 
 

October to 
December 
2023 

Annual Training Needs Evaluation – for Members of the 
Committee and Board and for Officers 
 

Ongoing Public Sector 
Pension Scheme 
Trustee Toolkit 
 
 

The toolkit covers a broad range of topics 
including conflicts of interest, managing 
risks and internal controls and 
maintaining accurate member data. It is 
strongly recommended that Board 
members complete the programme.  This 
can be accessed via the link below: 
https://trusteetoolkit.thepensionsregulator
.gov.uk/?_ga=2.94344349.123684972.15
60518177-416370186.1560518177 

Ongoing  Guidance and training material can be accessed by Board 
Members via the link below to the dedicated Cumbria Local 
Pension Board Sharepoint site:- 
https://cumbria.sharepoint.com/sites/CLGPS/Shared%20Docum
ents/Forms/AllItems.aspx 
 
The Board will continue to be notified of relevant training events 
(internal and external) as and when they arise and members are 
encouraged to attend when possible. 

5.0 OPTIONS 

5.1 To note the Fund’s Training Policy and approve the detailed Learning 
Programme. 

 

90

https://trusteetoolkit.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/?_ga=2.94344349.123684972.1560518177-416370186.1560518177
https://trusteetoolkit.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/?_ga=2.94344349.123684972.1560518177-416370186.1560518177
https://trusteetoolkit.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/?_ga=2.94344349.123684972.1560518177-416370186.1560518177
https://cumbria.sharepoint.com/sites/CLGPS/Shared%20Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx
https://cumbria.sharepoint.com/sites/CLGPS/Shared%20Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx


 

OR, 
 

5.2 To review and propose amendments to the Board’s Training Policy and the 
detailed Learning Programme. 
 

6.0 RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 Achieving value for money should be and is an objective considered for the 
Cumbria LGPS as part of all policy reviews. Delivering some training locally 
helps to achieve this. Clearer, less bureaucratic policies and procedures also 
aid in reducing administration costs. Additionally, adherence to regulatory 
and legislative requirements avoids potential expensive investigatory 
procedures and fines.  

 

7.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS   

7.1 The Administering Authority (i.e. the County Council) has a legal 
responsibility to make appropriate training available to Local Pension Board 
members to assist them in undertaking their role and support all members in 
carrying out that training.  Under Part 2P of the Constitution 2.2 provides that 
the Board must have a policy and framework to meet the knowledge and 
understanding requirements of section 248A of the Pensions Act 2004. 

 

8.0 CONCLUSION 

8.1 Effective and up to date Scheme Policies demonstrate the good governance 
of the scheme and helps members, employers, the administration provider 
(LPPA), the Administering Authority and the Local Pension Board to work 
together to fulfil their joint responsibilities in administering the Scheme. An 
effective and ‘value for money’ training policy and plan helps to deliver this. 

 
 

Jo Moore 
Interim Director of Finance (s.151 Officer) 
 
31 March 2023 
 
  
 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1: Cumbria LPB Members’ Code of Conduct (Conflict of Interest) 
Policy 
Appendix 2: Cumbria Local Government Pension Scheme – Training Policy 
March 2023 
 
Electoral Division(s): All 
 

 

91



 

Executive Decision  No 

 

Key Decision  No 

 

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?   N/A 

 

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?  No 

 

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained? 

  N/A 

   

 

Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny? 
If so, give details below. 

 No 

  

 

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been 
undertaken? 

  N/A 

   

 

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?   N/A 

   

 
 
PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 
 
Training Policy at Appendix 2 was approved by the Pensions Committee on 
18 March 2022. 
 
REPORT AUTHOR 
 
Contact:  
 

Gill Welbourn, Technical Finance Officer - Pensions 
Tel: 07765 221527 
gill.welbourn@cumbria.gov.uk 
 

 

 

 

 
 

92



APPENDIX 1 

Cumbria Local Pension Board Members’ Code 
of Conduct (Conflict of Interest) Policy 
 

 

1. Code of Conduct 

Cumbria LGPS Local Pension Board (“The Board”) has adopted the following 

code dealing with the conduct that is expected of members of the Board 

(“members”) when they are acting in that capacity as required by the Public 

Service Pensions Act 2013 (“the Act”) to represent either members or 

employers of Cumbria Local Government Pension Scheme (‘the Fund’). 

 

The Board has a statutory duty under the Act and subsequent legislation to 

promote and maintain high standards of conduct by members and the Code 

sets out the standards that the Board expects members to observe. 

 

The Code is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all the obligations that are 

placed on members.  It is the responsibility of individual members to comply 

with the provisions of the Code as well as such other legal obligations as may 

apply to them from time to time. Failure to do so may result in a sanction 

being applied by the Administering Authority as Scheme Manager.  

 

There are references throughout the Policy to the statutory post of “Monitoring 

Officer”. This role within Westmorland and Furness Council and therefore in 

relation to Cumbria LGPS is designated as Chief Legal and Monitoring 

Officer.     

 

The code is intended to be consistent with the seven principles as attached to 

this code at Appendix C and applies whenever a person is acting in his/her 

capacity as a member of the Board member in the conduct of the Board’s 

business or acting as a representative of the Board. 

 

1.1 Behaviour 

 

1.1.1 You must act solely in the interest of members and employers of the 

Fund and should never improperly confer an advantage or 

disadvantage on any person or act to gain financial or other material 

benefits for yourself, your family, a friend, a close associate, an 

employer or a business carried on by you. 

 

1.1.2 You must not place yourself under a financial or other obligation to 

outside individuals or organisations that may influence you in the 

performance of your duties 

 
1.1.3 You must not disclose any information given to you as a member in 

breach of any confidence. 

 
1.1.4 You must not bring your office or the authority into disrepute. 

 

93



APPENDIX 1 

1.1.5 You must treat others with respect and must promote equality by not 

discriminating unlawfully against any person, and by treating people 

with respect, regardless of their sex, race, age, religion, gender, sexual 

orientation or disability. 

 
1.1.6 You must respect the impartiality and integrity of the statutory officers 

and other officers of the Council acting on behalf of the Fund. 

 
1.1.7 When carrying out your public duties you must make all choices in the 

best interests of the Fund. 

 
1.1.8 You are accountable for your decisions to the interested parties of the 

Fund and you must co-operate fully with whatever scrutiny is 

appropriate to your office. 

 

1.1.9 You must be as open as possible about your decisions and actions and 

the decisions and actions of the authority and should be prepared to 

give reasons for those decisions and actions.  

 

1.1.10 You must only use the resources of the Board in accordance with its 

requirements. In particular you must ensure, when using or authorising 

the use by others of the resources of the authority, that such resources 

are not used improperly for political purposes (including party political 

purposes) and you must have regard to any applicable Local Authority 

Code of Publicity made under the Local Government Act 1986. 

 

1.1.11 You must promote and support high standards of conduct when 

serving in your office. 

 
2. Conflicts of Interest 

2.1 Registration of interests  

2.1.1 You must, within 28 days of taking office as a member, register with 

the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set 

out in Appendices A (disclosable pecuniary interests) and B (other 

registerable interests). 

 

2.1.2 You must, within 28 days of becoming aware of it, register with the 

Monitoring Officer any change to interests or new interests which fall 

within the categories set out in Appendices A and B.  

 

2.2 Declaration of interests at meetings 

 

2.2.1 Where a matter arises at a meeting which relates to an interest in 

Appendix A (‘disclosable pecuniary interests’) you must declare the 

existence and nature of the interest even where it has been entered in 

the Board’s register, unless the matter is a ‘sensitive interest’ as 

described by the Localism Act 2011. Unless a dispensation has been 

granted, you must then leave the meeting room and may not 

participate in any discussion, vote on, or discharge any function related 

94



APPENDIX 1 

to the matter. Where the matter is a ‘sensitive interest’ you do not need 

to declare the nature of the interest but must still withdraw from the 

meeting without participating. 

 

2.2.2 Where a matter arises at a meeting which relates to or affects an 

interest in Appendix B (‘other registerable interests’) you must declare 

the existence and nature of the interest unless it has been entered in 

the Board’s Register of Interests.   

 

2.2.3 Where a matter arises at a meeting which relates to or affects a 

financial interest of you, a friend, relative or close associate (and it is 

not a disclosable pecuniary interest or other registerable interest) you 

must declare the existence and nature of the interest.  Where the 

matter is a ‘sensitive interest’ you do not need to declare the nature of 

the interest.  

 

2.2.4 Where the matter relates to or affects the interest under paragraph 

2.2.3 more than the majority of people in the area affected by the 

decision and a reasonable member of the public would think your view 

of the public interest would be so adversely affected, you must then 

leave the meeting room and may not vote on, or discharge any function 

related to the matter unless a dispensation has been granted. You may 

speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to 

speak at the meeting.  Where the matter is a ‘sensitive interest’ you do 

not need to declare the nature of the interest. 

 

95



APPENDIX 1 

Appendix A – Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

 

A pecuniary interest is a “disclosable pecuniary interest” in relation to a member 
(“M”) if it is of a description specified in this Schedule and either— 
 
(a) it is an interest of M’s, or 
 
(b) it is an interest of— 
 

(i) M’s spouse or civil partner, 
(ii) a person with whom M is living as husband and wife, or 
(iii) a person with whom M is living as if they were civil partners, 
 

And M is aware that that other person has the interest. 
 
Each category of person referred to above is described as the ‘relevant 
person’. 
 
The duties to register, disclose and not to participate in respect of any matter in 
which a member has a disclosable pecuniary interest are considered to be the 
same for this Board as those set out in Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011. 
 
For the Board disclosable pecuniary interests are taken to be those as defined in 
the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 which 
are as follows – 
 

Interest Prescribed description 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or 
vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial 
benefit (other than from the relevant authority) 
made or provided within the relevant period in 
respect of any expenses incurred by M in carrying 
out duties as a member, or towards the election 
expenses of M. 

This includes any payment or financial benefit 
from a trade union within the meaning of the 
Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) 
Act 1992). 

 

 

 

 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant 
person (or a body in which the relevant person 
has a beneficial interest) and the relevant 
authority— 

(a)  under which goods or services are to be 
provided or works are to be executed; and 

(b)  which has not been fully discharged. 

96



APPENDIX 1 

 

 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the 
area of the relevant authority. 

 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy 
land in the area of the relevant authority for a 
month or longer. 

 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to M’s knowledge)— 

(a)  the landlord is the relevant authority; and 

(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest. 

 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body 
where— 

(a)  that body (to M’s knowledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of the relevant 
authority; and 

(b)  either— 

 

(i)  the total nominal value of the securities 
exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that body; or  

 

(ii)  if the share capital of that body is of more than 
one class, the total nominal value of the shares of 
any one class in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that class. 

 
For this purpose of identifying pecuniary interests – 
 

“the Act” means the Localism Act 2011; 
 
“body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest” means a firm in 
which the relevant person is a partner or a body corporate of which the 
relevant person is a director, or in the securities of which the relevant person 
has a beneficial interest; 
 
“director” includes a member of the committee of management of an 
industrial and provident society; 
 
“land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land 
which does not carry with it a right for the relevant person (alone or jointly 
with another) to occupy the land or to receive income; 
 
“M” means a member of the Board (including officers and advisers); 
 
“relevant authority” means the Board of which M is a member; 
 

97



APPENDIX 1 

“relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on 
which M gives a notification for the purposes of section 30(1) or 31(7), as the 
case may be, of the Act; 
 
“relevant person” means M or any other person referred to in section 
30(3)(b) of the Act; 
 
“securities” means  shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, 
units of a collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial 
Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other 
than money deposited with a building society. 

98



APPENDIX 1 

Appendix B – Other Registerable Interests 

 

Other registerable interests are: 
a) any body of which you are a member or in a position of  general 

control or management and to which you are appointed or nominated 
by the Board. 

 
b) any body of which you are a member or in a position of general 

control or management and which  
 
  i) exercises functions of a public nature 
 
  ii) is directed to charitable purposes, or 
 
  iii) is a body which includes as one of its principal purposes  
   influencing public opinion or policy (this includes political  
   parties or trade unions). 
 

c) any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an 
estimated value of at least £100 (you must register any gifts and 
hospitality worth over £100 that you receive personally in 
 connection with your official duties). 

 

99



APPENDIX 1 

Appendix C – the seven principles of public life 
 
The principles of public life apply to anyone who is elected or works as a public 
office-holder. All public office-holders are both servants of the public and stewards 
of public services. The principles are: 
  

Selflessness  Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public 
interest.  

Integrity  Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any 
obligation to people or organisations that might try inappropriately to 
influence them in their work.  

They should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other 
material benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends.  

They must declare and resolve any interests and relationships.  

Objectivity  Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly 
and on merit, using the best evidence and without discrimination or 
bias.  

Accountability  Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions 
and actions and must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to 
ensure this.  

Openness  Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and 
transparent manner. Information should not be withheld from the public 
unless there are clear and lawful reasons for so doing.  

Honesty  Holders of public office should be truthful.  

Leadership  Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own 
behaviour. They should actively promote and robustly support the 
principles and be willing to challenge poor behaviour wherever it 
occurs.  

 

100



 
APPENDIX 1 

GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS OF THE CUMBRIA LGPS LOCAL PENSION 
BOARD ON CODE OF CONDUCT (CONFLICTS OF INTEREST) POLICY 
 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 
This document has been produced to offer guidance on the Code of Conduct for 
members.  The Code applies to all members and officers and advisers of the 
Cumbria LGPS Local Pension Board (‘the Board’). 
 
Ultimately, it is members’ responsibility to take specific advice from the Monitoring 
Officer where appropriate and to make a decision as to the most suitable course of 
action. 
  

 
Code of Conduct 
 
The Code of Conduct (“the Code”) is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all the 
obligations that are placed on members, but it is the responsibility of individual 
members to comply with the provisions of the Code as well as such other legal 
obligations as may apply to them from time to time. 
 
The Code is intended to be consistent with the seven principles of public life as 
attached to the Code which define the standards that members should uphold.  A 
failure to act in accordance with these general principles may in itself amount to a 
breach of the Code of Conduct. For example, by placing yourself in situations 
where your honesty and integrity may be questioned, your conduct may be conduct 
which could “bring your office or the authority into disrepute”.  

 
 

When does the Code apply to you? 
 

The Code applies to you whenever you act in your official capacity as a member of 
the Board.   
 
For the purposes of the Code, a “meeting” is a meeting of the Board.      

 

101



 
APPENDIX 1 

 
GENERAL OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE CODE 

 
1.1. You must act solely in the public interest and should never improperly 

confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person or act to gain 
financial or other material benefits for yourself, your family, a friend, a 
close associate, an employer or business carried on by you.   

 
For example, your behaviour would be improper if you sought to further your 
private interests or that of somebody close to you through your position as a 
member. 

 
 

1.2  You must not place yourself under a financial or other obligation to 
outside individuals or organisations that may influence you in the 
performance of your official duties. 

 
It would not be appropriate to accept favours, gifts or hospitality from 
someone that may, at a later date, require something from the Board that 
you are in a position to influence.  For example, you may be offered a 
discount by a business in the area which subsequently applies for planning 
permission and/or a licence.  You may be on the relevant committee dealing 
with the application and, therefore, be in a difficult position.  

 
 

1.3  You must not disclose any information given to you as a member in 
breach of any confidence 

 
As a general rule, you must not disclose confidential information, or 
information which you believe to be of a confidential nature, as doing so 
could be prejudicial to effective decision-making and could damage the 
reputation of the authority in the eyes of those who wish to do business with 
it as being a place which cannot be trusted to respect confidential or 
commercially sensitive information. 

 
The courts have, however, defined exceptional circumstances where it may 
be in the public interest to disclose confidential information if you believe it is 
in the public interest to do so. However, these circumstances are very rare 
and you should raise your concerns with the Monitoring Officer in the first 
place before you consider disclosing confidential information.  These 
exceptional circumstances are: 

 

• You have the consent of the person authorised to give it. 
 

• You are required by law to do so. 
 

• The disclosure is made to a third party for the purposes of obtaining 
professional advice (for example, your lawyer or other professional 
adviser) provided that person agrees not to disclose the information to 
any other person. 

 

102



 
APPENDIX 1 

• The disclosure is in the public interest.  This is only justified in limited 
circumstances. 

 
 

The public interest 
 

In considering whether disclosure would be in the public interest you should 
consider the following points: 

 

• Whether you believe that the information disclosed, and any allegation 
contained in it, is substantially true. If you do not believe this, the 
disclosure is unlikely to be reasonable. 

 

• Whether you make the disclosure for personal gain. If you are paid to 
disclose the information, the disclosure is unlikely to be reasonable. 

 

• The identity of the person to whom the disclosure is made. It may be 
reasonable to disclose information to the police or to an appropriate 
regulator. It is less likely to be reasonable for you to disclose the 
information to the world at large through the media or social media. 

 

• The extent of the information disclosed. The inclusion of unnecessary 
detail, and in particular, private matters such as addresses or telephone 
numbers, is likely to render the disclosure unreasonable. 

 

• The seriousness of the matter. The more serious the matter disclosed, 
the more likely it is that the disclosure will be reasonable. 

 

• The timing of the disclosure. If the matter to which the disclosure relates 
has already occurred, and is unlikely to occur again, the disclosure may 
be less likely to be reasonable than if the matter is continuing, or is likely 
to reoccur. 

 

• Whether the disclosure involves the authority failing in a duty of 
confidence owed to another person. 

 
Disclosures which have been ruled serious enough and in the public interest 
to override the duty of confidentiality have related to the following matters, or 
something of comparable seriousness, that has either happened in the past, 
is currently happening, or is likely to happen in the future: 

 
(a) A criminal offence has been or is being committed. 

 
(b) The authority or some other person has failed or is failing to comply 

with any legal obligation to which they are subject. 
 

(c) A miscarriage of justice has occurred. 
 

(d) The health or safety of any individual is in danger. 
 

(e) The environment is likely to be damaged. 
 

103



 
APPENDIX 1 

(f) That information tending to show any matter falling within (a) to (e) is 
deliberately concealed. 

 
Any disclosure must also be made in good faith. This condition will not be 
met if you act with an ulterior motive, for example, to achieve a party political 
advantage or to settle a score with a political opponent rather than simply 
out of public interest. 

 
Finally you should ensure that you have complied with all reasonable 
requirements of the authority. This means that before making any disclosure 
you must comply with the authority’s policies or protocols on matters such as 
whistle-blowing and confidential information. You must therefore first raise 
your concerns through the appropriate channels set out in such policies or 
protocols. 

 
In summary, to decide whether the disclosure is reasonable and in the public 
interest, you will need to conduct a balancing exercise weighing up the 
public interest in maintaining confidentiality against any countervailing public 
interest favouring disclosure. This will require a careful focus on how 
confidential the information is, on any potentially harmful consequences of 
its disclosure, and on any factors which may justify its disclosure despite 
these potential consequences. 

 
In some situations, it is extremely unlikely that a disclosure can be justified in 
the public interest. These will include where the disclosure amounts to a 
criminal offence, or where the information disclosed is protected by legal 
professional privilege. 

 
 
1.4  You must not bring your office or the authority into disrepute 

 
As a member, your actions and behaviour are subject to greater scrutiny 
than that of ordinary members of the public.  You should be aware that your 
actions might have an adverse impact on your office or the authority.  
Dishonest and deceitful behaviour or threatening or violent behaviour in your 
role as a member may bring the authority into disrepute 

 
1.5  You must treat others with respect and must promote equality by not 

discriminating unlawfully against any person, and by treating people 
with respect, regardless of their sex, race, age, religion, gender, sexual 
orientation or disability.   

 
You must treat others with respect. In politics, rival groupings are common, 
either in formal political parties or more informal alliances.  It is expected that 
each will campaign for their ideas, and they may also seek to discredit the 
politics and actions of their opponents.  Criticism of ideas and opinion is part 
of democratic debate, and does not in itself amount to failing to treat 
someone with respect. 

 
Whilst ideas and policies may be robustly criticised, however, individuals 
should not be subject to unreasonable or excessive personal attacks.  This 
particularly applies to dealing with the public and officers.  Chairs of 

104



 
APPENDIX 1 

meetings are expected to apply the rules of debate and procedure rules or 
standing orders to prevent abusive or disorderly conduct. 

 
Whilst there may be unreasonable demands on members, members should, 
as far as possible, treat people courteously and with consideration.  Rude 
and offensive behaviour lowers the public’s expectations and confidence in 
its elected representatives. 

 
In particular, you must not do anything which may cause the authority to 
breach any equality laws. You must be careful not to act in a way which may 
amount to any of the prohibited forms of discrimination, or do anything which 
hinders the authority’s fulfilment of its positive duties under equality laws.  
Such conduct may cause the authority to breach the law, and you may find 
yourself subject to a complaint that you have breached this paragraph of the 
Code of Conduct. 

 
 

1.6  You must respect the impartiality and integrity of the Board’s statutory 
officers and its other employees.     

 
You should respect the impartiality and integrity of the Board’s statutory 
officers and its other employees. 

 
You should not approach or pressure anyone who works for, or on behalf of, 
the Board to carry out their duties in a biased or partisan way.  They must be 
neutral and should not be coerced or persuaded to act in a way that would 
undermine their neutrality.  For example, you should not get officers to help 
you prepare party political material, or to help you with matters relating to 
your private business.   

 
Although you can robustly question officers in order to understand, for 
example, their reasons for proposing to act in a particular way, or the content 
of a report that they have written, you must not try and force them to act 
differently, change their advice, or alter the content of that report, if doing so 
would prejudice their professional integrity.  

 
 

1.7  When carrying out your public duties you must make all choices, such 
as making public appointments, awarding contracts or recommending 
individuals for rewards or benefits on merit.   

 
As an member of the Board you are responsible for administering resources 
on behalf of the best interests of the Fund, specifically the membership you 
have been appointed to represent.  You should administer these resources 
fairly and in accordance with the law.  It is inappropriate for the Board’s 
resources or powers to be used in such a way that the Board and its 
members be left open to accusations that inappropriate influence played a 
part, for example, “it’s not what you know, it’s who you know!” 

 
 

1.8  You are accountable for your decisions to the public and you must co-
operate fully with whatever scrutiny is appropriate to your office. 

105



 
APPENDIX 1 

 
This requirement is linked to carrying out all duties in a fair and transparent 
manner.  Members are able to be held to account for their actions and, this 
being the case, you must be open to and cooperate with any legitimate 
scrutiny that is to be applied. 

 
 

1.9  You must be as open as possible about your decisions and actions and 
the decisions and actions of the authority and should be prepared to 
give reasons for those decisions and actions. 

 
Members should have good reasons for the decisions they make and should 
not make decisions which are based purely on self-interest or prejudice.  
The public we serve has the right to have decisions which affect their day-to-
day lives taken for proper reasons and need to be able to understand why 
we have taken a course of action and, if necessary, exercise any right of 
challenge that is open to them. 

 

106



 
APPENDIX 1 

 
1.10  You must only use the resources of the Board in accordance with its 

requirements. In particular you must ensure, when using or authorising 
the use by others of the resources of the authority, that such resources 
are not used improperly for political purposes (including party political 
purposes) and you must have regard to any applicable Local Authority 
Code of Publicity made under the Local Government Act 1986. 

 
Where the authority provides you with resources (for example telephone, 
computer and other IT facilities, transport or support from authority 
employees), you must only use these resources or employees for carrying 
out your local authority business and any other activity which the authority 
has authorised you to use them for. 

 
You must be familiar with the rules applying to the use of these resources 
made by the authority. Failure to comply with the Board’s rules is likely to 
amount to a breach of the code. 

 
If you authorise someone (for example a member of your family) to use the 
authority’s resources, you must take care to ensure that this is allowed by 
the Board’s rules. 

 
 

1.11  You must promote and support high standards of conduct when 
serving in your office. 

 
You have a duty to promote and support high standards of conduct and to 
behave in a way which is consistent with the seven general principles of 
public life set out in Appendix C of the Code.  

 
 
INTERESTS 
 
Registration of interests 

 
You need to register your interests so that the public, authority staff and fellow 
members know which of your interests might give rise to a conflict of interest.  The 
register is a document that can be consulted when (or before) an issue arises, and 
helps to ensure transparency of decision-making.  
 
The register also protects you. You are responsible for deciding whether or not you 
should declare an interest in a meeting, but it can be helpful for you to know early 
on if others think that a potential conflict might arise.  It is also important that the 
public know about any interest that might have to be declared by you or other 
members, so that decision making is seen by the public as open and honest.  This 
helps to ensure that public confidence in the integrity of local government is 
maintained 
 
You must notify the Monitoring Officer of any relevant interests to be included in the 
Board’s register of interests. A copy of the register will be available for public 
inspection and will be published on the Administering Authority’s website. 
 

107



 
APPENDIX 1 

You have two types of registerable interests - 
 

(a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests; and 
 

(b) Other registerable interests (including gifts and hospitality) 
 
 

(a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
 

These are interests (set out in Appendix A of the Code) which must be 
notified to the Board’s Monitoring Officer within 28 days beginning with the 
day on which you become a member of the Board in accordance with the 
statutory requirements of the Localism Act 2011. These are enforced by 
criminal sanction, and failure to register or declare them is a criminal 
offence. 

 
A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself or your partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom you are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom you are living as if you are civil 
partners) of the following descriptions - 

 
(a) Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried 

on for profit or gain. 
 
(b) Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other 

than from the relevant authority) made or provided within the relevant 
period in respect of any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties 
as a member, or towards your election expenses. (This includes any 
payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning of the 
Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.  

 
(c) Details of any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a 

body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and the 
relevant authority under which goods or services are to be provided or 
works are to be executed; and which has not been fully discharged.  

 
(d) Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the 

relevant authority.   
 

(e) Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 

 
(f) Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge) the landlord is the 

relevant authority; and the tenant is a body in which the relevant person 
has a beneficial interest. 

 
(g) Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where that body 

(to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the 
relevant authority; and either the total nominal value of the securities 
exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of 
that body; or if that share capital of that body is of more than one class, 
the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the 

108



 
APPENDIX 1 

relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that class. 

 
For the purposes of the above “relevant authority” means the Board of which 
you are a member, and “relevant period” means the period of 12 months 
ending with the day on which you notify the Monitoring Officer of your 
disclosable pecuniary interest.  

 
(b) Other Registerable Interests 

 
In addition to any disclosable pecuniary interests, you must, within 28 days 
of your election or appointment to office notify the Monitoring Officer in 
writing of the details of your interests within the following categories (set out 
in Appendix B of the Code), which the Board has decided must be included 
in the register of interests: 

 
(a) any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control 

or management and to which you are appointed or nominated by the 
Board; 

 
(b) any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control 

or management and which – 
 

(i) exercises functions of a public nature, 
 

(ii) is directed to charitable purposes, or  
 

(iii) is a body which includes as one of its principal purposes 
influencing public opinion or policy (this includes political parties 
or trade unions); 

 
(c) any persons from whom you have a received a gift or hospitality with an 

estimated value of at least £100 that you receive personally in connection 
with your official duties. 

 
 
 
 

Gifts and Hospitality 
 

You must register the gift or hospitality and its source within 28 days of receiving it. 
 
You should ask yourself would I have been given this if I were not on the Board?  If 
you are in doubt as to the motive behind a gift or hospitality, we recommend that 
you register it or speak to the Monitoring Officer. 
 
You do not need to register gifts and hospitality which are not related to your role 
as a member, such as Christmas gifts from your friends and family, or gifts which 
you do not accept.  However, you should always register a gift or hospitality if it 
could be perceived as something given to you because of your position or if the 
authority requires you to. 
 

109



 
APPENDIX 1 

You may have to estimate how much a gift or hospitality is worth.  Also, an 
accumulation of small gifts you received from the same source over a short period 
that add up to £100 or more should be registered. 
 
The general rule is, if in doubt as to the value of a gift or hospitality, you should 
register it, as a matter of good practice and in accordance with the principles of 
openness and accountability in public life. 
 
 
Changes to Registerable Interests 
 
You must, within 28 days of becoming aware of any new registerable interest or 
change to any interest already registered notify the Monitoring Officer of the  details 
of that new interest or change. 
 
 
Sensitive interests 
 
Where you consider that disclosure of the details of an interest could lead to you, or 
a person connected with you, being subject to violence or intimidation, and the 
Monitoring Officer agrees, the Monitoring Officer will make a note of the interest but 
will not enter it into the register.  
 
A sensitive interest may include any sensitive employment (such as certain 
scientific research or the Special Forces) or other interests that are likely to create 
serious risk of violence or intimidation against you or someone who lives with you. 
 
You should provide this information to your Monitoring Officer and explain your 
concerns regarding the disclosure of the sensitive information, including why it is 
likely to create a serious risk that you or a person who lives with you will be 
subjected to violence or intimidation.  You do not need to include this information in 
your register of interests if your Monitoring Officer agrees, but you need to disclose 
at meetings the fact that you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in the matter 
concerned.  

 
 

Definitions 
 
Most of the wording above is taken from statute and therefore may not be easy to 
understand. The following section explains what some of the categories of 
registerable interests mean in practice: 
 
If you need further information or specific advice, please contact your Monitoring 
Officer. 

 

110



 
APPENDIX 1 

“the Act” means the Localism Act 2011; 

“body in 
which the 
relevant 
person has 
a beneficial 
interest” 

means a firm in which the relevant person is a partner 
or a body corporate of which the relevant person is a 
director, or in the securities of which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest; 

“director” includes a member of the committee of management 
of an industrial and provident society; 

“land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or 
over land which does not carry with it a right for the 
relevant person (alone or jointly with another) to 
occupy the land or to receive income; 

“M” means a member of a relevant authority; 

“member” includes a co-opted member; 

“relevant 
authority” 

means the Board of which M is a member; 

“relevant 
period” 

means the period of 12 months ending with the day on 
which M gives a notification for the purposes of section 
30(1) or section 31(7), as the case may be, of the Act; 

“relevant 
person” 

means - 

(i) M, 

(ii) M's spouse or civil partner, 

(iii) a person with whom M is living as husband and 
wife, or 

(iv) a person with whom M is living as if they were civil 
partners. 

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan 
stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme 
within the meaning of the Financial Services and 
Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any 
description, other than money deposited with a 
building society. 

111

http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=7&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I9AA4F73014C911E1A6718D7CED27531D
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=7&crumb-action=replace&docguid=ID78FE7E014C911E19E5AF8480E3EF42C
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=7&crumb-action=replace&docguid=ID78FE7E014C911E19E5AF8480E3EF42C
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=7&crumb-action=replace&docguid=ID78FE7E214C911E19E5AF8480E3EF42C
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=17&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I5FACA830E42311DAA7CF8F68F6EE57AB
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=17&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I5FACA830E42311DAA7CF8F68F6EE57AB


 
APPENDIX 1 

body 
exercising 
functions 
of a public 
nature 

Although it is not possible to produce a definitive list of 
such bodies, here are some criteria to consider when 
deciding whether or not a body meets that definition - 

• Does that body carry out a public service? 

• Is the body taking the place of local or central 
government in carrying out the function? 

• Is the body (including one outsourced in the 
private sector) exercising a function delegated to 
it by a public authority? 

• Is the function exercised under legislation or 
according to some statutory power? 

• Can the body be judicially reviewed? 

Unless you answer “yes” to one of the above 
questions, it is unlikely that the body in your case is 
exercising functions of a public nature. 

Examples of bodies included in this definition: 
government agencies, other local authorities, public 
health bodies, authority-owned companies exercising 
public functions, arms-length management 
organisations carrying out housing functions on behalf 
of the authority, school governing bodies. 

 
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

As well as the requirement to register interests, there will be times when you need 
to declare interests at meetings. This section explains when you will need to 
declare an interest and what steps you will need to take. 

 
(a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
 

Introduction 
 

Unless you have been granted a dispensation, where a matter arises at a 
meeting which relates to a disclosable pecuniary interest then you must 
declare that interest to the meeting and leave the room whilst any discussion 
or vote takes place. 
 

112



 
APPENDIX 1 

This is in the interests of transparency so that it is known and understood by 
all and is a matter of public record.  If a declaration is not made, other than 
through the register, it would not necessarily be apparent to anyone who is 
present at the meeting why a particular member is not participating or voting 
in any matter. 

 
If a dispensation has been granted to you in relation to a disclosable 
pecuniary interest then, subject to the terms of the dispensation, you may be 
relieved from the above restrictions but will still be required to declare the 
interest to the meeting. 

 
 Dispensations 
 

The Monitoring Officer may grant you a dispensation, but only in limited 
circumstances, to enable you to participate and/or vote on a matter in which 
you have a disclosable pecuniary interest. These circumstances are where – 
 

• It is considered that without the dispensation the number of persons 
prohibited from participating in any particular business would be so great 
a proportion of the body transacting the business as to impede the 
transaction of the business.   

 

• That, without the dispensation, the equal representation of requirements 
would be so upset as to alter the likely outcome of any vote relating to the 
business.   

 

• That the Board considers that the dispensation is in the interests of the 
interested parties being represented. 

 

• That the Board considers that it is otherwise appropriate to grant a 
dispensation. 
 
 

Offences 
 

Members should be aware that it is a serious offence to 
 

• Fail to notify the Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interest 
within 28 days of election 

 

• Fail to disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest at a meeting if it is not on 
the register 

 

• Fail to notify the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of a disclosable 
pecuniary interest that is not on the register that you have disclosed to a 
meeting 

 

• Participate in any discussion or vote on a matter in which you have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest 

 

113



 
APPENDIX 1 

• Knowingly or recklessly providing information that is false or misleading 
in notifying the Monitoring Officer of a disclosable pecuniary interest or in 
disclosing such interest to a meeting 

 
 

(b) Other interests 
 
Introduction 

 
Disclosable pecuniary interests are mandatory for members of the Board. In 
the interests of transparency, there are other categories included in your 
code.  These are both other categories of interests that you need to register, 
such as membership of outside bodies, but also interests which are not 
directly yours or about you or your partner but clearly may influence you - for 
example, interests of other family members or close associates. In these 
cases of interests of friends and family you don’t need to put them on the 
register but you will need to declare them if any business of the Board 
relates to or affects them. 

 
In most cases you would simply declare the interest but then carry on and 
participate as normal. However, in certain circumstances the interest would 
be so affected that you should not participate in the meeting. 

 
 

What do I need to do? 
 

If you have an interest in an item of business as a result of the matter 
affecting the financial position of yourself, a relative, friend or a close 
associate and it is not a disclosable pecuniary interest then you need to 
declare that interest.  
 
In most circumstances, you can still participate in the meeting. However, if 
you or those with an interest close to you would: 

 
a) be affected by the outcome of the decision more than it would affect the 

majority of other people in the relevant area affected; and  
 

b) a reasonable member of the public would therefore think your view  
of the public interest would be adversely affected  

 
you must not take part in the decision. 

 
In that case, you are allowed to speak before withdrawing if the public also 
has the right to speak. This is to ensure that you have the same rights to 
advocate for a decision on behalf of somebody close to you as any ordinary 
member of the public would have but you are not allowed to vote on the 
matter, nor are you allowed to take part in confidential discussions, as this 
would be giving the person affected an unfair advantage over other 
members of the public. 
 
Clearly you cannot be expected to declare something of which you are 
unaware.  However you should not ignore the existence of interests which, 

114



 
APPENDIX 1 

from the point of view of a reasonable and objective observer, you should 
have been aware. 

 
 

Definitions 
 

“affecting the financial position”  
 
An interest can affect you, your family or close personal associates positively 
and negatively.  So if you or they have the potential either to gain or lose 
from a matter under consideration, an interest would need to be declared. 

 
‘a friend, relative or close associate’ 

 
A relative should be given wide meaning.  It includes a partner (someone 
you are married to, your civil partner, or someone you live with in a similar 
capacity), a parent, parent-in-law, a son or daughter, a stepson, or 
stepdaughter, the child of a partner, a brother or sister of yourself or your 
partner, a grandparent, a grandchild, an uncle or aunt, a nephew or niece 
and the partners of any of these people. 

 
A friend or close associate is someone that you are in either regular or 
irregular contact with over a period of time who is more than an 
acquaintance.  It is someone a reasonable member of the public might think 
you would be prepared to favour or disadvantage when discussing a matter 
that affects them.  It may be a friend, a colleague, a business associate or 
someone whom you know through general social contacts. 
 
‘a reasonable member of the public’ 

 
If a reasonable member of the public with knowledge of all the relevant facts 
would think that your judgement of the interest of the Fund would be 
prejudiced, then you should not be taking part in the decision. 

 
You must ask yourself whether a member of the public – if he or she knew 
all the relevant facts – would think that your interest was so significant that it 
would be likely to prejudice your judgement. In other words, the interest must 
be perceived as likely to harm or impair your ability to judge the interest of 
the Fund.  

 
Some general principles must be remembered when applying this test. You 
should clearly act in the interest of the Fund and not in the interests of family 
or close associates. You are a custodian of the public purse and the public 
interest and your behaviour and decisions should reflect this responsibility. 
 
Bias and predetermination 
 
Although these concepts are not mentioned specifically in the Code of 
Conduct, members do need to be aware of them as the Board may be 
challenged if a decision has not been taken properly. 

 

115



 
APPENDIX 1 

Having comprehensive rules for registration and declaration of interests 
which are adhered to will protect an authority from this risk but do not cover 
all the areas which may affect the making of a decision.  

 
The rules against bias say that there are three distinct elements.  The first 
seeks accuracy in public decision-making and the second seeks the 
absence of prejudice or partiality on the part of you as the decision-maker. 
An accurate decision is more likely to be achieved by a decision-maker who 
is in fact impartial or disinterested in the outcome of the decision and who 
puts aside any personal prejudices. Merely being a member / representative 
employer of the Fund does not disqualify you as an impartial decision-
maker. 

 
The third requirement is for public confidence in the decision-making 
process. Even though the decision-maker may in fact be scrupulously 
impartial, the appearance of bias can itself call into question the legitimacy of 
the decision-making process. In general, the rule against bias looks to the 
appearance or risk of bias rather than bias in fact, in order to ensure that 
‘justice should not only be done, but should manifestly and undoubtedly be 
seen to be done.  

 
To varying degrees, these “requirements” might be seen to provide the 
rationales behind what are generally taken to be three separate rules against 
bias: “automatic” (or “presumed”) bias, “actual” bias and “appearance” bias. 

 
The rationale behind “automatic” or “presumed” bias appears to be that in 
certain situations (such as if you have a pecuniary or proprietary interest in 
the outcome of the proceedings) then it must be presumed that you are 
incapable of impartiality. Since a motive for bias is thought to be so obvious 
in such cases, the decisions are not allowed to stand even though no 
investigation is made into whether the decision-maker was biased in fact.  In 
these circumstances you should not participate in a decision. That is 
why there are rules in the Code of Conduct setting out when you should and 
should not participate where a clear interest arises. 

 
However, there are circumstances beyond the Code rules which cover the 
other areas of bias – where a decision is taken with a closed mind or the 
appearance of a closed mind. 

 
The Localism Act 2011 has enshrined the rules relating to pre-disposition 
and predetermination into statute.  In essence you are not taken to have 
had, or appeared to have had, a closed mind when making a decision just 
because you have previously done anything that directly or in-directly 
indicated what view you may take in relation to a matter and that matter was 
relevant to the decision.   

 
So, you are entitled to have a pre-disposition one way or another as long as 
you have not pre-determined the outcome.  You are able to express an 
opinion providing that you come to the relevant meeting with an open mind, 
able to take account of all of the evidence and make your decision on the 
day. Provided that you can demonstrate that you have an open mind and 

116



 
APPENDIX 1 

have listened to both sides of any argument fairly and considered all the 
evidence, you will not be seen as having predetermined an issue. 

 

 

Examples of Interests Creating Potential Conflicts for members of the 
Cumbria LGPS Local Pension Board 

 
The following examples of potential conflicts of interest are provided for illustrative 
purposes only and are not intended to be an exhaustive list.  
Members of the Pension Board may be officers of the administering authority or 
another employer organisation within the Fund and will potentially face conflicting 
priorities by virtue of these two roles. 
 
Example 1 
Pension Board members may be required to scrutinise a decision which will commit 
the Fund to injecting additional resources into improving administration and 
efficiency which will involve greater costs falling on employer organisations. 
Simultaneously, they may face pressure from their employing organisation to 
challenge existing budgets and to reduce expenditure on pension administration 
matters. 

 
Example 2 
The Local Pension Board might review a decision by the Pension Committee to 
levy an additional charge (under the Regulations) on a group of employers whose 
poor performance in carrying out their statutory functions in respect of the LGPS 
has caused the Administering Authority additional costs. Any Board member 
employed by one of the affected employer organisations would need to declare 
their interest in order for a potential conflict to be identified and managed so as to 
prevent any actual conflict of interests from arising. A Board member might be 
employed by (or have some other relevant connection with) a firm providing 
administrative or other services to the Fund.  

 
Example 3  
Where the Board is due to discuss or scrutinise the Committees’ monitoring of  the 
performance of a supplier of administrative or other services in which a Board 
Member has an interest they will face a potential conflict of interests. The Member 
will need to declare their interest in order for a potential conflict to be identified and 
managed so as to prevent any actual conflict of interests from arising. A Board 
member may have financial or other interests which give the appearance of a 
conflict but which, by virtue of their nature or scale, are not ultimately material to the 
issue under consideration by the Board. 
 
Example 4 
A Board member holds shares in a company that provides services to the Fund. 
The shares are valued at a few hundred pounds and the company’s value is many 
tens of millions. The Pension Board is reviewing the governance of the 
performance of the provider and any decision to extend the value and term of the 
contract. In this case the Board may consider that on grounds of materiality, no 
conflict of interest exists. The Local Pension Board is not responsible for the 
decision to award the contract and the impact of the contract extension will have no 
effect on the company’s share price. The Board member in question should, 
however, still declare their interest and the minutes of the meeting should record 

117



 
APPENDIX 1 

the decision that the Board judged the interest insufficiently material to require the 
member to be excluded from discussing or voting on the item of business. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

118



APPENDIX 2 

 

9.0 TRAINING POLICY  

Contents 

Cumbria LGPS Pension Fund Training Policy 

9.1 Introduction 

9.2 Policy objectives 

9.3 Application of Training policy  

9.4  Purpose of training 

9.5  Review and maintenance 

9.6 Resources 

9.7 Induction 

9.8 Maintenance of knowledge and understanding 

9.9  Compliance and reporting 

9.10 2023/24 Learning Programme 

 
  

119



APPENDIX 2 

 

9.0  CUMBRIA LGPS PENSION FUND TRAINING POLICY  
 
9.1 Introduction 

A major factor in the governance arrangements of the Cumbria LGPS Pension 
Fund (“the Fund” or “the Cumbria Pension Fund”) is ensuring Committee 
Members, Local Pension Board members and Officers have the relevant skills 
and knowledge. The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 provides for the 
regulation of the LGPS by the Pensions Regulator and, accordingly, an increased 
emphasis on knowledge and understanding.  

This Training Policy of Cumbria Local Government Pension Scheme sets out the 
policy agreed by the Pensions Committee concerning the training and 
development of – 

• the Members of the Pensions Committee and the Investment Sub Group, 
including substitutes;   

• the Members of Cumbria Local Pension Board including any independent 
chair and substitutes; and 

• Officers of Cumbria County Council responsible for the management of the 
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), 

collectively referred to ‘members of the governing body’ for the purposes of this 
Policy. 

The Training Policy is established to ensure members of the governing body 
have the appropriate skills and knowledge to perform their respective duties in 
the administration of the Fund.  In setting the Training Policy the Fund takes into 
account the requirements relating to the following four areas:  

a) The Pensions Regulator Codes of Practice 

The Pensions Regulator issues Codes of Practice which set out its expectations 
for the management of pension funds including knowledge and understanding of 
the people involved. Whilst the Codes of Practice are not a legislative 
requirement, in the event of any investigations undertaken or any enforcement 
action, the Pensions Regulator does refer to them.  

At the time of writing, a new code is expected to be issued by the Pensions 
Regulator which will replace the current Code of Practice no. 14 – ‘Governance 
and administration of public service pension schemes’. The requirements of the 

draft version of the new code have been taken into account in this Policy.  

b) CIPFA Knowledge and Skills Code of Practice and Framework  

In 2021 CIPFA published an updated Code of Practice on LGPS knowledge and 
skills (“CIPFA Code of Practice”) which updated guidance for Members and 
Officers of Pension Committees in the LGPS within a knowledge and skills 
framework which reflects the latest developments in the area for the LGPS.  

The CIPFA knowledge and Skills framework for the LGPS sets the skill set for 
those responsible for pension scheme financial management and decision 

120



APPENDIX 2 

 

making. The Framework covers eight areas of knowledge identified as the core 
requirements- 

• Pensions legislation and guidance 

• Pensions Governance 

• Funding Strategy and actuarial methods 

• Pensions administration and communications 

• Pensions financial strategy, management, accounting, reporting and audit 
standards 

• Investment strategy, asset allocation, pooling, performance and risk 
management 

• Financial markets and products 

• Pension services procurement, contract management and relationship 
management 

The CIPFA Code of Practice recommends (amongst other things) that LGPS 
administering authorities adopt the following statements-  

• adopt key principles of the Code of Practice on LGPS Knowledge and Skills;  

• recognise that effective management, governance, decision making and 
other aspects of delivery of the Fund can only be achieved where those 
involved have the requisite knowledge and skills to discharge the duties and 
responsibilities allocated to them; 

• put in place formal and comprehensive objectives, policies and practices, 
strategies and reporting arrangements for the effective acquisition and 
retention of LGPS knowledge and skills for those responsible for the 
management, delivery, governance and decision making of the Fund;  

• confirm that the policies and practices are guided by reference to the CIPFA 
LGPS Knowledge and Skills Framework; 

• ensure there are adequate resources in place to ensure all staff, members 
and other persons responsible for the management, decision making, 
governance and other aspects of the Cumbria Pension Fund to acquire and 
retain the necessary LGPS skills and knowledge; 

• report annually on how its Training policy has been put into practice 

throughout the year in the Fund’s Annual report; and 

• delegate the responsibility for the implementation of the requirements of the 
CIPFA Code of Practice to an appropriate officer (for the Cumbria Pension 
Fund this is the Deputy S151 Officer - Pensions)  who will act in accordance 
with the Fund’s Training policy and where they are a CIPFA member with 
CIPFA Standards of Professional Practice. 

The Cumbria Pensions Committee fully supports the CIPFA Code of Practice 
and adopts its principles. The CIPFA Code of Practice and Framework are seen 
as meeting the requirements of the Public Sector Pensions Act 2013. 

121



APPENDIX 2 

 

c) CIPFA Principles of Investment Decision Making and Disclosure 

The CIPFA Principles of Investment Decision Making and Disclosure was 
published in response to the government’s report updating the Myners Principles, 
this indicates Administering Authorities are required to prepare and maintain 
statements of compliance against a set of six principles for pension fund 
investment, scheme governance, disclosure and consultation. Details of how the 
Fund complies with these principles please refer to the Fund’s Investment 
Strategy Statement. 

d) MiFID ii (Markets in Financial Instruments Directive) 

The Fund’s investment managers undertake both quantitative and qualitative 
tests to assess whether the Fund as a client can demonstrate their expertise, 
experience and knowledge to be treated as professional client in accordance with 

MiFID ii (Markets in Financial Instruments Directive). These tests seek to assess 
whether the Administering Authority can demonstrate sufficient collective 
understanding to be capable of making investment decisions in complex asset 
classes whilst being cognisant of the nature of the risks involved. The training 
policy and subsequent reporting assists the Fund in ensuring knowledge and 
skills are acquired and maintained. 

 
9.2 Policy objectives 

The Fund’s objectives relating to knowledge and understanding are: 

• The Pension Fund is managed, and its services delivered by people who 
have the appropriate knowledge and expertise, and that the knowledge and 
expertise is maintained in a changing environment 

• Those persons responsible for governing the Fund have sufficient expertise 
to be able to evaluate and challenge the advice they receive, ensure their 
decisions are robust and well based, and manage conflicts of interest  

• To demonstrate the Fund’s status as a profession client under the EU 
directive, MiFID ii (Markets in Financial Instruments Directive) to investment 
managers, hence accessing appropriate investment products 

• The Pension Fund and its stakeholders are aware of and understand their 
roles and responsibilities under the LGPS regulations and in the delivery of 
the administration functions of the Fund 

• To demonstrate compliance with relevant legislation and guidance. 

To assist in achieving these objectives, the Fund will aim for compliance with the 
CIPFA Knowledge and Skills Framework and Code of Practice and the public 
service Code of Practice issued by The Pensions Regulator (as detailed above). 

 
9.3 Application of Training Policy 

The Training Policy will apply to all Members of the Pensions Committee 
(including substitutes) and Local Pensions Board (including any independent 
chair and substitutes) and appropriate Officers who advise the Committee and 

122



APPENDIX 2 

 

Board (including but not limited to the Section 151 Officer and the Deputy Section 
151 Officer – Pensions), regardless of experience.  

 

9.4 Purpose of training 

Investment in training harnesses an individual’s potential, focuses on what is to 
be achieved and provides personal development. As such the purpose of training 
to both Members and Officers of the Cumbria Pension Fund is to: 

• equip those charged with the oversight and management of the Fund with 
the necessary skills, knowledge and training, and  

• meet the required needs in relation to the Fund’s objectives.  

 

9.5 Review and maintenance  

This Training Policy is expected to be appropriate for the long-term but to ensure 
good governance it will be formally reviewed at least annually by the Committee 
to ensure it remains accurate and relevant.  

 

9.6 Resources 

Members are required to invest sufficient time in their learning and development 
so as to acquire and maintain sufficient knowledge and skills to be effective. The 
Fund will provide the necessary support from Officers and Advisors and where 
appropriate will recommend and fund places at external training events.  
 
The Fund will maintain a list of items the members of the governing body should 
be familiar with, in a 'Member Handbook’.  
 
Members are provided with access to an online ‘Pensions Knowledge Library’ 
which as well as containing reference documents, also contains background 
reading on a range of areas. 

The Annual Learning Programme (as detailed at item 9.10) may include various 
resources or methods of training delivery including: 

• In-house sessions from officers and/or advisors 

• Bespoke training delivered by external providers but specifically designed for 
the Fund 

• External courses, seminars and webinars 

• Shared training with other Schemes or Frameworks. 

Where possible the Fund will endeavour to schedule internal training sessions to 
coincide with scheduled meetings of the Pensions Committee or Local Pensions 
Board. 

Officers will recommend external events to members on a regular basis (as and 
when available), allocation of places will be based on the Annual Learning 
Programme (section 9.10) and in such a way as to balance the provision of 
training and the costs. External events have the benefits of providing exposure 

123



APPENDIX 2 

 

to wider sources of information and also allows Members the opportunity to 
network with peers, advisors and officers from other funds.  

Members should be aware that they are likely to receive direct invitations to many 
other external conferences and seminars, However, those recommended by 
officers should be prioritised. Should members receive any direct invitations, it is 
requested that these be forwarded to officers for consideration of the value and 
relevance of the event - it is unlikely that Fund will approve costs to attend events 
if they are not considered to be appropriate.  

Members of the governing body are asked to share any material such as 
presentations from all external events attended with officers so that the material 
can be added to the ‘Pensions Knowledge Library’ for the benefit of all members.  

In addition, those attending events will also be expected to provide feedback to 
Officers following attendance at events so that they can be assessed on a VFM 
basis for possible attendance by others in future years.  

All members of the governing body are encouraged to read relevant media (for 
example magazines, news articles) to enhance their knowledge of the pensions 
and investment industry in general and where possible the LGPS in particular.   

Costs associated with complying with this Policy will be paid by the Fund.  
Members and Officers will be required to agree any costs in advance. Any 
hospitality received whilst undertaking the Learning Programme should be 
declared to Officers, in advance where possible or as soon as possible upon 
return from any event.   

 
9.7 Induction 

All new members will be required to start a programme of learning immediately 
on appointment, if not before. Prior to taking part in any decision making, new 
members will be required to become familiar with the ‘Members Handbook’.  
 

A senior officer of the Pensions team will also hold an induction meeting with new 
Members to provide an oversight of the LGPS, details of the Cumbria Pension 
Fund and outline the key governance arrangements for the Fund including the 
responsibilities of Committee and Board members.  

Members are required to ensure they undertake sufficient training to enable them 
to demonstrate a basic level of knowledge and understanding needed to manage 
the Fund within six months of their appointment, as required.  

 
9.8 Maintenance of knowledge and understanding 

A ‘Knowledge Assessment’ exercise will be undertaken on an annual basis 
(usually in late Autumn) to identify both group and individual knowledge gaps.  
This will inform a Learning Programme plan (the current plan is set out below at 
9.10).  The Learning Programme will be developed taking into account current 
knowledge and understanding and also forthcoming workloads, including LGPS 
national changes or Fund-specific issues. The Learning Programme will be 

124



APPENDIX 2 

 

flexible, allowing members to update areas of learning and to acquire new 
knowledge.  

The results of the annual Knowledge Assessment will be reported to Pensions 
Committee and Local Pension Board. Pensions Committee will be asked to 
approve the annual Learning Programme for the Fund, the Local Pensions Board 
then review and may add to the plan should they feel any additional learning is 
required by its Members before approving the Board’s own combined learning 
programme.  

Individual Members of the Pensions Investment Sub Group (ISG) Members will 
be expected to be knowledgeable in relevant investment matters in order to 
enable them to fulfil the functions of the ISG.   

9.9 Compliance and reporting 

The Fund is obliged to publish records of Members learning records which will 
include attendance at events and other learning activities undertaken. Annual 
learning records, and meeting attendance records, are included in the Fund’s 
Annual Report and will be reported to the Pensions Committee and Local 
Pension Board on a regular basis.   
 

Through the year, Officers will maintain a log of all events attended for each 
individual member together with any other learning such as completion of any 
online training modules or other appropriate and measurable Pensions related 
learning. It is therefore important that members notify Officers of any self-directed 
activity they undertake.  

It is the individual member’s responsibility to ensure their learning records and 
attendance records at training events and Committee or Board meetings are 
correct. Officers will share the records with members on a regular (typically bi-
annual) basis during the year. 

Failure of individual members to participate in the Learning Programme reflects 
on the requirement for the Administering Authority to ensure that those involved 
in the governance of the Fund have the requisite knowledge and skills and 
therefore could be escalated by Officers.   

As such, members who do not show a general level of attendance at meetings 
and engagement in learning opportunities or training events may be reported to 
Council or nominating bodies (as appropriate). Members of the Local Pension 
Board could be referred to the appointments panel and ultimately asked to step 
down from the Board. 

 
9.10 2023/24 Learning Programme 

The 2023/24 Learning Programme is set out in the table of training topics below.  
The Programme would usually be informed by the annual Knowledge 
Assessment (as noted at 9.8 above) together with up and coming national 
legislative / policy changes.  However, due to the anticipated significant change 
in the membership of the Pensions Committee and Board Members following the 
LGR process, this year’s programme is more of an Induction Programme.  As 

125



APPENDIX 2 

 

such it is based to a large degree on the acquisition of both general and LGPS 
specific Pensions knowledge and skills.  
 
It also seeks to ensure that the training covers the key themes and developments 
which drive the Fund’s business plan for 2023/24, including:  

• Ensuring that Members understand the Fund’s investment pooling 
arrangements including: the ongoing development of Border to Coast 
Pensions Partnership Ltd (BCPP) sub-fund offerings and national 
developments in relation to the pooling of investments; and  

• Keeping Members and Officers abreast of relevant developments in the 
LGPS, the wider pensions world and investments markets, such as:  

o The Government’s response to the Scheme Advisory Board’s (SAB’s) 
Report on Good Governance in the LGPS and the Pension Regulator’s 
updated Codes of Practice. Both of these are expected imminently; and   

o LGPS Governance and Climate Risk Reporting – the Government is 
preparing to issue regulations and/or statutory guidance for LGPS funds 
aimed at further enhancing the reporting of climate related financial 
information.  

Finally (and importantly), it is designed to provide sufficient training for Officers 
and Members to ensure they continue to meet the high level of knowledge 
required to ensure the Fund continues to be well governed and managed and 
remain compliant with the MiFID ii regulations. 

 

Training Topics 

Regulatory framework relating to the Pensions environment and the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (‘the Scheme’). 

Administration and rules of the Scheme, it’s Funding and governing bodies.    

Governance arrangements of the Scheme, and how this works within a Local 
Authority environment. 

Regulations relating to Investments of the Scheme, Investment Strategy and 
LGPS Pooling. 

Cumbria Pensions governance structure, including conflicts of interest, 
Policies such as the training policy, the role of the Board, reporting of 
breaches and other compliance reporting requirements. 

Cumbria’s Pension Administration provider Local Pensions Partnership 
Administration (LPPA), arrangements for the service provision and oversight, 
internal roles vs LPPA including current and forthcoming issues. 

Review of the Fund’s current Asset Allocation, basic funding information, roles 
of the Fund’s Advisors, Consultants, Officers and Members including the 
Investment Sub Group (ISG). 

126



APPENDIX 2 

 

Training Topics 

LGPS Pooling, our pool Border to Coast Pensions Partnership (BCPP), the 
Fund’s role as both Shareholder and Customer, including the oversight and 
governance of BCPP. 

Stewardship Reporting including ESG (Environmental, Social and Governance 
factors) including the role of BCPP and our membership of LAPFF (Local 
Authority Pension Fund Forum) 

Current Investment related issues including Inflation, a review of the 
Investment Strategy, possible transition of BCPP UK Direct property to BCPP 
and increased climate reporting requirements.  

The implications of the resolution to the McCloud age discrimination case and 
the expected Cap on Exit payments for the public sector schemes and 
specifically the Cumbria Pension Fund (once both sets of regulations have 
been finalised). 

The implications for the Fund of the Pension Regulator’s Consolidated Code 
of Practice (once it has been finalised). 

The implications of the LGPS Governance and Climate Risk Reporting 
regulations and statutory guidance (once it has been finalised). 

 
In addition, other items on topical or emerging issues will be included as appropriate, 
and the proposed training topics may therefore change depending upon emerging 
issues. 

 
 

127



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

129

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

139

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

171

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

177

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Terms of Reference and Membership
	5 Minutes
	7 Work Plan
	8 Oversight of Pension Committee Decisions and other matters
	Appendix 1 CLPB - Decisions made by the Cumbria Pensions Committee on 14 March 2023.
	Appendix 2 CLPB -  Risk Register March 2023
	Appendix 3 CLPB - Fund Policy Document Annual Review

	9 Terms of Reference Cumbria LGPS Local Pension Board
	Appendix 1 West & Furness Constitution section 16 Local Pension Board
	Appendix 2 Cumbria Local Pension Board terms of reference

	10 Review of Board Policies including  Training Policy and 2023-24 Plan
	Appendix 1 Cumbria LPB Members code of Conduct
	Appendix 2 Cumbria LGPS Training Policy & Learning Programme

	12 Review of Administration Matters
	Appendix 1- LPPA Quarterly Performance Report to 31 December 2022
	Appendix 2 LPPA Performance Jan 2023
	Appendix 3 -  Employer Compliance with Regulation & Policy 1 September – 31 December 2022


